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UBS (Irl) ETF plc

an investment company with variable capital constituted as an umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-
funds under the laws of Ireland and authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland pursuant to the European Communities
(Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended) and the Central Bank
of Ireland's (Supervision & Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48 (1)) (Undertaking for Collective Investment in
Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 (as amended)

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA Value UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI World UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - S&P 500 UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - Solactive Global Pure Gold Miners UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Australia UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA hedged to EUR UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA hedged to CHF UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - S&P Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI United Kingdom IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - Factor MSCI USA Low Volatility UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - Factor MSCI USA Prime Value ESG UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - Factor MSCI USA Quiality ESG UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA Select Factor Mix UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA Socially Responsible UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI World Socially Responsible UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - S&P 500 ESG ELITE UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - UBS Climate Aware Global Developed Equity CTB UCITS ETF
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI EMU Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Europe Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Japan Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI World Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Japan ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI EMU ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI ACWI Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Emerging Markets Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI World Small Cap Socially Responsible UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Pacific (ex Japan) IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Australia ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI AC Asia (ex Japan) ESG Leaders Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - S&P USA Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - S&P 500 Climate Transition ESG UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - EUR Ultra-Short Bond ESG UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Emerging Markets ex China Socially Responsible UCITS ETF
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Canada ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - Factor MSCI World Minimum Volatility ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - FTSE EPRA Nareit Developed Green UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA NSL UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA Small Cap ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA Tech 125 ESG Universal UCITS ETF

UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
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Schedules of Investments
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Management and Administration
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UBS Asset Management Switzerland AG
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78 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay
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Distributor

UBS Asset Management Switzerland AG
Bahnhofstrasse 45
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Switzerland

Company Secretary
Dechert Secretarial Limited
Second Floor, 5 Earlsfort Terrace
Dublin 2

Ireland

Registered Office
Second Floor, 5 Earlsfort Terrace
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Ireland
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Swiss Representative

UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG
Aeschenvorstadt 1

CH-4051 Basel

Switzerland

UK Facilities Agent
UBS Asset Management (UK) Ltd
5 Broadgate

EC2M 2QS London

United Kingdom

Swiss Paying Agent
UBS Switzerland AG
Bahnhofstrasse 45

CH-8098 Zurich

Switzerland

Administrator, Registrar and Transfer
Agent

State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited
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Legal Advisors in Ireland
Dechert

5 Earlsfort Terrace
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Independent Auditors
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Representative for Portugal
Best - Banco Electronico de Servico Total, S.A.
Praca Marqués de Pombal, 3A - 3°

1250-161 Lisboa

Portugal

France Paying Agent
Société Générale

Boulevard Haussmann
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Shareholders may obtain the prospectus, the Key Investor Information Document (KIID), Packaged Retail and Insurance-based
Investment Products (PRIIPs), the latest annual and semi-annual reports, the changes in the composition of the securities portfolio
during the reporting period and copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association free of charge from the registered office of
the Manager, the Administrator, or the local representatives in the countries where the Company is registered and in Switzerland at
UBS Switzerland AG, Bahnhofstrasse 45, CH-8098 Zurich, Switzerland.
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General Information

UBS (Irl) ETF plc (the “Company”) is an open-ended investment company with variable capital which was incorporated in Ireland on
14 December 2011 under registration number 507439 and is authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (the “Central Bank”) as an
Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities (“UCITS"). The objective of the Company is the collective
investment in transferable securities and/or other liquid financial assets of capital raised from the public, operating on the principle
of risk spreading in accordance with the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities)
Regulations 2011 (as amended) (the “UCITS Regulations”) and the Central Bank (Supervision & Enforcement) Act

2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 (as amended) (the
“Central Bank UCITS Regulations”). References to statutes, regulations and laws shall include any amendments thereto.

All capitalised terms not defined herein shall have the meaning attributed to them in the latest Prospectus for the Company.

The Company has been structured as an umbrella fund, with segregated liability between sub-funds, in that the Directors may from
time to time, with the prior approval of the Central Bank, issue different series of Shares representing separate portfolios of assets,
each comprising a fund (each a "Fund", collectively the "Funds"). The portfolio of assets maintained for each series of Shares and
comprising a Fund will be invested in accordance with the investment objectives and policies applicable to such Fund as specified in
the relevant supplement to the Prospectus, and each relevant supplement shall include all such relevant information in relation to
the additional Fund or Funds as the Directors may deem appropriate and the Central Bank requires to be included. Each Fund will
bear its own liabilities and, under Irish law, none of the Company, any of the service providers appointed to the Company, the
Directors, any receiver, examiner or liquidator, or any other person will have access to the assets of a Fund in satisfaction of a liability
of any other Fund.

In March 2023, UBS Group AG agreed to buy Credit Suisse, and on 7 December 2023 it was announced that the directors of UBS
Group AG had approved the execution of a merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG. As part of that broader merger project, it was
proposed to consolidate the Irish platforms of the two entities, namely, Credit Suisse Index Fund (IE) ETF ICAV (the “ICAV"”) and the
Company. such that the existing active seven sub-funds of the ICAV would merge onto the platform of the Company (the
“Merger”) via seven new Fund launches in the Company. The assets and liabilities of the relevant sub-funds of the ICAV were
transferred in-specie to the Company and the shareholders of the respective sub-funds of the ICAV became shareholders of the
Company. The effective date of Merger and new Fund launches in the Company (listed below) was 26 August 2024.

Factor MSCI World Minimum Volatility ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
FTSE EPRA Nareit Developed Green UCITS ETF

MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

MSCI USA NSL UCITS ETF

MSCI USA Small Cap ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

MSCI USA Tech 125 ESG Universal UCITS ETF

MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

Shares of any particular series may be divided into different Classes to accommodate different dividend policies, charges and/or fee
arrangements (including different flat fees) and/or currencies. The Company may establish Classes that provide for foreign exchange
hedging in accordance with the policies and requirements of the Central Bank from time to time. While it is anticipated that
applications will be made for most of the Classes to be admitted to listing on one or more Listing Stock Exchange, the Company
may also establish Classes of Unlisted Shares.

At 31 December 2024, there were forty-eight active Funds of the Company, namely:

Fund Currency Initial dealing date
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA UCITS ETF usD 11 April 2012
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA Value UCITS ETF usb 11 April 2012
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI World UCITS ETF usb 11 April 2012
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - S&P 500 UCITS ETF usD 11 April 2012
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - Solactive Global Pure Gold Miners UCITS ETF usD 15 November 2012
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Australia UCITS ETF AUD 30 September 2013
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA hedged to EUR UCITS ETF EUR 30 September 2013
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA hedged to CHF UCITS ETF CHF 30 September 2013
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - S&P Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF usD 4 September 2014
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI United Kingdom IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF GBP 15 October 2014
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - Factor MSCI USA Low Volatility UCITS ETF usb 25 August 2015
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - Factor MSCI USA Prime Value ESG UCITS ETF Usb 25 August 2015
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Fund Currency Initial dealing date
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - Factor MSCI USA Quality ESG UCITS ETF usb 25 August 2015
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA Select Factor Mix UCITS ETF usD 27 April 2017
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF usb 20 December 2017
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF UsD 19 December 2017
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF usb 19 December 2017
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF usb 25 March 2019
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA Socially Responsible UCITS ETF usb 30 April 2020
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI World Socially Responsible UCITS ETF usb 7 May 2020
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - S&P 500 ESG ELITE UCITS ETF usb 18 February 2021
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - UBS Climate Aware Global Developed Equity CTB UCITS ETF usb 26 February 2021
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI EMU Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF EUR 9 March 2021
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Europe Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF EUR 9 March 2021
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF usb 9 March 2021
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Japan Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF JPY 11 March 2021
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI World Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF usD 11 March 2021
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Usb 20 July 2021
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Japan ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF JPY 21 July 2021
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI EMU ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF EUR 22 July 2021
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI ACWI Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF UsD 4 August 2021
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Emerging Markets Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF usb 5 August 2021
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI World Small Cap Socially Responsible UCITS ETF usb 19 August 2021
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Pacific (ex Japan) IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF usb 22 June 2022
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Australia ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF AUD 20 April 2023
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI AC Asia (ex Japan) ESG Leaders Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF usD 26 June 2023
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - S&P USA Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF usb 26 June 2023
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - S&P 500 Climate Transition ESG UCITS ETF' usD 18 March 2024
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - EUR Ultra-Short Bond ESG UCITS ETF? EUR 19 March 2024
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Canada ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF? CAD 19 March 2024
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI Emerging Markets ex China Socially Responsible UCITS ETF? usb 20 March 2024
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - Factor MSCI World Minimum Volatility ESG Leaders UCITS ETF# usb 26 August 2024
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - FTSE EPRA Nareit Developed Green UCITS ETF* usb 26 August 2024
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF* usb 26 August 2024
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA NSL UCITS ETF* usD 26 August 2024
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA Small Cap ESG Leaders UCITS ETF4 usb 26 August 2024
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI USA Tech 125 ESG Universal UCITS ETF* usb 26 August 2024
UBS (Irl) ETF plc - MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF# usb 26 August 2024

' The Fund launched on 18 March 2024
? The Fund launched on 19 March 2024.
® The Fund launched on 20 March 2024.
* The Fund launched on 26 August 2024.

Please note, in relation to Fund names used throughout this Annual Report, the prefix component, namely “UBS (Irl) ETF plc — “, of
each Fund’s name has been removed. All Funds follow this naming convention and are noted thus within this Annual Report.
Listings
Company's primary exchange is Euronext Dublin.
The Funds of the Company are listed on the following stock exchanges at 31 December 2024:
Fund Mexican
SIX XETRA LSE Borsa Italiana Euronext Stock Exchange Euronext

(Switzerland) (Germany) (UK) (italy) (Amsterdam) (Mexico) (Ireland)
MSCI USA UCITS ETF Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
MSCI USA Value UCITS ETF Yes Yes Yes Yes - - -
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Fund Mexican
SIX XETRA LSE Borsa ltaliana Euronext Stock Exchange Euronext

(Switzerland) (Germany) (UK) (italy) (Amsterdam) (Mexico) (Ireland)
MSCI World UCITS ETF Yes Yes  Yes Yes Yes - -
S&P 500 UCITS ETF Yes Yes  Yes Yes Yes - Yes
Solactive Global Pure Gold Miners UCITS ETF Yes Yes - - - - -
MSCI Australia UCITS ETF Yes - Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
MSCI USA hedged to EUR UCITS ETF Yes Yes - Yes Yes - -
MSCI USA hedged to CHF UCITS ETF Yes - - - - - -
S&P Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF Yes Yes - Yes Yes - Yes
MSCI United Kingdom IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Yes - Yes - Yes - Yes
Factor MSCI USA Low Volatility UCITS ETF Yes Yes  Yes Yes Yes - Yes
Factor MSCI USA Prime Value ESG UCITS ETF Yes Yes  Yes Yes Yes - Yes
Factor MSCI USA Quality ESG UCITS ETF Yes Yes  Yes Yes Yes - Yes
MSCI USA Select Factor Mix UCITS ETF Yes Yes  Yes Yes - Yes Yes
MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Yes Yes  Yes Yes Yes - Yes
MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Yes - - Yes - - -
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF Yes Yes  Yes Yes - - Yes
S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF Yes Yes Yes Yes - - Yes
MSCI USA Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Yes Yes  Yes Yes - - Yes
MSCI World Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Yes Yes  Yes Yes - - Yes
S&P 500 ESG ELITE UCITS ETF Yes Yes Yes Yes - - -
UBS Climate Aware Global Developed Equity CTB UCITS ETF Yes Yes - Yes - - -
MSCI EMU Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Yes Yes - Yes - - -
MSCI Europe Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Yes Yes - Yes - - -
MSCI USA Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Yes Yes - Yes - - -
MSCI Japan Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Yes Yes - Yes - - -
MSCI World Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Yes Yes - Yes - - -
MSCI USA ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Yes Yes - Yes - - -
MSCI Japan ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Yes Yes - Yes - - -
MSCI EMU ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Yes Yes - Yes - - -
MSCI ACWI Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Yes Yes - Yes - - -
MSCI Emerging Markets Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Yes Yes - Yes - - -
MSCI World Small Cap Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Yes Yes  Yes Yes - - Yes
MSCI Pacific (ex Japan) IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Yes Yes  Yes Yes - - -
MSCI Australia ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Yes - - - - - -
MSCI AC Asia (ex Japan) ESG Leaders Low Carbon Select
UCITS ETF Yes - - - - - -
S&P USA Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF Yes Yes  Yes Yes - - -
S&P 500 Climate Transition ESG UCITS ETF' Yes Yes  Yes - - - -
EUR Ultra-Short Bond ESG UCITS ETF - Yes - Yes - - -
MSCI Canada ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF- Yes Yes - - - - -
MS3CI Emerging Markets ex China Socially Responsible UCITS
ETF Yes Yes - Yes - - -
Factor MSCI World Minimum Volatility ESG Leaders UCITS ETF' Yes Yes - Yes - - -
FTSE EPRA Nareit Developed Green UCITS ETF' Yes Yes - Yes - - -
MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF" Yes Yes - Yes - - -
MSCI USA NSL UCITS ETF' Yes Yes - Yes - - -
MSCI USA Small Cap ESG Leaders UCITS ETF Yes Yes - Yes - - -
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Fund

Mexican

SIX XETRA LSE Borsa ltaliana Euronext Stock Exchange Euronext

(Switzerland) (Germany) (UK) (italy) (Amsterdam) (Mexico) (Ireland)

MSCI USA Tech 125 ESG Universal UCITS ETF' Yes Yes - Yes - - -

MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF Yes Yes - Yes - - -
' The Fund launched on 18 March 2024
? The Fund launched on 19 March 2024.
® The Fund launched on 20 March 2024.
* The Fund launched on 26 August 2024.
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Replication Strategy

Our approach to passive equity investment is to target full replication where possible, depending on the characteristics of the
benchmark index, the size of portfolio and the desired tracking accuracy. In some situations, the Investment Manager may utilise
stratified sampling where the Investment Manager deem this to be more efficient.

In practice, the majority of our Equity ETFs target full replication (holding all or virtually all the underlying constituents at weights at
or close to the index). As at 31 December 2024, no funds were considered sampled.

We typically utilize “stratified sampling” approach for our passive fixed income funds. “Stratified Sampling” is a quantitative based
process, bolstered with qualitative input from our portfolio managers, that aims to construct an optimal portfolio that efficiently
replicates benchmark risk characteristics with fewer securities that are sufficiently liquid and diversified. However, for certain
cases,the optimal portfolio may be achieved by full replication.

As at 31 December 2024 the following Fixed Income Sub-Fund utilised stratified sampling:
UBS (Irl) ETF plc — EUR Ultra-Short Bond ESG UCITS ETF
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements of UBS (Irl) ETF plc (the “Company”) for the
financial year ended 31 December 2024.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024, the Company
comprised fourty-eight sub-funds (the “Funds”):

MSCI USA UCITS ETF

MSCI USA Value UCITS ETF

MSCI World UCITS ETF

S&P 500 UCITS ETF

Solactive Global Pure Gold Miners UCITS ETF

MSCI Australia UCITS ETF

MSCI USA hedged to EUR UCITS ETF

MSCI USA hedged to CHF UCITS ETF

S&P Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF

MSCI United Kingdom IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF
Factor MSCI USA Low Volatility UCITS ETF

Factor MSCI USA Prime Value ESG UCITS ETF

Factor MSCI USA Quality ESG UCITS ETF

MSCI USA Select Factor Mix UCITS ETF

MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF

MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF

S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF

MSCI USA Socially Responsible UCITS ETF

MSCI World Socially Responsible UCITS ETF

S&P 500 ESG ELITE UCITS ETF

UBS Climate Aware Global Developed Equity CTB UCITS ETF
MSCI EMU Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

MSCI Europe Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

MSCI USA Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

MSCI Japan Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

MSCI World Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

MSCI USA ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF
MSCI Japan ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF
MSCI EMU ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF
MSCI ACWI Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

MSCI Emerging Markets Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF
MSCI World Small Cap Socially Responsible UCITS ETF
MSCI Pacific (ex Japan) IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF
MSCI Australia ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF
MSCI AC Asia (ex Japan) ESG Leaders Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF
S&P USA Dividend Avristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF

S&P 500 Climate Transition ESG UCITS ETF'

EUR Ultra-Short Bond ESG UCITS ETF?

MSCI Canada ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF?
MSCI Emerging Markets ex China Socially Responsible UCITS ETF®
Factor MSCI World Minimum Volatility ESG Leaders UCITS ETF*
FTSE EPRA Nareit Developed Green UCITS ETF*

MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF*

MSCI USA NSL UCITS ETF*

MSCI USA Small Cap ESG Leaders UCITS ETF*

MSCI USA Tech 125 ESG Universal UCITS ETF*

MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF*

"The Fund launched on 18 March 2024.
2The Fund launched on 19 March 2024.
3The Fund launched on 20 March 2024.
4The Fund launched on 26 August 2024.
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Results for the financial year and state of affairs

The results for the financial year are set out in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the state of affairs of the Funds and
the Company is set out in the Statement of Financial Position.

Directors

The following Directors held office on 31 December 2024 and
throughout the financial year then ended, except where
otherwise noted:

Alan White* (Irish)

Naomi Daly**,*** (Irish)

Audrey Collins**,**** (Irish)
Marie Antoinette Petrini* (Spanish)
Markus Goetschi* (Swiss)

William Kennedy™*,***** (Irish)

*Non-executive Directors
**Independent non-executive Directors
***Chairperson of the Board
****Resigned on 19 September 2024
**xxx Appointed on 19 September 2024

The Company has delegated the day-to-day management and
running of the Company to the Manager, UBS Fund
Management (Ireland) Limited, in accordance with the policies
approved by the Directors.

Directors’ and Secretary’s interests

Markus Goetschi is an employee of the Distributor, UBS Asset
Management Switzerland AG. Naomi Daly is an independent
director of the Manager, a subsidiary of UBS Group AG. Alan
White is an employee of the Manager. Marie Antoinette Petrini
is an employee of UBS Europe SE, Sucursal en Espana Madrid
branch.

With the exception of the two Subscriber Shares held by Alan
White and Markus Goetschi, none of the Directors or Secretary
had any interest during the financial year in the shares of the
Company or in any material contract for the provision of
services which was significant to the business of the Company.
See Note 5 to the financial statements for further details on the
Subscriber shares.

Adequate accounting records

The Directors ensure compliance with the Company’s obligation
under Section 281 of the Companies Act 2014 to keep
adequate accounting records by appointing competent persons
to be responsible for them. The accounting records are kept by
State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited, at 78 Sir John
Rogerson’s Quay, Dublin 2, Ireland.

Dividends

Details of Distributions paid during the financial year are
included in Note 8 of the Financial Statements.



Review of Business

There was no change in the nature of the Company’s business
during the financial year. A detailed review of business is
included in the Investment Managers’ Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Company are
the investments risks associated with the portfolio of
investments held by the Sub-Funds and the operational risks
associated with their management and administration. The
Company is also subject to the risk that its climate-focused
investment strategy may select or exclude securities of certain
issuers for reasons other than investment performance
considerations. Climate criteria and risks are considered as part
of the index selection process. Every Fund has specific risks,
which may significantly increase under unusual market
conditions. The Funds” assets are passively managed. As a result,
the net asset value of the Funds is directly dependent on the
performance of the underlying index. Losses that could be
avoided via active management will not be offset.

Details of the Company’s risk management objectives and
policies are included in Note 3 of the Financial Statements.

Significant events during the financial year
Please see Note 17 for significant events during the financial year.
Significant events after the financial year end

Please see Note 18 for significant events after the financial year
end.

Independent Auditor

The Company’s Independent auditors, Ernst & Young, were
appointed on 23 October 2020 in accordance with

section 383 (1) of the Companies Act. Ernst & Young have
indicated their willingness to remain in office in accordance with
Section 383 (2) of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended).
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Corporate Governance Statement

General Principles

The Company is subject to the requirements of the Companies
Act 2014, UCITS Regulations and the Central Bank UCITS
Regulations, as applicable to the Company.

The European Communities (Directive 2006/46/EC) Regulations
(S.I. 450 of 2009 and S.I. 83 of 2010) (the “Regulations”)
requires the inclusion of a corporate governance statement in
the Directors’ Report.

Although there is no specific statutory corporate governance
code applicable to Irish collective investment schemes whose
shares are admitted to trading on an exchange, the Company is
subject to corporate governance practices imposed by:

(i) The Companies Act 2014 which is available for inspection
at the registered office of the Company; and may also
be obtained at http://www.irishstatutebook.ie/

(i) The Articles of Association of the Company which are
available for inspection at the registered office of the
Company and at the Companies Registration Office in
Ireland;

(iii)  The Central Bank of Ireland (the “Central Bank”) in the
Regulations and other guidance applicable to the Company
which can be obtained from the Central Bank’s website
at: http://www.centralbank.ie/requlation/Pages/home.aspx
and are available for inspection at the registered office
of the Company; and

(iv)  The Irish Stock Exchange (“ISE") through the ISE Code of
Listing Requirements and Procedures which can be
obtained from the ISE's website at: http://ise.ie/Products-
Services/Sponsors-and-Advisors/Code-of-Listing-
Reguirements-and-Procedures-for-Investment-Funds.pdf

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board") formally
adopted the Irish Funds (“IF"”) Code with effect from
31 December 2012.

The IF Code is available for inspection at the registered office of
the Company and may also be obtained at www.irishfunds.ie.
The Board has assessed the measures included in the IF Code as
being consistent with its corporate governance practices and
procedures for the financial year.

The Board did not adopt any further corporate governance
codes for the financial year ended 31 December 2024.

Internal Control and Risk Management Systems in Relation to
Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control and risk management systems of the
Company in relation to the financial reporting process. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of error or fraud in achieving the Company’s financial reporting
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The Board has procedures in place to ensure that all relevant
books of account are properly maintained and are readily
available, including production of annual and half yearly
financial statements. The Board has appointed State Street Fund
Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Administrator”) to maintain the
books and records of the Company. The Administrator is
authorised and regulated by the Central Bank and must comply
with the rules imposed by the Central Bank. From time to time,
the Board of Directors examines and evaluates the
Administrator’s financial accounting and reporting routines. The
annual financial statements of the Company are produced by
the Administrator and reviewed by the Investment Managers.
They are required to be approved by the Board and the annual
and half yearly financial statements of the Company are
required to be filed with the Central Bank.

During the financial year of these financial statements, the
Board was responsible for the review and approval of the
unaudited half yearly financial statements as set out in the
Directors Responsibility Statement. The statutory financial
statements are required to be audited by independent auditors
who report annually to the Board on their findings. The Board
monitors and evaluates the independent auditor’s performance,
qualifications and independence. As part of its review
procedures, the Board receives presentations from relevant
parties including consideration of International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and their impact on the annual
financial statements, and presentations and reports on the audit
process. The Board evaluates and discusses significant
accounting and reporting issues as the need arises.

Dealings with Shareholders

The convening and conduct of shareholders’ meetings are
governed by the Articles of Association of the Company and the
Companies Act 2014. Although the Directors may convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company at any time, the
Directors were required to convene the first annual general
meeting of the Company within eighteen months o
incorporation and fifteen months of the date of the previous
annual general meeting thereafter, provided that an annual
general meeting is held within each calendar year.

At least twenty-one clear days’ notice of every annual general
meeting and any meeting convened for the passing of a special
resolution must be given to shareholders and fourteen days'’
notice must be given in the case of any other general meeting,
unless the auditors of the Company and all the shareholders of
the Company entitled to attend and vote agree to shorter
notice. Two shareholders present either in person or by proxy
constitutes a quorum at a general meeting. The share capital of
the Company is divided into different classes of shares and the
Companies Act 2014 and the Articles of Association provide
that the quorum for a general meeting convened to consider
any alteration to the rights attached to any class of shares, is
two or more shareholders present in person or by proxy, holding
or representing by proxy at least one third of the issued shares
of the relevant class.

Every holder of participating shares or non-participating shares
present, in person or by proxy who votes on a show of hands is
entitled to one vote. On a poll, every holder of participating
shares present, in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote in
respect of each share held by him, and every holder of non-
participating shares is entitled to one vote in respect of all non-
participating shares held by him. At any general meeting of the



Company, a resolution put to the vote of the meeting is decided
on a show of hands unless, before or upon the declaration of
the result of the show of hands, a poll is demanded by the
chairman of the general meeting, or by at least five members or
shareholders present, in person or by proxy, having the right to
vote at such meeting, or any holder or holders of participating
shares present, in person or by proxy, representing at least one
tenth of the shares in issue having the right to vote at such
meeting.

Shareholders may resolve to sanction an ordinary resolution or
special resolution at a shareholders’ meeting. Alternatively, a
resolution in writing signed by all of the shareholders and
holders of non-participating shares for the time being entitled
to attend and vote on such resolution at a general meeting of
the Company, will be valid and effective for all purposes as if
the resolution had been passed at a general meeting of the
Company duly convened and held. An ordinary resolution of the
Company (or of the shareholders of a particular fund or class of
shares) requires a simple majority of the votes cast by the
shareholders voting, in person or by proxy, at the meeting at
which the resolution is proposed. A special resolution of the
Company (or of the shareholders of a particular fund or class of
shares) requires a majority of not less than 75% of shareholders
present, in person or by proxy, and voting in general meeting in
order to pass a special resolution including a resolution to
amend the Articles of Association.

Board Composition and Activities

In accordance with the Companies Act 2014 and the Articles of
Association, unless otherwise determined by an ordinary
resolution of the Company in general meeting, the number of
Directors may not be less than two nor more than twelve.
Currently the Board is comprised of five non-executive Directors
of which, one is an independent non-executive Director. Details
of the current Directors are set out above, under the heading
“Directors”.

The business of the Company is managed by the Directors, who
exercise all such powers of the Company as are not by the
Companies Act 2014 or by the Articles of Association of the
Company required to be exercised by the Company in general
meeting.

The Board is responsible for the Company’s overall direction and
strategy and to this end it reserves the decision making power
on issues such as the determination of medium and long term
goals, review of managerial performance, organisational
structure and capital needs and commitments to achieve the
Company’s strategic goals. To achieve these responsibilities, the
Board meets four times a year to review the operations of the
Company, address matters of strategic importance and to
receive reports from the Administrator, Depositary and the
Investment Managers. However, a Director may, and the
Company Secretary on the requisition of a Director will, at any
time summon a meeting of the Directors and ad hoc meetings
in addition to the four meetings are convened as required.

Questions arising at any meeting of the Directors are
determined by the Chairman. In the case of an equality of votes,
the Chairman of the meeting at which the show of hands takes
place or at which the poll is demanded shall be entitled to a
second or casting vote. The quorum necessary for the
transaction of business at a meeting of the Directors is two.
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A sub-committee of the Board operated during the financial
year with authority to bind the Board with respect to certain
operational issues such as activating share classes and waiving
of dealing deadlines. All decisions of the sub-committee are
reported to the Board on a regular basis.

Description and objective of the Company’s Diversity Policy

The Company believes in diversity and values the benefits that
diversity can bring to its board of directors (the "Board"). The
Board acknowledges the benefits of greater diversity, including
diversity of gender, experience, thought, background and
attributes at senior management levels and the importance
diversity in ensuring good governance and sound decision-
making.

Implementation of the Diversity Policy

Due to the size, nature and complexity of the Company's
business, the Board does not consider it appropriate to apply
targets for diversity or to establish a nomination committee.
Diversity acts as an essential safeguard against the emergence
of group-think and harmful industry practices and as such the
Company remains committed to ensuring that the Board brings
a wide range of skills, knowledge, experience, background and
perspectives. When assessing Board composition or identifying
suitable candidates for appointment or re-election to the Board,
the Company will consider candidates on merit against objective
criteria, in the context of the overall balance of skills and
backgrounds that the Board needs to maintain in order to
remain effective, having due regard to the benefits of diversity,
the needs of the Company and the best interests of its
shareholders. Being aware of the risks associated with the lack
of diversity, the Board considers that the promotion of a diverse
Board makes prudent business sense and makes for better
corporate governance. The Company seeks to maintain a
diverse Board comprised of talented and dedicated directors
with a diverse mix of expertise, qualifications and backgrounds.

Results of the Diversity Policy in the financial year

The Board is currently comprised of five individuals, all of whom
are non-executive, and two of whom are independent. The
directors have diverse backgrounds and a diverse range of
expertise and qualifications. They include residents of Ireland,
Spain and Switzerland. Their areas of expertise include
investment management, regulation, company management
and delegate oversight, governance, distribution, sales, product
development and operations, economics, business
administration, finance and taxation.

Connected Persons

Regulation 43(1) of the UCITS Regulations “Restrictions of
transactions with connected persons” states that A responsible
person shall ensure that any transaction between a UCITS and a
connected person is conducted a) at arm’s length, and b) in the
best interest of the unit-holders of the UCITS".

As required under UCITS Regulation 81(4), the Directors are
satisfied that there are in place arrangements, evidenced by
written procedures, to ensure that the obligations that are

prescribed by Regulation 43(1) are applied to all transactions



with a connected party; and all transactions with connected
parties that were entered into during the year to which the
report relates complied with the obligations that are prescribed
by Regulation 43(1).

Audit Committee

The Directors believe that there is no requirement to form an
audit committee as the Board is formed of non-executive
Directors with one independent Director and the Company
complies with the provisions of the Irish Funds Corporate
Governance Code. The Directors have delegated the day-to-day
investment management and administration of the Company to
the Manager. The Manager has delegated certain duties to the
Investment Managers and appointed the Administrator to act as
administrator of the Company.

Directors' Fees

The charge for Directors’ remuneration during the financial year
ended 31 December 2024 amounted to

USD 70,164 (31 December 2023: USD 70,362), of which

USD 17,803 (31 December 2023: USD 22,092) was payable at
the financial year end. Non-Independent Directors of the
Company do not receive any additional fees for their role as
Directors.

Direct brokerage

There was no direct brokerage services utilised for the financial
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).
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Directors Responsibility Statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report
and financial statements in accordance with Irish law and
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union (“IFRS").

Irish company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or
loss of the Company for that financial year. Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS and applicable Irish law.

Under Irish law the Directors shall not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of Company's assets, liabilities and financial position as at
the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the
Company for the financial year.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are
required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;

 state whether the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards and
identify the standards in question, subject to any material
departures from those standards being disclosed and
explained in the notes to the financial statements; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to:

« correctly record and explain the transactions of the
Company;

« enable, at any time, the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the Company to be determined with
reasonable accuracy; and

« enable the directors to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2014 and enable those
financial statements to be audited.

The Company’s financial statements will be published
electronically on a web site maintained by the Investment
Managers, namely www.ubs.com/etf. The Directors are
responsible for ensuring that the financial statements provided
to the Investment Managers for publication on the website are
consistent with the manually signed financial statements.
Legislation in the Republic of Ireland governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company. In this regard they have entrusted the assets of the
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Company to State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited (the
"Depositary”) who has been appointed as Depositary and
Trustee to the Company pursuant to the terms of a depositary
agreement. The Directors are also responsible for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities. The Directors comply with the Company’s
obligation to keep adequate accounting records by the
delegation of the accounting function to the Administrator. The
measures taken by the Directors to secure compliance with the
Company's obligations to keep adequate accounting records are
the use of appropriate systems and procedures and employment
of competent persons. The accounting records are kept and
maintained by the Administrator at 78 Sir John Rogerson's
Quay, Dublin 2, Ireland.

Directors compliance statement

The Directors are responsible for securing the Company’s
compliance with its "relevant obligations" under section 225 of
the Companies Act 2014 (as defined in section 225(1) thereof,
which includes compliance with tax law and certain company
law obligations.

As required under section 225(3), the Directors confirm that:

a) a compliance policy statement has been drawn up setting
out the Company’s policies (that, in the Directors’
opinion, are appropriate to the Company) with respect to
compliance by the Company with its relevant obligations;

b) appropriate arrangements or structures are in place that,
in the Directors’ opinion, are designed to secure material
compliance with the Company’s relevant obligations; and

Q) a review has been conducted during the financial year
ending 31 December 2024 of the arrangements or
structures referred to in paragraph (b) above.

The Directors are also responsible for preparing a Directors’
Report that complies with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2014.

The Directors confirm to the best of their knowledge, belief and
understanding, having made the appropriate enquiries, that
they have complied with the above requirements in preparing
the financial statements.

Statement of relevant audit information

As at the date this Directors' Report was approved and signed
(set out below), each Director is satisfied that:

a) there is no relevant audit information of which the
Company’s statutory auditors are unaware; and

b) s/he has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have
taken as a director in order to make herself or himself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Company’s statutory auditors are aware of that
information; and

Q) where “relevant audit information” means information
needed by the Company’s statutory auditors in
connection with preparing their report.



Docusign Envelope ID: 254231A8-0042-41DE-BFF9-7A59E72D944E

For and on behalf of the Board

DocuSigned by: Signed by:

BCEDI2ZAZEIE446.

Naomi Daly William Kenned&
Director Director
15 April 2025

Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2024

20



Depositary’s Report

To the Shareholders of UBS (Irl) ETF plc (the “Company”)

We have enquired into the conduct of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2024, in our capacity as
Depositary to the Company.

This report including the opinion has been prepared for and
solely for the shareholders in the Company as a body, in
accordance with Regulation 34, (1), (3) and (4) in Part 5 of the
European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment
in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011, as amended, (the
"UCITS Regulations"), and for no other purpose. We do not, in
giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown.

Responsibilities of the Depositary

Our duties and responsibilities are outlined in Regulation 34, (1),
(3) and (4) in Part 5 of the UCITS Regulations. One of those
duties is to enquire into the conduct of the Company in each
annual accounting period and report thereon to the
shareholders.

Our report shall state whether, in our opinion, the Company has
been managed in that period in accordance with the provisions
of the Company’s constitution (the "Constitution") and the
UCITS Regulations. It is the overall responsibility of the
Company to comply with these provisions. If the Company has
not so complied, we as Depositary must state why this is the
case and outline the steps which we have taken to rectify the
situation.

Basis of Depositary Opinion

The Depositary conducts such reviews as it, in its reasonable
opinion, considers necessary in order to comply with its duties
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as outlined in Regulation 34, (1), (3) and (4) in Part 5 of the
UCITS Regulations and to ensure that, in all material respects,
the Company has been managed (i) in accordance with the
limitations imposed on its investment and borrowing powers by
the provisions of the Constitution and the UCITS Regulations
and (ii) otherwise in accordance with the Constitution and the
appropriate regulations.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has been managed during the year,
in all material respects:

(i) in accordance with the limitations imposed on the
investment and borrowing powers of the Company by the
Constitution, the UCITS Regulations and the Central
Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act
2013 (Section 48(1); (Undertakings for Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019, as
amended, (the "Central Bank UCITS Regulations") and

(i) otherwise in accordance with the provisions of the
Constitution, the UCITS Regulations and the Central Bank
UCITS Regulations.
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State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited
78 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay

Dublin 2

Ireland

15 April 2025
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Performance Tables

Performance from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024

Fund Index Tracking Tracking

Performance? Performance® Differencec TERY Error®

Share Class Name (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
MSCI USA UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 24.23% 24.13% 0.10% 0.10% 0.01%
MSCI USA UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 24.75% 24.58% 0.17% 0.07% 0.01%
MSCI USA UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 24.74% 24.58% 0.16% 0.07% 0.02%
MSCI USA UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-UKdis 24.74% 24.58% 0.16% 0.07% 0.02%
MSCI USA Value UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 13.74% 13.55% 0.19% 0.20% 0.03%
MSCI World UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 18.86% 18.67% 0.19% 0.10% 0.06%
MSCI World UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 18.86% 18.67% 0.19% 0.10% 0.06%
MSCI World UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc’ n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.13% n.a.
MSCI World UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc? n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.13% n.a.
MSCI World UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis? n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.13% n.a.
S&P 500 UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 19.51% 19.34% 0.17% 0.12% 0.05%
S&P 500 UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 22.62% 22.47% 0.15% 0.12% 0.02%
S&P 500 UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 24.15% 24.04% 0.11% 0.12% 0.02%
S&P 500 UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 24.66% 24.50% 0.16% 0.09% 0.02%
Solactive Global Pure Gold Miners UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 26.77% 27.22% (0.45%) 0.43% 0.10%
MSCI Australia UCITS ETF Class (AUD) A-acc 11.15% 11.56% (0.41%) 0.40% 0.06%
MSCI Australia UCITS ETF Class (AUD) A-dis 11.17% 11.56% (0.39%) 0.40% 0.07%
MSCI Australia UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 7.77% 8.17% (0.40%) 0.43% 0.05%
MSCI Australia UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 10.65% 11.06% (0.41%) 0.43% 0.05%
MSCI Australia UCITS ETF Class (hedged to USD) A-acc 12.45% 12.90% (0.45%) 0.43% 0.07%
MSCI Australia UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 11.96% 12.42% (0.46%)  0.43% 0.06%
MSCI USA hedged to EUR UCITS ETF Class (EUR) A-acc 22.72% 22.57% 0.15% 0.10% 0.04%
MSCI USA hedged to EUR UCITS ETF Class (EUR) A-dis 22.72% 22.57% 0.15% 0.10% 0.04%
MSCI USA hedged to CHF UCITS ETF Class (CHF) A-acc 19.57% 19.42% 0.15% 0.10% 0.06%
S&P Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis 7.89% 7.82% 0.07% 0.33% 0.11%
S&P Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 1.17% 1.06% 0.11% 0.30% 0.11%
MSCI United Kingdom IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (GBP) A-dis 9.57% 10.07% (0.50%) 0.23% 0.07%
MSCI United Kingdom IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 5.41% 5.90% (0.49%) 0.26% 0.08%
MSCI United Kingdom IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 8.17% 8.66% (0.49%) 0.26% 0.07%
Factor MSCI USA Low Volatility UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 11.53% 11.32% 0.21% 0.21% 0.07%
Factor MSCI USA Low Volatility UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 13.56% 13.35% 0.21% 0.18% 0.06%
Factor MSCI USA Prime Value ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 5.73% 5.69% 0.04% 0.28% 0.05%
Factor MSCI USA Prime Value ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 7.06% 7.06% n.a. 0.28% 0.04%
Factor MSCI USA Prime Value ESG UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 7.80% 7.74% 0.06% 0.25% 0.04%
Factor MSCI USA Quality ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 15.54% 15.65% (0.11%) 0.28% 0.05%
Factor MSCI USA Quality ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 18.61% 18.71% (0.10%) 0.28% 0.02%
Factor MSCI USA Quality ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 20.02% 20.24% (0.22%) 0.28% 0.04%
Factor MSCI USA Quality ESG UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 20.69% 20.80% (0.11%) 0.25% 0.02%
MSCI USA Select Factor Mix UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 13.27% 13.20% 0.07% 0.28% 0.07%
MSCI USA Select Factor Mix UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 16.26% 16.21% 0.05% 0.28% 0.05%
MSCI USA Select Factor Mix UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 18.31% 18.26% 0.05% 0.25% 0.04%
MSCI USA Select Factor Mix UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 18.30% 18.26% 0.04% 0.25% 0.04%
MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 17.56% 17.74% (0.18%) 0.28% 0.05%
MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 17.55% 17.74% (0.19%) 0.28% 0.05%
MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 20.21% 20.41% (0.20%) 0.28% 0.04%
MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 20.84% 21.11% (0.27%) 0.28% 0.05%
MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc® n.a. n.a. na. 0.28% n.a.
MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to USD) A-acc 21.10% 21.32% (0.22%) 0.28% 0.06%
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MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 17.99% 18.18% (0.19%) 0.25% 0.05%
MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 18.00% 18.18% (0.18%) 0.25% 0.05%
MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 17.01% 17.09% (0.08%) 0.26% 0.04%
MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 17.02% 17.09% (0.07%) 0.26% 0.06%
MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 19.66% 19.75% (0.09%) 0.26% 0.03%
MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 20.50% 20.64% (0.14%) 0.26% 0.04%
MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc 15.92% 15.90% 0.02% 0.26% 0.08%
MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (hedged to USD) A-acc 20.72% 20.84% (0.12%)  0.26% 0.04%
MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 17.57% 17.64% (0.07%) 0.23% 0.04%
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF Class (hedged to AUD) A-acc* n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.23% n.a.
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 8.21% 8.06% 0.15% 0.23% 0.10%
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 8.21% 8.06% 0.15% 0.23% 0.10%
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 11.10% 10.94% 0.16%  0.23% 0.08%
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 12.59% 12.40% 0.19% 0.23% 0.10%
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF Class (hedged to USD) A-acc 13.08% 12.94% 0.14% 0.23% 0.09%
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 8.69% 8.54% 0.15% 0.20% 0.09%
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 8.67% 8.54% 0.13% 0.20% 0.09%
S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 18.48% 18.35% 0.13% 0.13% 0.06%
S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 21.58% 21.47% 0.11% 0.13% 0.03%
S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 23.00% 23.03% (0.03%) 0.13% 0.07%
S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 23.62% 23.50% 0.12% 0.10% 0.02%
S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 23.62% 23.50% 0.12% 0.10% 0.02%
MSCI USA Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 13.89% 13.81% 0.08% 0.22% 0.07%
MSCI USA Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 16.94% 16.88% 0.06%  0.22% 0.04%
MSCI USA Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 18.31% 18.30% 0.01% 0.22% 0.03%
MSCI USA Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 18.93% 18.87% 0.06% 0.19% 0.02%
MSCI USA Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 18.94% 18.87% 0.07% 0.19% 0.03%
MSCI World Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 14.48% 14.50% (0.02%) 0.22% 0.06%
MSCI World Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 17.48% 17.51% (0.03%) 0.22% 0.04%
MSCI World Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 18.87% 18.96% (0.09%) 0.22% 0.04%
MSCI World Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 16.04% 16.05% (0.01%) 0.19% 0.04%
MSCI World Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 16.05% 16.05% n.a. 0.19% 0.04%
S&P 500 ESG ELITE UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 15.80% 15.72% 0.08% 0.18% 0.03%
S&P 500 ESG ELITE UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 17.26% 17.21% 0.05% 0.18% 0.02%
S&P 500 ESG ELITE UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 17.78% 17.68% 0.10% 0.15% 0.01%
UBS Climate Aware Global Developed Equity CTB UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 15.10% 15.09% 0.01% 0.19% 0.12%
MSCI EMU Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Class (EUR) A-acc 6.82% 6.65% 0.17% 0.14% 0.18%
MSCI Europe Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Class (EUR) A-acc 7.19% 7.15% 0.04% 0.15% 0.11%
MSCI USA Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 24.27% 24.19% 0.08% 0.09% 0.02%
MSCI Japan Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Class (ir-hedged to EUR) A-acc 11.80% 12.02% (0.22%)  0.15% 0.14%
MSCI Japan Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Class (JPY) A-acc 8.94% 9.01% (0.07%) 0.12% 0.08%
MSCI World Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 18.11% 18.11% n.a. 0.15% 0.05%
MSCI USA ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 24.77% 24.60% 0.17% 0.07% 0.02%
MSCI Japan ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (JPY) A-acc 21.27% 21.33% (0.06%) 0.15% 0.10%
MSCI EMU ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (EUR) A-acc 11.53% 11.09% 0.44% 0.12% 0.22%
MSCI ACWI Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 17.02% 17.01% 0.01% 0.18% 0.06%
MSCI Emerging Markets Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 6.50% 6.91% (0.41%) 0.16% 0.26%
MSCI World Small Cap Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc® n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.26% n.a.
MSCI World Small Cap Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 5.22% 5.29% (0.07%) 0.23% 0.07%
MSCI World Small Cap Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 5.21% 5.29% (0.08%)  0.23% 0.07%
Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 23



Fund Index Tracking Tracking

Performance?® Performance® Difference® TER® Error®

Share Class Name (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
MSCI Pacific (ex Japan) IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 11.18% 11.39% (0.21%) 0.22% 0.07%
MSCI Pacific (ex Japan) IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 3.75% 3.92% (0.17%)  0.19% 0.08%
MSCI Australia ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (AUD) A-acc 14.59% 15.07% (0.48%) 0.43% 0.07%
MSCI AC Asia (ex Japan) ESG Leaders Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 9.51% 9.63% (0.12%) 0.30% 0.32%
S&P USA Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 3.91% 3.49% 0.42% 0.20% 0.12%
S&P USA Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis 1.86% 1.47% 0.39% 0.23% 0.12%
S&P 500 Climate Transition ESG UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc® n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.07% n.a.
S&P 500 Climate Transition ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc® n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.10% n.a.
S&P 500 Climate Transition ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis® n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.10% n.a.
EUR Ultra-Short Bond ESG UCITS ETF Class (EUR) A-acc® n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.08% n.a.
MSCI Canada ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (CAD) A-acc® n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.33% n.a.
MSCI Emerging Markets ex China Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc” n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.20% n.a.
Factor MSCI World Minimum Volatility ESG Leaders UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc® n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.25% n.a.
FTSE EPRA Nareit Developed Green UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis® n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.25% n.a.
MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc® n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.10% n.a.
MSCI USA NSL UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc® n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.09% n.a.
MSCI USA Small Cap ESG Leaders UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc® n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.20% n.a.
MSCI USA Tech 125 ESG Universal UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc® n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.18% n.a.
MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc® n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.15% n.a.
MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A — acc® n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.18% n.a.
MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A — acc® n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.18% n.a.

T Share class launched on 12 March 2024.

2 Share class launched on 24 April 2024.

3 Share class terminated on 8 November 2024.

4 Share class launched on 8 July 2024.

5 Fund and its share class launched on 18 March 2024.
© Fund and its share class launched on 19 March 2024.
7 Fund and its share class launched on 20 March 2024.
8 Fund and its share class launched on 26 August 2024.

Note: Not all Share Classes were in existence for the full
financial year of these financial statements. The following Share
Classes launched during the financial year ended 31 December
2024: MSCI World UCITS (hedged to CHF) A-acc, MSCI World
UCITS (hedged to EUR) A-acc, MSCI World UCITS (hedged to
GBP) A —dis, EUR Ultra-Short Bond ESG UCITS ETF (EUR) A-acc,
S&P 500 Climate Transition ESG UCITS ETF (USD) A-acc, S&P
500 Climate Transition ESG (hedged to EUR) A-acc, S&P

500 Climate Transition ESG (hedged to GBP) A-dis, MSCI
Canada ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF (CAD)
A-acc, MSCI Emerging Markets ex China Socially Responsible
UCITS ETF (USD) A-acc, Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF
(hedged to AUD) A-acc, Factor MSCI World Minimum Volatility
ESG Leaders UCITS ETF (USD) A-acc, FTSE EPRA Nareit
Developed Green UCITS ETF (USD) A-dis, MSCI USA ESG
Leaders UCITS ETF (USD) A-acc, MSCI USA NSL UCITS ETF (USD)
A-acc, MSCI USA Small Cap ESG Leaders UCITS ETF (USD)
A-acc, MSCI USA Tech 125 ESG Universal UCITS ETF (USD)
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A-acc, MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF (USD) A-acc, MSCI
World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF (hedged to CHF) A — acc and
MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF (hedged to EUR) A — acc.
For these Share Classes, the performance data in the table
above is not for the full financial year, it is from launch date to
the financial year end date. For the financial year ended

31 December 2024, the tracking error for these share classes is
n.a. since the share classes launched for less than full applicable
12-month period.

The following Share Classes terminated during the financial year
ended 31 December 2024: MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible
UCITS ETF Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc and MSCI World Small Cap
Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc. No
performance data is included for share classes which terminated
during the financial year.
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MSCI USA UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 24.59% 24.46% 0.13% 0.19% 0.04%
MSCI USA UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 26.67% 26.49% 0.18% 0.14% 0.04%
MSCI USA UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 26.66% 26.49% 0.17% 0.14% 0.05%
MSCI USA UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-UKdis 26.66% 26.49% 0.17% 0.14% 0.05%
MSCI USA Value UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 8.64% 8.35% 0.29% 0.20% 0.06%
MSCI World UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 23.79% 23.79% — 0.29% 0.06%
MSCI World UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 23.79% 23.79% — 0.29% 0.06%
S&P 500 UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 19.54% 19.35% 0.19% 0.22% 0.04%
S&P 500 UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 22.29% 22.19% 0.10% 0.22% 0.02%
S&P 500 UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 23.71% 23.66% 0.05% 0.22% 0.03%
S&P 500 UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 25.84% 25.67% 0.17% 0.12% 0.03%
Solactive Global Pure Gold Miners UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 10.13% 10.53% (0.40%) 0.43% 0.08%
MSCI Australia UCITS ETF Class (AUD) A-acc 13.67% 14.09% (0.42%) 0.40% 0.08%
MSCI Australia UCITS ETF Class (AUD) A-dis 13.63% 14.09% (0.46%) 0.40% 0.08%
MSCI Australia UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 10.63% 1M1.11% (0.48%) 0.50% 0.08%
MSCI Australia UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 13.18% 13.72% (0.54%)  0.50% 0.09%
MSCI Australia UCITS ETF Class (hedged to USD) A-acc 16.21% 16.80% (0.59%) 0.50% 0.08%
MSCI Australia UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 14.69% 15.33% (0.64%) 0.50% 0.08%
MSCI USA hedged to EUR UCITS ETF Class (EUR) A-acc 23.18% 22.99% 0.19% 0.19% 0.04%
MSCI USA hedged to EUR UCITS ETF Class (EUR) A-dis 23.18% 22.99% 0.19% 0.19% 0.04%
MSCI USA hedged to CHF UCITS ETF Class (CHF) A-acc 20.36% 20.13% 0.23% 0.19% 0.06%
S&P Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis 10.55% 10.59% (0.04%) 0.35% 0.15%
S&P Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 12.00% 11.97% 0.03% 0.30% 0.14%
MSCI United Kingdom IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (GBP) A-dis 7.30% 7.69% (0.39%) 0.23% 0.09%
MSCI United Kingdom IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 3.47% 3.76% (0.29%) 0.28% 0.12%
MSCI United Kingdom IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 5.73% 6.11% (0.38%)  0.28% 0.09%
Factor MSCI USA Low Volatility UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 4.02% 3.82% 0.20% 0.30% 0.05%
Factor MSCI USA Low Volatility UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 7.02% 6.82% 0.20% 0.25% 0.05%
Factor MSCI USA Prime Value ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 12.45% 12.41% 0.04% 0.30% 0.05%
Factor MSCI USA Prime Value ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 13.84% 13.83% 0.01% 0.30% 0.07%
Factor MSCI USA Prime Value ESG UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 15.73% 15.66% 0.07% 0.25% 0.07%
Factor MSCI USA Quality ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc’ 19.36% 19.43% (0.07%)  0.30% n.a.
Factor MSCI USA Quality ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 31.72% 31.79% (0.07%) 0.30% 0.04%
Factor MSCI USA Quality ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 33.22% 33.27% (0.05%) 0.30% 0.05%
Factor MSCI USA Quality ESG UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 35.43% 35.50% (0.07%) 0.25% 0.04%
MSCI USA Select Factor Mix UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 10.59% 10.39% 0.20% 0.30% 0.06%
MSCI USA Select Factor Mix UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 13.13% 13.00% 0.13% 0.30% 0.05%
MSCI USA Select Factor Mix UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 16.30% 16.17% 0.13% 0.25% 0.05%
MSCI USA Select Factor Mix UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 16.30% 16.17% 0.13% 0.25% 0.05%
MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 20.65% 20.76% (0.11%) 0.33% 0.06%
MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 20.65% 20.76% (0.11%) 0.33% 0.06%
MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 23.92% 24.09% (0.17%)  0.33% 0.04%
MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 24.85% 25.08% (0.23%) 0.33% 0.03%
MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc 21.65% 21.55% 0.10% 0.33% 0.11%
MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to USD) A-acc 27.43% 27.65% (0.22%) 0.33% 0.05%
MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 26.90% 27.03% (0.13%) 0.28% 0.04%
MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 26.90% 27.03% (0.13%) 0.28% 0.04%
MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 17.68% 17.65% 0.03% 0.30% 0.07%
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MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 17.73% 17.65% 0.08% 0.30% 0.06%
MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 20.80% 20.82% (0.02%) 0.30% 0.05%
MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 21.84% 21.91% (0.07%)  0.30% 0.05%
MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc 18.35% 18.11% 0.24% 0.30% 0.10%
MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (hedged to USD) A-acc 24.18% 24.24% (0.06%) 0.30% 0.05%
MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 23.79% 23.76% 0.03% 0.25% 0.05%
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 11.59% 11.35% 0.24% 0.30% 0.10%
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 11.60% 11.35% 0.25%  0.30% 0.09%
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 14.19% 13.99% 0.20% 0.30% 0.08%
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 15.69% 15.53% 0.16% 0.30% 0.08%
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF Class (hedged to USD) A-acc 17.40% 17.23% 0.17% 0.30% 0.08%
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 17.57% 17.27% 0.30% 0.20% 0.08%
Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 17.58% 17.27% 0.31% 0.20% 0.07%
S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 21.14% 20.94% 0.20% 0.17% 0.04%
S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 23.93% 23.83% 0.10% 0.17% 0.02%
S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 25.46% 25.30% 0.16% 0.17% 0.05%
S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 27.49% 27.36% 0.13% 0.12% 0.02%
S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 27.48% 27.36% 0.12% 0.12% 0.02%
MSCI USA Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 25.18% 25.01% 0.17% 0.25% 0.09%
MSCI USA Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 28.14% 28.01% 0.13% 0.25% 0.09%
MSCI USA Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis? n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.25% n.a.
MSCI USA Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 29.43% 29.43% — 0.25% 0.09%
MSCI USA Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 31.73% 31.67% 0.06% 0.22% 0.10%
MSCI USA Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 31.72% 31.67% 0.05%  0.22% 0.10%
MSCI World Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 23.15% 23.41% (0.26%) 0.27% 0.20%
MSCI World Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 26.21% 26.33% (0.12%) 0.27% 0.05%
MSCI World Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 27.62% 27.80% (0.18%) 0.27% 0.05%
MSCI World Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 29.09% 29.16% (0.07%) 0.22% 0.05%
MSCI World Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 29.09% 29.16% (0.07%)  0.22% 0.05%
S&P 500 ESG ELITE UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc? n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.20% n.a.
S&P 500 ESG ELITE UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 25.26% 25.14% 0.12% 0.20% 0.02%
S&P 500 ESG ELITE UCITS ETF Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 26.70% 26.61% 0.09% 0.20% 0.04%
S&P 500 ESG ELITE UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 28.81% 28.68% 0.13% 0.15% 0.02%
UBS Climate Aware Global Developed Equity CTB UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 22.60% 22.35% 0.25% 0.19% 0.10%
MSCI EMU Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Class (EUR) A-acc 17.68% 17.41% 0.27% 0.18% 0.21%
MSCI Europe Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Class (EUR) A-acc 17.60% 17.53% 0.07% 0.18% 0.11%
MSCI USA Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 28.99% 28.68% 0.31% 0.12% 0.15%
MSCI Japan Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Class (ir-hedged to EUR) A-acc 27.76% 28.31% (0.55%) 0.21% 0.11%
MSCI Japan Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Class (JPY) A-acc 23.85% 24.03% (0.18%) 0.16% 0.15%
MSCI World Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 25.53% 25.32% 0.21% 0.20% 0.17%
MSCI Europe ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (EUR) A-acc® n.a. n.a. n.a. 0.12% n.a.
MSCI USA ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 27.77% 27.57% 0.20% 0.12% 0.06%
MSCI Japan ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (JPY) A-acc 27.54% 27.80% (0.26%) 0.17% 0.17%
MSCI EMU ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (EUR) A-acc 18.99% 18.61% 0.38% 0.15% 0.27%
MSCI ACWI Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 22.54% 22.41% 0.13% 0.22% 0.14%
MSCI Emerging Markets Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 7.36% 7.60% (0.24%) 0.23% 0.07%
MSCI World Small Cap Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 13.50% 13.56% (0.06%) 0.28% 0.06%
MSCI World Small Cap Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 15.76% 15.74% 0.02% 0.23% 0.06%
MSCI World Small Cap Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis 15.72% 15.74% (0.02%) 0.23% 0.06%
MSCI Pacific (ex Japan) IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 6.91% 7.27% (0.36%) 0.42% 0.07%
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Fund Index Tracking Tracking

Performance?® Performance® Difference® TER® Error®

Share Class Name (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
MSCI Pacific (ex Japan) IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc 8.43% 8.68% (0.25%) 0.37% 0.08%
MSCI Australia ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (AUD) A-acc? 6.01% 6.41% (0.40%) 0.43% n.a.
MSCI AC Asia (ex Japan) ESG Leaders Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-acc® 1.37% 1.70% (0.33%) 0.30% n.a.
S&P USA Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF Class (USD) A-dis® 5.62% 5.41% 0.21% 0.28% n.a.
S&P USA Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis® 4.06% 3.83% 0.23% 0.33% n.a.

T Share class launched on 25 April 2023.
2 Share class terminated on 14 December 2023.

3 MSCI Europe ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF ceased trading on 14 December 2023 and its assets transferred into MSCI EMU ESG Universal Low Carbon Select

UCITS ETF on the same date.
4 Fund and its share class launched on 20 April 2023.
> Fund and its share class launched on 26 June 2023.

Note: Not all Share Classes were in existence for the full
financial year of these financial statements. The following Share
Classes launched during the financial year ended 31 December
2023: MSCI Australia ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS
ETF (AUD) A-acc, Factor MSCI USA Quality ESG UCITS ETF
(hedged to CHF) A-acc, MSCI AC Asia (ex Japan) ESG Leaders
Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF (USD) A-acc, S&P USA Dividend
Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF (USD) A-dis and S&P USA
Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF (hedged to EUR) A-dis.
For these Share Classes, the performance data in the table
above is not for the full financial year, it is from launch date to
the financial year end date. For the financial year ended

31 December 2023, the tracking error for these share classes is
n.a. since the share classes launched for less than full applicable
12-month period.

The following Share Class terminated during the financial year
ended 31 December 2023: MSCI USA Socially Responsible
UCITS ETF Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis, S&P 500 ESG ELITE
UCITS ETF Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc and MSCI Europe ESG
Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF Class (EUR) A-acc. No
performance data is included for share classes which terminated
during the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

MSCI notes that the following Indexes were affected by a
technical implementation issue from their respective launch
dates until 1 December 2023 which resulted in a greater
number of index constituents than was prescribed by
methodology. This issue has been corrected on an ongoing
basis as of 1 December 2023 and the effect did not undermine
the stated objectives of the Index nor any of its defining risk
characteristics.

e MSCI USA Select Dynamic 50% Risk Weighted Index (706732)
e MSCI USA Select Dynamic 50% Risk Weighted 100% Hedged
to EUR Index (707022)

Historical performance is no indicator of current or future
performance. The performance data does not take account of
any commissions and costs charged when subscribing and
redeeming units.
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@ Fund performance reflects percentage change in NAV's per
share (cum dividend) over the financial period.

b Total Net Return of the Index.

© The tracking difference is attributable to Fund Expenses (see
Note 4 to the financial statements) as well as non-reclaimable
withholding taxes and to generation of securities lending
income. The Funds’ portfolio manager aims to achieve a level of
tracking accuracy whereby the expected annual difference in
returns, after expenses, between the performance of the shares
of a Fund and that Fund's index will not exceed 1% under
normal market conditions. However, exceptional circumstances
may arise which cause a Fund's tracking accuracy to exceed
1%. None of the Funds had a tracking difference of more than
1% over a 12-month financial period.

d Total Expense Ratio (TER) or the flat fee is calculated in
accordance with the Asset Management Association
Switzerland (AMAS) “Guidelines on the calculation and
disclosure of the TER of collective investment schemes” in the
current version and expresses the sum of all costs and
commissions charged on an ongoing basis to the net assets
(operating expenses) taken retrospectively as a percentage of
the net assets. For terminated and newly launched share classes
the total operating expense figure included in the flat fee has
been annualised. The flat fee has been audited.

€ Tracking Error: annualised standard deviation. The Fund's
portfolio manager aims to keep the tracking error, defined as
the volatility of the tracking difference between the
performance of the shares of a Fund and that Fund's index,
below or equal to 1% under normal market conditions.
However, exceptional circumstances may arise which cause a
Fund's tracking error to exceed 1%. Additionally, in relation to
certain Funds through the composition of that Fund's Index, it
may not be practicably possible, for example because of the
Company's investment restrictions, to achieve such a tracking
error. It is anticipated for most Funds, especially those where the
Index's component securities are listed on one or more highly
liquid and efficient Recognised Markets, that the tracking error
will be significantly lower than 1%. In relation to those certain
Funds where such accuracy is not practicably possible, it is
anticipated that the annual tracking error will be no more than
3%. There were no tracking errors exceeding 1% in the last
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12 months. Tracking error calculation: The tracking error for the
last 12 months is calculated as follows: =STANDARD DEVIATION
(Monthly Excess calculated each month over a 12-month
financial period)*SQUARE ROOT (12).
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Investment Objectives & Policies

MSCIUSA UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance of the U.S. market. The investment policy of the
Fund is to seek to track the performance of the MSCI USA
Index.

MSCI USA Value UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance of U.S. equities, which are categorised as value
stocks using eight historical and forward-looking fundamental
data points. The data points are broken down into value
investment style characteristics and growth investment style
characteristics and, in constructing the index, MSCI use them
to identify which stocks exhibit stronger value characteristics
(i.e., are priced at a low level relative to what is considered to
be their fundamental value). The value investment style
characteristics are (i) book value to price ratio, (ii) 12-month
forward earnings to price ratio and (iii) dividend yield. The
growth investment style characteristics are (i) long-term
forward earnings per share (EPS) growth rate, (ii) short-term
forward EPS growth rate, (iii) current Internal Growth Rate,
(iv) long-term historical EPS growth trend and (v) long-term
historical sales per share (SPS) growth trend. The investment
policy of the Fund is to seek to track the performance of the
MSCI USA Value Index.

MSCI World UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance globally. The investment policy of the Fund is to
seek to track the performance of the MSCI World Index.

S&P 500 UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance of the U.S. market. The investment policy of the
Fund is to seek to track the investment performance of the
S&P 500 Index.

Solactive Global Pure Gold Miners UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance of the largest listed companies generating at
least 90% of their revenues in gold mining. The investment
policy of the Fund is to seek to track the performance of the
Solactive Global Pure Gold Miners Net Total Return Index.

MSCI Australia UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the performance
of the large and mid-cap segments of the Australian market.
The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the MSCI Australia Index.

MSCI USA hedged to EUR UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance of the U.S. market. The investment policy of the
Fund is to seek to track the performance of the MSCI USA
hedged to EUR Index.
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MSCI USA hedged to CHF UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance of the U.S. market. The investment policy of the
Fund is to seek to track the performance of the MSCI USA
hedged to CHF Index.

S&P Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance of worldwide (developed markets) high dividend
yielding/ESG-scoring companies that meet certain
sustainability criteria. The investment policy of the Fund is to
seek to track the performance of the S&P Developed ESG
Dividend Aristocrats Index.

MSCI United Kingdom IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the performance
of UK companies with outstanding sustainability profiles. The
investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the MSCI UK IMI Extended SRI Low Carbon
Select 5% Issuer Capped Index.

Factor MSCI USA Low Volatility UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the alternatively
weighted equity market performance of the U.S. market. The
investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the MSCI USA Select Dynamic 50% Risk
Weighted Index.

Factor MSCI USA Prime Value ESG UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the alternatively
weighted equity market performance of the U.S. market. The
investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the MSCI USA Prime Value Index.

Factor MSCI USA Quality ESG UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the alternatively
weighted equity market performance of the U.S. market. The
investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the MSCI USA Quiality Index.

MSCI USA Select Factor Mix UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the alternatively
weighted equity market performance of the US market. The
investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the MSCI USA Select Factor Mix Index.

MSCI ACWI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the performance
of the MSCI ACWI SRI Low Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped
Index. The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track
the performance of the MSCI ACWI SRI Low Carbon Select
5% Issuer Capped Index.
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MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the performance
of the MSCI ACWI ESG Universal Low Carbon Select 5%
Issuer Capped Index. The investment policy of the Fund is to
seek to track the performance of the MSCI ACWI ESG
Universal Low Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped Index.

Global Gender Equality UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to track the performance of the
Solactive Equileap Global Gender Equality 100 Leaders Net
Total Return Index. The investment policy of the Fund is to
seek to track the performance of the Solactive Equileap Global
Gender Equality 100 Leaders Net Total Return Index.

S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance of the U.S. market. The investment policy of the
Fund is to seek to track the investment performance of the
S&P 500 Index.

MSCI USA Socially Responsible UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the performance
of US based companies which focus on Environmental, Social
and Governance ("ESG") considerations and which would
specifically exclude companies involved in nuclear power,
tobacco, alcohol, gambling, military weapons, civilian firearms
and genetically modified organisms. The investment policy of
the Fund is to seek to track the performance of the MSCI USA
SRI Low Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped Index.

MSCI World Socially Responsible UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the performance
of global companies which focus on Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") considerations and which would
specifically exclude companies involved in nuclear power,
tobacco, alcohol, gambling, military weapons, civilian firearms
and genetically modified organisms. The investment policy of
the Fund is to seek to track the performance of the MSCI
World SRI Low Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped Index.

S&P 500 ESG ELITE UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance of the S&P 500 ESG ELITE Index. The investment
policy of the Fund is to seek to track the performance of the
S&P 500 ESG ELITE Index.

UBS Climate Aware Global Developed Equity CTB UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance of global companies which form part of the
Index with a focus on sustainable investment considerations in
alignment with the EU Climate Regulations. The investment
policy of the Fund is to seek to track the performance of the
Solactive UBS Climate Aware Global Developed Equity CTB
Net Total Return Index.
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MSCI EMU Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance of countries within EMU (European Economic
and Monetary Union) which form part of the Index with a
focus on sustainable investment considerations defined by the
Paris Agreement and specific exclusions of companies involved
in controversial weapons, environmental, social and
governance ("ESG") controversies, tobacco, environmental
harm, thermal coal mining, oil & gas related activities and
power generation. The investment policy of the Fund is to
seek to track the performance of the MSCI EMU Climate Paris
Aligned Index.

MSCI Europe Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance of the developed markets in Europe which form
part of the Index with a focus on sustainable investment
considerations defined by the Paris Agreement and specific
exclusions of companies involved in controversial weapons,
environmental, social and governance ("ESG") controversies,
tobacco, environmental harm, thermal coal mining, oil & gas
related activities and power generation. The investment policy
of the Fund is to seek to track the performance of the MSClI
Europe Climate Paris Aligned Index.

MSCI USA Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance of US companies which form part of the Index
with a focus on sustainable investment considerations defined
by the Paris Agreement and specific exclusions of companies
involved in controversial weapons, environmental, social and
governance ("ESG") controversies, tobacco, environmental
harm, thermal coal mining, oil & gas related activities and
power generation. The investment policy of the Fund is to
seek to track the performance of the MSCI USA Climate Paris
Aligned Index.

MSCl Japan Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance of Japanese companies which form part of the
Index with a focus on sustainable investment considerations
defined by the Paris Agreement and specific exclusions of
companies involved in controversial weapons, environmental,
social and governance ("ESG") controversies, tobacco,
environmental harm, thermal coal mining, oil & gas related
activities and power generation. The investment policy of the
Fund is to seek to track the performance of the MSCI Japan
Climate Paris Aligned Index.
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MSCI World Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance of global companies which form part of the
Index with a focus on sustainable investment considerations
defined by the Paris Agreement and specific exclusions of
companies involved in controversial weapons, environmental,
social and governance ("ESG") controversies, tobacco,
environmental harm, thermal coal mining, oil & gas related
activities and power generation. The investment policy of the
Fund is to seek to track the performance of the MSCI World
Climate Paris Aligned Index.

MSCI USA ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the performance
of the Index. The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to
track the performance of the MSCI USA ESG Universal Low
Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped Index.

MSCl Japan ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the performance
of the Index. The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to
track the performance of the MSClI Japan ESG Universal Low
Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped Index.

MSCI EMU ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the performance
of the Index. The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to
track the performance of the MSCI EMU ESG Universal Low
Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped Index.

MSCI ACWI Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity market
performance of global companies which form part of the
Index with a focus on sustainable investment considerations
defined by the Paris Agreement and specific exclusions of
companies involved in controversial weapons, environmental,
social and governance ("ESG") controversies, tobacco,
environmental harm, thermal coal mining, oil & gas related
activities and power generation. In order to achieve the
objective, the investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track
the performance of the MSCI ACWI Climate Paris Aligned
Index.

MSCI Emerging Markets Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the performance
of the Index. The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to
track the performance of the MSCI Emerging Markets ESG
Universal Low Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped Index.
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MSCI World Small Cap Socially Responsible UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the performance
of global small cap companies which focus on Environmental,
Social and Governance ("ESG") considerations and which
would specifically exclude companies involved in nuclear
power, tobacco, alcohol, gambling, military weapons, civilian
firearms and genetically modified organisms. In order to
achieve the objective, the investment policy of the Fund is to
seek to track the performance of the MSCI World Small Cap
SRI Low Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped Index.

MSCI Pacific (ex Japan) IMI Socially Responsible UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the equity
performance of the Index. The investment policy of the Fund
is to seek to track the performance of the MSCI Pacific (ex
Japan) IMI Extended SRI Low Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped
Index (Net Return) (or any other index determined by the
Directors from time to time to track substantially the same
market as the MSCI Pacific (ex Japan) IMI Extended SRI Low
Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped Index (Net Return) and
which is considered by the Directors to be an appropriate
index for the Fund to track, in accordance with the Prospectus
(the "Index") as closely as possible, while seeking to minimise
as far as possible the difference in performance between the
Fund and the Index.

MSCl Australia ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF

The objective of the Fund is to seek to track the performance
of the Index. The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to
track the performance of the MSCI Australia ESG Universal
Low Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped Index (Net Index) (or
any other index determined by the Directors from time to time
to track substantially the same market as the MSCI Australia
ESG Universal Low Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped Index
(Net Index) and which is considered by the Directors to be an
appropriate index for the Fund to track, in accordance with
the Prospectus (the “Index") as closely as possible, while
seeking to minimise as far as possible the difference in
performance between the Fund and the Index.

MSCI AC Asia (ex Japan) ESG Leaders Low Carbon Select
UarTs T

The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the MSCI AC Asia ex Japan ESG Leaders Low
Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped Index (Net Return) (or any
other index determined by the Directors from time to time to
track substantially the same market as the MSCI AC Asia ex
Japan ESG Leaders Low Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped
Index (Net Return) and which is considered by the Directors to
be an appropriate index for the Fund to track, in accordance
with the Prospectus (the "Index") as closely as possible, while
seeking to minimise as far as possible the difference in
performance between the Fund and the Index.
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S&P USA Dividend Aristocrats ESG Elite UCITS ETF

The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the S&P ESG Elite High Yield Dividend
Avristocrats Index (Net Return) (or any other index determined
by the Directors from time to time to track substantially the
same market as the S&P ESG Elite High Yield Dividend
Avristocrats Index (Net Return) and which is considered by the
Directors to be an appropriate index for the Fund to track), in
accordance with the Prospectus (the "Index") as closely as
possible, while seeking to minimise as far as possible the
difference in performance between the Fund and the Index.
The Fund seeks to achieve the objective by tracking the Index
and, with regard to ESG criteria, giving exposure to global
companies with high ESG ratings and to exclude the ones
with negative social or environmental impact.

S&P 500 Climate Transition ESG UCITS ETF

The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the S&P 500 Climate Transition Base ESG
Index (Net Return) (or any other index determined by the
Directors from time to time to track substantially the same
market as the S&P 500 Climate Transition Base ESG Index (Net
Return) and which is considered by the Directors to be an
appropriate index for the Fund to track), in accordance with
the Prospectus (the "Index") as closely as possible, while
seeking to minimise as far as possible the difference in
performance between the Fund and the Index. The Fund seeks
to achieve the objective by tracking the Index and, with regard
to ESG criteria, giving exposure to US-based companies with
high ESG scores and to exclude the ones with negative social
or environmental impact.

EUR Ultra-Short Bond ESG UCITS ETF

The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the Solactive EUR Ultra-Short Diversified Bond
ESG Index (Total Return) (or any other index determined by
the Directors from time to time to track substantially the same
market as Solactive EUR Ultra-Short diversified Bond ESG
Index (Total Return) and which is considered by the Directors
to be an appropriate index for the Fund to track, in
accordance with the Prospectus (the "Index") as closely as
possible, while seeking to minimise as far as possible the
difference in performance between the Fund and the Index.

MSCI Canada ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF

The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the MSCI Canada ESG Universal Low Carbon
Select 5% lIssuer Capped Index (Net Return) (or any other
index determined by the Directors from time to time to track
substantially the same market as the MSCI Canada ESG
Universal Low Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped Index (Net
Return) and which is considered by the Directors to be an
appropriate index for the Fund to track, in accordance with
the Prospectus (the "Index") as closely as possible, while
seeking to minimise as far as possible the difference in
performance between the Fund and the Index.

Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI Emerging Markets ex China Socially Responsible UCITS
ETF

The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the MSCI Emerging Markets ex China SRI Low
Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped Index (Net Index) (or any
other index determined by the Directors from time to time to
track substantially the same market as the MSCI Emerging
Markets ex China SRI Low Carbon Select 5% Issuer Capped
Index (Net Index) and which is considered by the Directors to
be an appropriate index for the Fund to track, in accordance
with the Prospectus (the "Index") as closely as possible, while
seeking to minimise as far as possible the difference in
performance between the Fund and the Index.

Factor MSCI World Minimum Volatility ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the MSCI World ESG Leaders Minimum
Volatility Index (Net Return) (or any other index determined by
the Directors from time to time to track substantially the same
market as the MSCI World ESG Leaders Minimum Volatility
Index (Net Return) and which is considered by the Directors to
be an appropriate index for the Fund to track), in accordance
with the Prospectus (the "Index") as closely as possible, while
seeking to minimise as far as possible the difference in
performance between the Fund and the Index.

FTSE EPRA Nareit Developed Green UCITS ETF

The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the FTSE EPRA Nareit Developed Green Index
(Net Return) (or any other index determined by the Directors
from time to time to track substantially the same market as
the FTSE EPRA Nareit Developed Green Index (Net Return) and
which is considered by the Directors to be an appropriate
index for the Fund to track), in accordance with the
Prospectus (the "Index") as closely as possible, while seeking
to minimise as far as possible the difference in performance
between the Fund and the Index.

MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the MSCI USA ESG Leaders Index (Net Return)
(or any other index determined by the Directors from time to
time to track substantially the same market as the MSCI USA
ESG Leaders Index (Net Return) and which is considered by the
Directors to be an appropriate index for the Fund to track), in
accordance with the Prospectus (the "Index") as closely as
possible, while seeking to minimise as far as possible the
difference in performance between the Fund and the Index.
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MSCIUSA NSL UCITS ETF

The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the MSCI USA Index (Net Return) (or any
other index determined by the Directors from time to time to
track substantially the same market as the MSCI USA Index
(Net Return) and which is considered by the Directors to be an
appropriate index for the Fund to track), in accordance with
the Prospectus (the "Index") as closely as possible, while
seeking to minimise as far as possible the difference in
performance between the Fund and the Index. Any
determination by the Directors that the Fund should track
another index at any time shall be subject to the provision of
reasonable notice to Shareholders and implemented in
accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank and
this Supplement shall be updated accordingly. The Fund will
use replication techniques in order to minimise as far as
possible the difference in performance between the returns of
the Index and the return of the Fund, after Fees and Expenses.

MSCI USA Small Cap ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the MSCI USA Small Cap ESG Leaders Index
(Net Return) (or any other index determined by the Directors
from time to time to track substantially the same market as
the MSCI USA Small Cap ESG Leaders Index (Net Return) and
which is considered by the Directors to be an appropriate
index for the Fund to track), in accordance with the
Prospectus (the "Index") as closely as possible, while seeking
to minimise as far as possible the difference in performance
between the Fund and the Index.

MSCI USA Tech 125 ESG Universal UCITS ETF

The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the MSCI USA Tech 125 ESG Universal Index
(Net Return) (or any other index determined by the Directors
from time to time to track substantially the same market as
the MSCI USA Tech 125 ESG Universal Index (Net Return) and
which is considered by the Directors to be an appropriate
index for the Fund to track), in accordance with the
Prospectus (the "Index") as closely as possible, while seeking
to minimise as far as possible the difference in performance
between the Fund and the Index.

MSCI World ESG Leadlers UCITS ETF

The investment policy of the Fund is to seek to track the
performance of the MSCI World ESG Leaders Index (Net
Return) (or any other index determined by the Directors from
time to time to track substantially the same market as the
MSCI World ESG Leaders Index (Net Return) and which is
considered by the Directors to be an appropriate index for the
Fund to track), in accordance with the Prospectus (the
"Index") as closely as possible, while seeking to minimise as
far as possible the difference in performance between the
Fund and the Index.

Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2024

33



Investment Managers’ Report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Quarter One 2024

Global stocks had the best first quarter in five years, amid
optimism over the outlook for the US economy and hopes that
Al will boost corporate profits. The MSCI All Country World
Index delivered a total return of 8.2% in the first quarter, the
strongest performance in the first three months of the year
since 2019.

The gains came despite greater caution in markets over the
likely pace and extent of rate cuts from the Federal Reserve in
2024. Having priced as many as six quarter-point cuts for
2024 at the peak in January, markets ended March implying
around three cuts. This reflected data suggesting that the
improvement in inflation stalled in the first two months of the
year, contributing to a mixed quarter for government bonds.
Both the Bloomberg index for US Treasuries and the Pan-
European Aggregate delivered negative returns for the quarter,
though they regained some lost ground in March.

The Swiss National Bank kicked off the global rate-cutting cycle
in March, taking investors by surprise to become the first
developed-nation central bank to ease policy since the
aftermath of the COVID-19 pandemic. Meanwhile, the Bank of
Japan enacted its first rate hike in 17 years - ending an eight-
year stretch of negative interest rates.

Quarter two 2024

The second quarter ended on a high note, with global equities
returning 2.6% in June. Gains were led by the S&P 500, which
returned 3.6%. US returns were boosted by further evidence
that US inflation is moderating, paving the way for rate cuts by
the Federal Reserve. Optimism was kindled by the release of the
consumer price index, which showed core inflation rising by a
monthly 0.16% in May, the smallest increase since summer
2021. This was confirmed on the last trading day of the first
half. The Fed’s favorite measure of inflation— the core personal
consumption expenditure index—rose just 0.08% in May, its
smallest increase since 2020.

The Fed remained cautious on the outlook for easing, with the
median forecast of top officials for just one rate cut in
2024 versus three in their prior projection from March.
Meanwhile, the global cutting cycle continued, with the
European Central Bank trimming rates for the first time since
2019. The Bank of Canada also eased policy, and the Swiss
National Bank cut rates for a second time in three months.

Artificial intelligence remained a major theme for markets,
fuelling the US stock rally. Chipmaker NVIDIA briefly became
the world’s largest company, overtaking Microsoft and Apple.
Although NVIDIA quickly gave up the top spot and stood 9%
below its all-time high on 18 June, it still ended the month
12.7% higher and up around 150% in the first half of the year.
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Quarter three 2024

Global equities bucked the seasonal trend for weakness in
September, with the MSCI AC World Index delivering 2%
returns over the month. Gains were led by MSCI China, as a
combination of fiscal and monetary easing announcements
propelled the index to a 23.3% rally and a ninth consecutive
day of gains to close out September.

The most notable development for global markets in
September was the beginning of the much-anticipated US rate-
cutting cycle and the subsequent all-time highs for select US
stock indexes. While US stocks began the month with declines
on a soft August ISM manufacturing report, choppy trading for
megacap tech stocks, and weaker-than-expected August
payrolls data, they recovered their poise as the Federal Reserve
began its easing cycle with a decisive 50-basis-point cut to
support the US economy from a position of strength. Personal
consumption expenditure (PCE) inflation data, the Fed's
favorite measure, released at month-end struck an optimistic
note, with August headline data of a 2.2% year-over-year
increase undershooting market expectations and recording its
lowest reading since February 2021.

A second major theme of September was the broadening and
continuation of the global rate-cutting cycle, with major central
banks lowering borrowing costs as growth concerns mount and
inflation pressures ebb. The European Central Bank (ECB) cut
rates in mid-September on tepid growth and further falls in
inflation. Preliminary inflation data for September from several
of the Eurozone’s major economies was weaker than expected,
with the annual rate in France falling to 1.2% (the lowest level
since July 2021) and dropping to 1.5% from 2.3% in August
for Spain.

Quarter four 2024

Markets ended the year in @ more cautious mood, as investors
scaled back expectations for the Federal Reserve's pace of rate
cuts after a hawkish December policy meeting. The MSCI Al
Country World and the S&P 500 lost 1.6% and 2.4%,
respectively, in the final month of the year.

Despite the retreat in December, global stocks returned 20.7%
for 2024 overall. The gains were led by the S&P 500, with a
return of 25%. This was the second consecutive year in which
the index advanced more than 20%, with US large cap stocks
delivering their best two-year performance this century.

Markets have been supported by a combination of progress in
bringing inflation back to central bank targets, monetary
easing, the strength of the US economy, and optimism over the
commercialization of artificial intelligence (Al). The importance
in Al'in driving equity gains was underlined by a 50.5% advance
in the NYSE FANG+ index, which tracks the top 10 most-traded
US technology companies.
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Without taking any single-name views, shares in NVIDIA, the
chipmaker that became the main focus of enthusiasm over Al,
gained 171.2% after a 238.9% rise in 2023. An equal-
weighted version of the S&P 500, which dilutes the impact of
the megacap tech firms, gained 13%.

Treasury markets faced headwinds in December, after the
Federal Reserve pointed to a slower pace of easing for 2025 at
its final policy meeting of the year. That capped a volatile year of
trading in US government bonds, amid shifting market
expectations over the speed and extent of Fed rate cuts. The
yield on the 10-year US Treasury, which started the year at
3.86%, ended at 4.57% - having risen as high as 4.7% in April
and as low as 3.62% in September on a closing basis. The 10-
year US Treasury yield has now moved up for four consecutive
years for the first time since the 1980s.

For 2024 overall, the highest returns were in US and Euro high
yield credit, with returns of 8.2% and 8.6% respectively.
Investment grade bonds also produced positive returns. The
Bloomberg US Credit index returned 2% in 2024 and its Euro
counterpart delivered 4.7%.

UBS Asset Management (UK) Ltd

UBS Asset Management Switzerland AG

15 April 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF UBS (IRL) ETF PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of UBS (Irl) ETF plc (‘the Company’) for the year ended

31 December 2024, which comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares, Statement of Cashflows and notes to the financial statements, including the material accounting
policy information out in note 1. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is Irish Law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Company as at
31 December 2024 and of its profit for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union; and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014,
the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities)
Regulations, 2011, and the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section
48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland))
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial
statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard as applied to public interest entities issued by the
Irish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (IAASA), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the
directors’ assessment of the Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting included:

e Confirming our understanding of management’s going concern assessment process and also
engaged with management to understand the key factors which were considered in their
assessment;

e Obtaining management’s going concern assessment, which covers at least 12 months from the
date of approval of the financial statements;
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¢ Reviewing and evaluating the reasonability of the key factors considered by management in
making their assessment of going concern including consideration of the availability of liquid
assets to meet ongoing operational costs and known future capital activity in the Company. In
assessing these, we obtained and reviewed the liquidity terms which the Company offers to
investors together with reviewing post year-end capital activity and enquiring of management
as to whether there are any subsequent events, including performance, that might give rise to
conditions which could lead management to discontinue the operations of the Company.

¢ Reviewing the Company’s going concern disclosures included in the annual report in order to
assess that the disclosures were appropriate and in conformity with the reporting standards.

Conclusion

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements
are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.



EY

Building a better
working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF UBS (IRL) ETF PLC (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified, including those which had the
greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the
efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Existence of Financial assets
and Financial Liabilities at
fair value through profit or
loss

We have considered existence
of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (with a

fair value of usD
38,124,127,945 (2023: USD
23,083,335,753)) and

financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (with a
fair value of (UsD
152,131,889) (2023: (USD
26,452,092))) as a key audit
matter as it is a key driver of
the Company’'s performance
and net asset value.

Refer to Note 3 in the financial
statements.

We obtained the listing of financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss as at 31 December 2024 from
the administrator.

We assessed the reasonableness of the
existence for all
financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss by:

financial assets and

obtaining an understanding and
evaluating the key controls that have
been implemented over the
reconciliation process for financial
assets and financial liabilities at value
through profit or loss. This includes
obtaining the service auditor’s report
of the administrator and depository
and identifying the key controls in
place at the administrator and
depository over the investment
reconciliation process

obtaining independent confirmations
directly from the counterparty and
depositary of each of the financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss held at
year-end and investigating any
material differences identified to
confirm the existence of these
financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss.

No issues have been
noted from the
performance of our
procedures over this
key audit matter.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Valuation of Financial assets
and Financial Liabilities at
fair value through profit or
loss

We have considered valuation
of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (with a
fair value of usbD
38,124,127,945 (2023: USD
23,083,335,753)) and
financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (with a
fair value of (USD
152,131,889) (2023: (USD
26,452,092))) as a key audit
matter as it is a key driver of
the Companys' performance
and net asset value.

Refer to Note 1 and Note 3 in
the financial statements.

We obtained the listing of financial assets
and financial liabilities fair value through
profit or loss as at 31 December 2024 from
the administrator.

We assessed the reasonableness of the
valuation for all financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss by:

obtaining an understanding and
evaluating the key controls that have
been implemented over the valuation
process for financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. This includes
obtaining the service organisation
auditor’s report of the administrator
and identifying the key controls in
place at the administrator over the
investment valuation process;
comparing values to quoted prices or
vendor prices; or recalculating fair
value using industry standard models,
assessing the reasonableness of the
assumptions and data inputs used by
the Directors to value these financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

No issues have been
noted from the
performance of our
procedures over this
key audit matter.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating the effect of
identified misstatements on the audit and in forming our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements. Materiality
provides a basis for determining the nature and extent of our audit procedures.
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We determined materiality for the Company to be 0.5% (2023: 0.5%) of each sub-fund’s Net Asset
Value. We believe that Net Asset Value provides us with appropriate measurement basis since the
users of the financial statements may focus more on this than on earnings.

During the course of our audit, we reassessed initial materiality and made no changes to it.

Performance materiality

The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level. It is set at an amount to reduce
to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the Company’s overall control
environment, our judgement was that performance materiality was 75% of our planning materiality
(2023: 75%). We have set performance materiality at this percentage due to our knowledge of the
Company’s industry.

Reporting threshold

An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Board of Directors that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in
excess of 5% (2023: 5%) of our defined materiality, as well as differences below that threshold that, in
our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality
discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative considerations in forming our opinion.

An overview of the scope of our audit report
Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of performance materiality
determine our audit scope for the Company. This enables us to form an opinion on the financial
statements. We take into account size, risk profile, the organisation of the Company and effectiveness
of controls, including controls and changes in the business environment when assessing the level of
work to be performed. All audit work was performed directly by the audit engagement team.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.
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We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014

In our opinion, based solely on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that:

e the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year ended for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

o the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
are necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statements
to be readily and properly audited and the financial statements are in agreement with the accounting
records.

In addition we report, in relation to information given in the Corporate Governance Statement within
the Directors’ report in the Financial Statements, that:

. based on knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the
course of our audit, no material misstatements in the information identified above have come to
our attention;

. based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit, in our opinion:

. the description of the main features of the internal control and risk management systems
in relation to the process for preparing the financial statements, are consistent with the
financial statements and have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2014; and

. the Corporate Governance Statement contains the information required by the
Companies Act 2014.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Based on the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors' report.

The Companies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures required by
sections 305 to 312 of the Act, which relate to disclosures of directors’ remuneration and transactions
are not complied with by the Company. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Respective responsibilities
Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on pages 19-20, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework that give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as going concerns, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud, that
could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial statements. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion. In addition, the further removed any non-compliance is from
the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely it is that our procedures
will identify such non-compliance. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention
and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the Company and
management.

Our approach was as follows:

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the
Company and determined that the most significant are the Companies Act 2014, the Undertaking for
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities pursuant to the provisions of the European
Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 and
the Central Bank (Supervision And Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019.
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We understood how the Company is complying with those frameworks by updating our understanding
of the adequate system of internal control in place. We also considered the existence of independent
service providers, proper segregation of duties and the regulated environment in which the Company
operates, which may reduce opportunities for fraud to take place.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Company’s financial statements to material misstatement,
including how fraud might occur by management override of controls.

Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such
laws and regulations. Our procedures involved inquiries to those charged with governance into possible
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations, review of board meeting minutes during the
year and obtaining representation from the management.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
IAASA's website at: http://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-
a98202dc9c3a/Description_of auditors_responsibilities_for _audit.pdf. This description forms part of
our auditor's report.

Other matters which we are required to address

We were appointed by the Directors on 11 November 2021 to audit the financial statements for the year
ending 31 December 2021 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted
engagement including previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is 4 years.

The non-audit services prohibited by IAASA's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Company and
we remain independent of the Company in conducting our audit.

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the board of directors.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 391 of the
Companies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report,

Lisa Kealy

for and on behalf of

Ernst & Young Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
Office: Dublin

Date: 17t April 2025
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

MSCI USA MSCI USA Value MSCI World
Notes uCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usb usD usD
Current Assets
' . . ) . 1(0),
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1)
Transferable securities 2,950,277,662 746,657,496 2,196,451,104
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — — 26,279
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) 14,658 — 533,878
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 11,041,011 2,133,648 17,385,787
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 700,412 250,342 1,156,613
Dividends receivable 1,583,040 665,723 1,428,928
Other receivables 737,175 75,106 295,243
Total Current Assets 2,964,353,958 749,782,315 2,217,277,832
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) (304,915) (52,622) (400,663)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (628,675) — (7,373,203)
Payable for investments purchased — — (2,305,673)
Expenses and other payables (878,805) (170,843) (438,085)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
redeemable participating shareholders) (R 28) rEi i) LA AR
Net Assets attributable to redeemable participating 2,062,541,563 749,558,850 2,206,760,208
shareholders
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

Solactive Global

Notes S&P 500 Pure Gold Miners MSCI Australia
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usbD usbD AUD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1:5;5’\/)
Transferable securities 1,197,626,950 154,369,826 758,479,645
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) — — 5,492,242
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 9,363,950 31,517 5,930,899
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 640,197 — 486,904
Receivable for fund shares sold — — 1,623,748
Dividends receivable 635,891 59,588 470,625
Other receivables 332,988 33,807 1,658
Total Current Assets 1,208,599,976 154,494,738 772,485,721
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) (297,070) — (72,450)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (7,704,083) — —
Bank overdraft 1(e) (141,727) (12,688) (518,202)
Payable for investments purchased — — (10,408,222)
Expenses and other payables (406,853) (89,120) (259,532)
A S GO BTG w9759 corew  nasman
:l::r:;ici;sef:trlbutable to redeemable participating 1,200,050,243 154,392,930 761,227,315
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

S&P Dividend

MSCI USA MSCI USA Aristocrats
Notes hedged to EUR hedged to CHF ESG Elite
uCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
EUR CHF usD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1(1(5%’\/)
Transferable securities 391,323,571 289,857,601 122,710,367
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — — 3,181
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) 43,299 11,761 160,447
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 564,641 205,236 256,355
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 65,785 28,678 158,929
Receivable for investments sold 8,680,325 9,452,972 —
Dividends receivable 213,664 155,618 600,420
Total Current Assets 400,891,285 299,711,866 123,889,699
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) (18,508) (8,684) (10,723)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (8,747,293) (9,509,727) (103,076)
Bank overdraft 1(e) — — (41,277)
Expenses and other payables (34,612) (24,694) (32,052)
R R e
:l:atr:rs‘::;sef:trlbutable to redeemable participating 392,090,872 290,168,761 123,702,571
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MSCI United

Kingdom
Notes IMI Socially Factor MSCI USA Factor MSCI USA
Responsible Low Volatility Prime Value
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF
GBP usbD usbD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 125%’\/)
Transferable securities 765,778,020 45,071,708 179,669,116
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) 34,252 — 7,155
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 187,445 50,738 103,412
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 42 34,619 59,686
Dividends receivable 1,649,011 66,284 273,903
Other receivables — 13,125 42,942
Total Current Assets 767,648,770 45,236,474 180,156,214
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — (3,982) (16,467)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (670,393) (102,072) (459,010)
Loans payable 1(u) (1,500,000) — —
Expenses and other payables (148,762) (23,645) (84,678)
e as1159 (25699 550159
:l:atr:;ielzz :\sttrlbutable to redeemable participating 765,329,615 45,106,775 179,596,059
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
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MSCI ACWI
Factor MSCI USA MSCI USA Select Socially
Notes Quality ESG Factor Mix Responsible
uCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usbD usD usD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1(1(5%’\/)
Transferable securities 1,429,440,743 151,043,224 2,781,782,487
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — — 12,090
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) 40,086 13,094 7,272,863
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 1,817,621 162,854 6,212,971
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 173,940 57,517 622,706
Receivable for investments sold — 998,887 16,756,707
Receivable for fund shares sold — — 359
Dividends receivable 785,993 142,399 4,530,011
Other receivables 181,293 34,282 —
Total Current Assets 1,432,439,676 152,452,257 2,817,190,194
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) (41,138) (9,582) (196,272)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (2,652,580) (1,018,785) (28,176,830)
Bank overdraft 1(e) — (7,298) (528,522)
Payable for investments purchased — (327) —
Expenses and other payables (495,301) (61,438) (669,184)
e D e 9019 aovam s
:l::r:;it:;sef:trlbutable to redeemable participating 1,429.250,657 151,354,827 2,787,619,386
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

MSCI ACWI ESG
Universal Low

Global Gender

Notes Carbon Select Equality S&P 500 ESG
uCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usbD usD usD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1(15%’\/)
Transferable securities 4,109,247,012 590,089,471 5,110,056,881
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) 6,821 — —
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) 9,702,611 741,193 77,278
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 9,089,560 369,323 3,435,360
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 835,640 — 404,945
Receivable for investments sold — 286,278 —
Receivable for fund shares sold 54,770,424 — —
Dividends receivable 4,336,186 3,258,720 2,929,032
Other receivables 208 579 —
Total Current Assets 4,187,988,462 594,745,564 5,116,903,496
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) (262,205) — (88,428)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (32,326,787) (4,075,692) (16,032,534)
Bank overdraft 1(e) — (97,828) (244,471)
Payable for fund shares purchased (988,582) — —
Payable for investments purchased (23,993,306) — —
Loans payable 1(u) — (3,100,000) —
Expenses and other payables (860,369) (108,939) (464,576)
e ssa31249 osmam s
:l:atr:;::;se :\sttrlbutable to redeemable participating 4,129,557,213 587,363,105 5,100,073,487
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2024

MSCI World
MSCI USA Socially Socially S&P 500
Notes Responsible Responsible ESG ELITE
uCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usbD usD usD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1(15%’\/)
Transferable securities 1,938,867,002 1,676,539,077 734,952,761
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — 11,453 —
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) 431,733 644,387 —
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 2,710,502 6,604,106 1,459,353
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 166,293 588,625 125,000
Receivable for investments sold 10,753,632 — —
Dividends receivable 1,489,508 1,668,759 267,782
Total Current Assets 1,954,418,670 1,686,056,407 736,804,896
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) (17,269) (174,843) (26,600)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (11,425,871) (6,331,287) (381,438)
Bank overdraft 1(e) — (220) —
Payable for investments purchased — (665,933) —
Expenses and other payables (342,356) (284,660) (65,784)
e (1783450 0455343 wrsan2)
:l:atr:;ielssefsttnbutable to redeemable participating 1,042,633,174 1,678,599,464 736,331,074
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

UBS Climate
Aware Global MSCI EMU Climate MSCI Europe
Notes Developed Equity Paris Aligned Climate Paris Aligned
CTB UCITS ETF uCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usbD EUR EUR
Current Assets
! ) ) ) ) 1(0),

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1)

Transferable securities 13,909,990 4,429,010 4,914,646
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 76,645 12,245 617
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 39,082 6,259 7,479
Dividends receivable 23,260 21,203 13,520
Total Current Assets 14,048,977 4,468,717 4,936,262
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)

Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) (5,480) (825) (410)
Payable for investments purchased — (1,360) (1,043)
Expenses and other payables (2,302) (532) (634)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
redeemable participating shareholders) (Werd2) (E22) R0
Net Assets attributable to redeemable participating 14,041,195 4,466,000 4,934,175
shareholders
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

MSCI USA MSCI Japan MSCI World
Notes Climate Paris Aligned Climate Paris Aligned Climate Paris
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF Aligned UCITS ETF
usb JPY usD
Current Assets
o . . ) 1(0),
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1))

Transferable securities 455,100,836 39,190,328,426 10,277,097

Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — 900,000 —

Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) — 96,445,021 —
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 738,410 100,246,970 64,165
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 61,851 8,541,193 14,970
Dividends receivable 196,503 46,556,293 8,090
Other receivables — 287 —
Total Current Assets 456,097,600 39,443,018,190 10,364,322
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)

Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) (24,700) — (2,255)
Payable for investments purchased — (122,357,976) (570)
Expenses and other payables (34,187) (4,066,575) (1,343)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
redeemable participating shareholders) L) (b 2500 )
Net Assets attributable to redeemable participating 456,038,713 39,316,593,639 10,360,154
shareholders
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

MSCI USA
ESG Universal Low

MSCI Japan ESG

MSCI EMU ESG

Notes Carbon Select  Universal Low Carbon  Universal Low Carbon
uCITS ETF Select UCITS ETF Select UCITS ETF
usbD JPY EUR
Current Assets
) ) ) ) ) 1(0),
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1)

Transferable securities 3,023,424 2,263,058,409 104,498,845

Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — 200,000 —
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 2,069 19,982,699 84,060
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments — 3,581,521 72,502
Dividends receivable 3,686 1,876,705 546,459
Total Current Assets 3,029,179 2,288,699,334 105,201,866
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)

Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — — (13,176)
Payable for investments purchased — (1,917,890) (4,924)
Expenses and other payables (499) (285,535) (11,798)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
redeemable participating shareholders) B2 i) )
Net Assets attributable to redeemable participating 3,028,680 2,286,495,909 105,171,968
shareholders
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

MSCI ACWI
Climate Paris

MSCI Emerging
Markets Climate Paris

MSCI World Small Cap
Socially Responsible

Notes Aligned UCITS ETF Aligned UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usb usb usD
Current Assets
o . . ) 1(0),
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1))

Transferable securities 16,558,387 88,013,228 478,306,052
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 54,802 272,751 832,341
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 22,752 35,708 —
Receivable for fund shares sold — — 303
Dividends receivable 12,981 82,368 704,498
Total Current Assets 16,648,922 88,404,055 479,843,194
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)

Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) (3,027) (10,088) —
Payable for investments purchased (1,008) — —
Loans payable 1(u) — — (850,000)
Expenses and other payables (2,597) (12,266) (94,665)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
redeemable participating shareholders) 327 (Preiz)) (452
Net Assets attributable to redeemable participating 16,642,290 88,381,701 478,898,529
shareholders
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

MSCI Pacific MSCI AC Asia
(ex Japan) MSCI Australia (ex Japan) ESG
Notes IMI Socially ESG Universal Leaders Low
Responsible Low Carbon Select Carbon Select
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usbD AUD usbD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 125%’\/)
Transferable securities 6,322,212 174,737,029 7,612,261
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) 26,771 — —
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 10,752 54,042 6,506
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments — — 8,021
Receivable for investments sold 54 — —
Receivable for fund shares sold — 1,614,848 —
Dividends receivable 5,655 162,528 1,768
Total Current Assets 6,365,444 176,568,447 7,628,556
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — — (549)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (4,342) — —
Bank overdraft 1(e) (9,764) — —
Payable for investments purchased (6,578) (1,596,434) —
Expenses and other payables (1,084) (63,887) (1,966)
D @17 (0321 @1
?::r:;i?if:tribumble to redeemable participating 6,343,676 174,908,126 7,626,041
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

S&P USA
Dividend
Notes Aristocrats S&P 500 EUR Ultra-Short
ESG Elite Climate Transition Bond ESG
UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF ' UCITS ETF?
uUsbD usbD EUR
Current Assets
N . . ) 1(0),
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1d)iv)

Transferable securities 6,347,005 2,994,006 30,800,846
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 2,415 2,099 601,237
Receivable for investments sold — 25,427 —
Dividends receivable 10,861 1,591 —
Other receivables — — 22,027
Total Current Assets 6,360,281 3,023,123 31,424,110
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)

Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (15,250) (26,872) —
Bank overdraft 1(e) (13) — —
Expenses and other payables (948) (289) (2,127)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
redeemable participating shareholders) QO2AE) Lrii) 22
Net Assets attributable to redeemable participating 6,344,070 2,095,962 31,421,083
shareholders
"The Fund launched on 18 March 2024.
2The Fund launched on 19 March 2024.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

MSCI Emerging

MSCI Canada Markets ex China Factor MSCI
Notes ESG Universal Low Socially World Minimum
Carbon Responsible UCITS  Volatility ESG Leaders
Select UCITS ETF? ETF? UCITS ETF*
CAD usbD usbD
Current Assets
N . . ) 1(0),
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1d)iv)

Transferable securities 2,422,306 8,744,901 275,113,408

Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — — 1,273
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 2,469 4,567 566,808
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments — — 114,238
Dividends receivable 2,709 4,688 317,847
Total Current Assets 2,427,484 8,754,156 276,113,574
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)

Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — — (17,746)
Bank overdraft 1(e) — (1,752) —
Expenses and other payables (690) (1,517) (108,835)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
redeemable participating shareholders) D) AR (1)
Net Assets attributable to redeemable participating 2,426,794 8,750,887 275,986,993
shareholders
2The Fund launched on 19 March 2024.
3The Fund launched on 20 March 2024.
4The Fund launched on 26 August 2024.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 57



Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

FTSE EPRA MSCI USA
Notes Nareit Developed ESG Leaders MSCI USA NSL
Green UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF*
usb usb usD
Current Assets
o . . ) 1(0),
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1))

Transferable securities 176,173,171 3,039,578,333 2,856,880,893

Investment Funds 80,222 — —
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 541,349 4,248,383 1,627,126
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments — 286,564 217,225
Receivable for investments sold 765 — —
Dividends receivable 778,142 1,633,800 1,530,565
Total Current Assets 177,573,649 3,045,747,080 2,860,255,809
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)

Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — (114,565) (76,660)
Bank overdraft 1(e) (174) — —
Payable for investments purchased (342,746) — —
Expenses and other payables (67,156) (472,257) (396,670)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
redeemable participating shareholders) () (o80:522) (EIEZED)
Net Assets attributable to redeemable participating 177,163,573 3,045,160,258 2,859,782,479
shareholders
4The Fund launched on 26 August 2024.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

MSCI USA Small MSCI USA Tech
Notes Cap ESG Leaders 125 ESG Universal MSCI World ESG
UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF* Leaders UCITS ETF*
usb usb usD
Current Assets
. . . . . 1(0),
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1))
Transferable securities 605,106,258 38,337,410 1,218,716,727
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — — 4,454
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) — — 1,119,006
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 269,102 4,074 2,446,452
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments — — 230,365
Receivable for investments sold — — 7,825,416
Dividends receivable 617,014 5,908 1,152,869
Total Current Assets 605,992,374 38,347,392 1,231,495,289
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — — (52,664)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) — — (10,604,001)
Expenses and other payables (175,223) (11,491) (287,017)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
redeemable participating shareholders) 322y (11.491) (een B2
Net Assets attributable to redeemable participating 605,817,151 38,335,901 1,220,551,607
shareholders
4The Fund launched on 26 August 2024.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 254231A8-0042-41DE-BFF9-7A59E72D944E

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

UBS (Irl) ETF
Notes plc Total
usD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1(155(1'\0
Transferable securities 38,099,075,071
Investment Funds 80,222
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) 72,550
Forward foreign exchange contracts T(d)(vi) 24,900,102
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 90,240,085
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative instruments 7,573,966
Receivable for investments sold 56,066,091
Receivable for fund shares sold 56,776,284
Dividends receivable 35,576,262
Other receivables 1,770,587
Total Current Assets 38,372,131,220
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) (2,299,041)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (149,832,848)
Bank overdraft 1(e) (1,406,582)
Payable for fund shares purchased (988,582)
Payable for investments purchased (35,547,252)
Loans payable 1(u) (5,828,522)
Expenses and other payables (7,642,436)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders) (203,545,263)
Net Assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders 38,168,585,957

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

adigeu behalf of the Board Signed by:
7BAB9C86049A4C5...
Nag?ﬁ?sﬁgi;ﬁm"' William Kennedy
Director Director

15 April 2025
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2023

MSCI USA MSCI USA Value MSCI World
Notes uCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usb usD usD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1(15%’\/)
Transferable securities 2,256,199,370 599,117,414 265,258,276
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) 126,170 31,880 35,628
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) 394,151 — —
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 5,484,755 83,579 1,144,761
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 227,145 93,691 168,955
Receivable for investments sold — 310,089 12,106
Dividends receivable 1,762,029 719,359 332,771
Other receivables 268,648 34,200 19,223
Total Current Assets 2,264,462,268 600,390,212 266,971,720
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — — (1,533)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (85,070) — —
Bank overdraft 1(e) (3,618) — —
Payable for investments purchased (618,239) — (157,279)
Expenses and other payables (288,761) (119,423) (48,558)
e 55580 (19429 or30)
:J::r:;iel‘t‘sefsttr|butable to redeemable participating 2,263,466,580 600,270,789 266,764,350
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2023

Solactive Global

Notes S&P 500 Pure Gold Miners MSCI Australia
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usb usb AUD
Current Assets
o . . ) 1(0),
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1))

Transferable securities 819,428,565 78,743,604 522,420,343

Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) 108,920 — 45,375

Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) 2,833,747 — 84,534
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 4,631,934 35,757 3,382,566
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 182,098 — 306,472
Dividends receivable 653,717 66,546 385,180
Other receivables 87,897 2,436 1,658
Total Current Assets 827,926,878 78,848,343 526,626,128
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)

Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (1,641) — (1,300,177)
Bank overdraft 1(e) — (227,877) —
Payable for investments purchased (225,680) — —
Expenses and other payables (121,022) (27,998) (177,680)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
redeemable participating shareholders) et el i) bl pit )
Net Assets attributable to redeemable participating 827,578,535 78,592,468 525,148,271
shareholders
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2023

S&P Dividend

MSCI USA MSCI USA Aristocrats
Notes hedged to EUR hedged to CHF ESG Elite
uCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
EUR CHF usD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1(1(5%’\/)
Transferable securities 425,276,769 208,478,704 154,399,940
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) 50,505 33,540 15,714
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) 4,683,360 5,773,607 37,160
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 1,218,169 870,474 394,130
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 125,747 68,154 156,857
Receivable for investments sold — — 1,366,565
Dividends receivable 325,730 156,996 865,158
Total Current Assets 431,680,280 215,381,475 157,235,524
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — — (238)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (44,192) (42,764) (161,868)
Bank overdraft 1(e) (62,347) — (18,653)
Payable for investments purchased (4,636,938) (5,768,995) (887,689)
Expenses and other payables (46,752) (23,175) (41,450)
e w0219 34330 105050
:l;atr:;ielsse Ia:\sttrlbu'cable to redeemable participating 426,890,051 209,546,541 156,125,626
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2023

MSCI United

Kingdom
Notes IMI Socially Factor MSCI USA Factor MSCI USA
Responsible Low Volatility Prime Value
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF
GBP usbD usbD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 125%’\/)

Transferable securities 885,101,108 41,513,840 275,551,903

Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — 6,625 13,250

Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) 1,815,176 67,430 486,338
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) — 176,272 —
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 40 30,671 82,622
Receivable for investments sold — 978,765 317,916
Dividends receivable 3,452,744 81,234 281,353
Other receivables — 6,482 26,776
Total Current Assets 890,369,068 42,861,319 276,760,158
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)

Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (41,477) — (124,560)
Bank overdraft 1(e) (2,657,563) (11,310) (300,879)
Payable for fund shares purchased — (1,025,542) —
Payable for investments purchased — (15,462) —
Expenses and other payables (178,294) (14,921) (80,982)
e
:I:atr:;::;sef:trlbutable to redeemable participating 887,491,734 41,794,084 276,253,737
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2023

MSCI ACWI
Factor MSCI USA MSCI USA Select Socially
Notes Quality ESG Factor Mix Responsible
uCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usbD usD usD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1(1(5%’\/)
Transferable securities 1,602,094,867 146,665,007 2,482,479,371
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) 1,618 7,970 209,205
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) 2,220,044 816,546 16,533,394
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 2,213,541 223,898 9,544,308
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 264,326 53,145 468,309
Receivable for investments sold 788,227 — —
Dividends receivable 850,250 170,201 4,766,160
Other receivables 66,153 22,883 —
Total Current Assets 1,608,499,026 147,959,650 2,514,000,747
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — — (3,207)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (440,289) — (5,914,788)
Payable for fund shares purchased (1,018,784) — —
Payable for investments purchased — (947,147) —
Expenses and other payables (361,633) (44,392) (618,965)
T 20700 on1539 330360
:l:atr:;s;;sefsttnbutable to redeemable participating 1,606,678,320 146,968,111 2,507,463,787
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2023

MSCI ACWI ESG
Universal Low

Global Gender

Notes Carbon Select Equality S&P 500 ESG
uCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usbD usD usD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1(1(5%’\/)
Transferable securities 3,101,517,413 754,712,583 3,630,683,384
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) 208,480 — 25,945
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) 19,628,556 4,237,248 14,657,315
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 10,274,711 130,690 5,150,493
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 689,747 — 195,006
Receivable for investments sold 548,133 1,042,608 24,891,699
Dividends receivable 4,368,991 3,642,515 2,371,571
Other receivables 208 579 —
Total Current Assets 3,137,236,239 763,766,223 3,677,975,413
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) (2,357) — —
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (6,930,316) (3,599,008) (6,559,532)
Bank overdraft 1(e) (442,503) (3,033,248) (65,435)
Payable for fund shares purchased — (1,329,838) (24,895,121)
Payable for investments purchased (172,242) — —
Expenses and other payables (673,658) (150,186) (361,925)
e D waziaro R
:l::r:;it:;sef:trlbutable to redeemable participating 3,129,015,163 755,653,043 3,646,093,400
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2023

MSCI World
MSCI USA Socially Socially S&P 500
Notes Responsible Responsible ESG ELITE
uCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usbD usD usD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1(15%’\/)
Transferable securities 1,844,308,151 1,204,254,039 287,857,142
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) 46,375 123,961 13,250
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) 3,015,297 3,063,276 584,497
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 2,498,544 7,804,699 838,791
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 316,721 322,157 63,808
Dividends receivable 1,539,553 1,392,864 146,193
Total Current Assets 1,851,724,641 1,216,960,996 289,503,681
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — (2,147) —
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (75,912) (757,372) (21,861)
Bank overdraft 1(e) (346,279) (4,936) (518,461)
Payable for fund shares purchased (1,934,463) — —
Payable for investments purchased — (1,447,933) —
Expenses and other payables (309,184) (208,391) (37,851)
redeomable partidpating sharehalders (2.665,838) (2420779 (578,173)
:l:atr:;ielssefsttnbutable to redeemable participating 1,849,058,803 1,214,540,217 288,925,508
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2023

UBS Climate
Aware Global MSCI EMU Climate MSCI Europe
Notes Developed Equity Paris Aligned Climate Paris Aligned
CTB UCITS ETF uCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usb EUR EUR
Current Assets
! ) ) ) ) 1(0),

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1)

Transferable securities 18,765,048 4,157,722 4,566,670

Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) 3,440 — —
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 73,179 120 20,124
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 17,909 — 4,002
Receivable for investments sold 5,253 — —
Dividends receivable 44,292 26,158 13,061
Total Current Assets 18,909,121 4,184,000 4,603,857
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)

Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — — 11)
Bank overdraft 1(e) — (2,383) —
Expenses and other payables (3,210) (623) (621)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
redeemable participating shareholders) ) B {EP)
Net Assets attributable to redeemable participating 18,905,911 4,180,994 4,603,225
shareholders
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2023

MSCI USA MSCI Japan MSCI World
Notes Climate Paris Aligned Climate Paris Aligned ) Climate Paris
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF Aligned UCITS ETF
usb JPY usD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1:5;5’\/)
Transferable securities 111,238,776 56,538,899,060 7,138,799
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) 9,860 1,150,500 —
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) — 132,996 —
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 318,334 342,899,522 15,471
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 32,742 20,374,139 2,571
Receivable for investments sold — 4,053,518,429 —
Receivable for fund shares sold 1,025,580 — —
Dividends receivable 86,561 67,465,252 7,228
Total Current Assets 112,711,853 61,024,439,898 7,164,069
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — — (12)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) — (97,234,455) —
Payable for fund shares purchased — (4,067,337,704) —
Payable for investments purchased (1,046,460) — —
Expenses and other payables (9,216) (7,106,538) (1,005)
T
?::r:;iti;sef:trlbutable to redeemable participating 111,656,177 56,852,761,201 7,163,052
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2023

MSCI Europe ESG

MSCI USA
ESG Universal Low

MSCl Japan ESG

Notes Universal Low Carbon Carbon Select  Universal Low Carbon
Select UCITS ETF’ UCITS ETF Select UCITS ETF
EUR usD JPY
Current Assets
! ) ) ) ) 1(0),
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1)
Transferable securities — 7,176,345 26,211,366,701
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — — 221,250
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) — 3,003 48,874,748
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments — — 6,585,672
Dividends receivable — 5,472 25,085,483
Other receivables 306 — —
Total Current Assets 306 7,184,820 26,292,133,854
Current Liabilities
Expenses and other payables (306) (531) (3,494,265)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
redeemable participating shareholders) L) D) R
Net Assets attributable to redeemable participating _ 7,184,289 26.288,639,589

shareholders

TMSCI Europe ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF ceased trading on 14 December 2023 and its assets transferred into MSCI EMU ESG Universal Low Carbon Select

UCITS ETF on the same date.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2023

MSCI EMU ESG
Universal Low Carbon

MSCI ACWI
Climate Paris

MSCI Emerging
Markets Climate Paris

Notes Select UCITS ETF Aligned UCITS ETF Aligned UCITS ETF
EUR usb usD
Current Assets
N . . ) 1(0),
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1))

Transferable securities 228,062,781 10,266,701 27,104,953

Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — 2,033 4,764
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 386,081 49,862 76,358
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 30,068 9,828 11,053
Receivable for investments sold — — 27,936
Dividends receivable 156,450 11,201 38,681
Total Current Assets 228,635,380 10,339,625 27,263,745
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)

Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) (1,933) — —
Payable for investments purchased — (2,274) (27,352)
Expenses and other payables (14,995) (1,669) (4,163)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
redeemable participating shareholders) ki) (L) i)
Net Assets attributable to redeemable participating 228,618,452 10,335,682 27,232,230
shareholders
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2023

MSCI Pacific
(ex Japan) MSCI Australia
Notes MSCI World Small Cap IMI Socially ESG Universal
Socially Responsible Responsible Low Carbon Select
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usbD usbD AUD
Current Assets
N . . . 1(0),
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1d)iv)

Transferable securities 200,949,711 7,738,255 6,055,050

Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) 22,379 1,954 —
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 788,618 20,156 9,737
Receivable for investments sold 97,319 18 —
Dividends receivable 288,028 6,536 7,330
Total Current Assets 202,146,055 7,766,919 6,072,117
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)

Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) (25,651) (13,190) —
Payable for fund shares purchased (1,056,714) — —
Payable for investments purchased (975) (13,292) (13,117)
Expenses and other payables (35,804) (1,667) (2,414)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
redeemable participating shareholders) (Al (ke iR
Net Assets attributable to redeemable participating 201,026,911 7,738,770 6,056,586
shareholders
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2023

MSCI AC Asia S&P USA
(ex Japan) ESG I_)ividend UBS (Irl) ETF
Notes Leaders Low Arlstocr?ts plc Total
Carbon Select ESG Elite USD
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
uUsbD usbD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 125%’\/)
Transferable securities 6,942,490 2,119,152 22,999,188,047
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) 695 — 1,132,111
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) — 10,814 83,015,595
Cash and cash equivalents 1(e) 13,023 149 59,911,338
Margin cash held with counterparties for open financial derivative
instruments 2,289 — 4,049,564
Receivable for investments sold 3,198 — 59,142,268
Receivable for fund shares sold — — 1,025,580
Dividends receivable 6,690 4,637 30,598,333
Other receivables — — 536,954
Total Current Assets 6,968,385 2,134,752 23,238,599,790
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 1(d)(iv)
Futures contracts 1(d)(vi) — — (11,641)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1(d)(vi) — — (26,440,451)
Bank overdraft 1(e) — — (8,432,720)
Payable for fund shares purchased — — (60,110,921)
Payable for investments purchased (3,198) (11,495) (17,561,638)
Expenses and other payables (1,716) (442) (4,091,557)
e A L SR Te as e arsswam
:l:atr:;ici;sef:trlbutable to redeemable participating 6,963,471 2,122,815 23,121,950,862
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI USA MSCI USA Value MSCI World
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usb usD usb
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 563,691,723 44,644,832 122,348,142
Dividend income 1(h) 36,991,355 12,309,695 19,328,486
Securities lending income 1), 9 76,749 28,006 230,261
Other income 502,774 47,715 299,090
Total net income 601,262,601 57,030,248 142,205,979
Expenses
Expenses 1(), 4 (1,943,435) (1,056,328) (1,270,504)
Total expenses (1,943,435) (1,056,328) (1,270,504)
Operating profit 599,319,166 55,973,920 140,935,475
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (11,559,604) (9,811,868) (4,148,975)
Interest expense 1(h) — (3,921) (1,781)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (5,207,580) (1,714,784) (2,382,772)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 582,551,982 44,443,347 134,401,947
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 582,551,982 44,443,347 134,401,947

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31

December 2024

Solactive Global

S&P 500 Pure Gold Miners MSCI Australia
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usb usD AUD
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(9) 187,117,743 41,486,496 57,541,916
Dividend income 1(h) 14,261,828 2,415,867 27,494,656
Securities lending income (@), 9 12,908 105,294 27,088
Other income 258,371 32,169 23,556
Total net income 201,650,850 44,039,826 85,087,216
Expenses
Expenses 10), 4 (1,002,890) (675,065) (2,817,134)
Total expenses (1,002,890) (675,065) (2,817,134)
Operating profit 200,647,960 43,364,761 82,270,082
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (9,165,554) (977,677) (8,486,295)
Interest expense 1(h) — (9,234) —
Taxation
Withholding taxes (2,013,480) (333,244) (419,265)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 189,468,926 42,044,606 73,364,522
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 189,468,926 42,044,606 73,364,522

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

S&P Dividend
MSCI USA MSCI USA Aristocrats
hedged to EUR hedged to CHF ESG Elite
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes EUR CHF usb
Income
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 78,612,096 41,353,691 (4,583,239)
Dividend income 1(h) 5,469,302 3,372,762 8,715,698
Securities lending income 1(a), 9 10,442 6,858 —
Other income 24,830 13,059 10,268
Total net income 84,116,670 44,746,370 4,142,727
Expenses
Expenses 1(), 4 (405,764) (249,076) (531,218)
Total expenses (405,764) (249,076) (531,218)
Operating profit 83,710,906 44,497,294 3,611,509
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (949,218) — (4,071,433)
Interest expense 1(h) (6,197) (1,218) (3,900)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (766,608) (474,447) (1,424,929)
Profit/(loss) after finance costs and taxes 81,988,883 44,021,635 (1,888,753)
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable
participating shareholders from operations 81,988,883 44,021,635 (1,888,753)

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI United
Kingdom
IMI Socially Factor MSCI USA Factor MSCI USA
Responsible Low Volatility Prime Value
uCITS ETF uCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF
Notes GBP usD usb
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 34,323,106 4,226,776 20,837,364
Dividend income 1(h) 26,090,351 1,060,303 5,329,972
Securities lending income 1), 9 — 998 —
Other income 3,352 8,558 19,965
Total net income 60,416,809 5,296,635 26,187,301
Expenses
Expenses 10), 4 (1,854,210) (80,133) (705,548)
Total expenses (1,854,210) (80,133) (705,548)
Operating profit 58,562,599 5,216,502 25,481,753
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (22,863,279) (641,394) (1,280,886)
Interest expense 1(h) (153,803) (169) (1,192)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (162,920) (147,021) (726,891)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 35,382,597 4,427,918 23,472,784
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 35,382,597 4,427,918 23,472,784

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI ACWI
Factor MSCI USA MSCI USA Select Socially
Quality ESG Factor Mix Responsible
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usb usD usb
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 291,538,447 19,732,672 352,338,936
Dividend income 1(h) 17,761,531 2,659,310 50,530,159
Securities lending income 1(a), 9 — 17,917 —
Other income 123,315 17,013 73,422
Total net income 309,423,293 22,426,912 402,942,517
Expenses
Expenses 1(), 4 (4,239,823) (393,253) (7,581,312)
Total expenses (4,239,823) (393,253) (7,581,312)
Operating profit 305,183,470 22,033,659 395,361,205
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (11,600,156) (433,648) (5,879,834)
Interest expense 1(h) (237) (173) (29,088)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (2,494,399) (367,895) (6,527,572)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 291,088,678 21,231,943 382,924,711
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 291,088,678 21,231,943 382,924,711

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI ACWI ESG
Universal Low

Global Gender

Carbon Select Equality S&P 500 ESG
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usb usD usb
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(9) 454,893,993 53,432,128 719,638,503
Dividend income 1(h) 72,380,330 23,287,293 59,281,113
Other income 158,794 11,601 173,930
Total net income 527,433,117 76,731,022 779,093,546
Expenses
Expenses 1), 4 (9,159,353) (1,711,393) (4,406,976)
Total expenses (9,159,353) (1,711,393) (4,406,976)
Operating profit 518,273,764 75,019,629 774,686,570
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (26,343,791) (1,609,413) (7,252,536)
Interest expense 1(h) (26,036) (99,682) —
Taxation
Withholding taxes (8,750,589) (1,687,901) (8,429,547)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 483,153,348 71,622,633 759,004,487
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 483,153,348 71,622,633 759,004,487

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI World
MSCI USA Socially Socially S&P 500
Responsible Responsible ESG ELITE
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usD usD usD
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(9) 234,978,683 173,800,222 37,274,468
Dividend income 1(h) 23,725,316 24,548,741 5,062,806
Other income 65,874 94,616 9,249
Total net income 258,769,873 198,443,579 42,346,523
Expenses
Expenses 1), 4 (3,298,186) (2,848,652) (524,114)
Total expenses (3,298,186) (2,848,652) (524,114)
Operating profit 255,471,687 195,594,927 41,822,409
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (4,224,103) (3,583,640) (225,776)
Interest expense 1(h) (3,295) (2,490) —
Taxation
Withholding taxes (3,402,472) (3,178,249) (717,076)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 247,841,817 188,830,548 40,879,557
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 247,841,817 188,830,548 40,879,557

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

UBS Climate MSCI Europe
Aware Global MSCI EMU Climate Climate Paris
Developed Equity Paris Aligned Aligned
CTB UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usb EUR EUR
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(9) 2,001,524 186,607 217,697
Dividend income 1(h) 315,961 116,184 137,730
Other income 2,725 221 434
Total net income 2,320,210 303,012 355,861
Expenses
Expenses 1), 4 (29,000) (6,155) (7,338)
Total expenses (29,000) (6,155) (7,338)
Operating profit 2,291,210 296,857 348,523
Finance costs
Distributions 8 — — —
Interest expense 1(h) — — —
Taxation
Withholding taxes (42,349) (11,851) (17,573)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 2,248,861 285,006 330,950
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 2,248,861 285,006 330,950

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI USA MSCl Japan
Climate Paris Climate Paris MSCI World
Aligned Aligned Climate Paris
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF Aligned UCITS ETF
Notes usb JPY usb
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 36,321,351 4,764,544,520 1,223,514
Dividend income 1(h) 2,481,186 859,685,373 135,793
Other income 6,681 94,329 674
Total net income 38,809,218 5,624,324,222 1,359,981
Expenses
Expenses 1(), 4 (190,316) (56,158,798) (12,493)
Total expenses (190,316) (56,158,798) (12,493)
Operating profit 38,618,902 5,568,165,424 1,347,488
Finance costs
Distributions 8 — — —
Interest expense 1(h) — (465,549) —
Taxation
Withholding taxes (350,825) (128,461,645) (19,547)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 38,268,077 5,439,238,230 1,327,941
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 38,268,077 5,439,238,230 1,327,941
Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI USA MSCI Japan ESG MSCI EMU ESG
ESG Universal Low Universal Low Universal Low
Carbon Select Carbon Carbon
UCITS ETF Select UCITS ETF Select UCITS ETF
Notes usD JPY EUR
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 1,849,266 1,834,799,359 12,332,547
Dividend income 1(h) 108,595 49,161,713 7,423,319
Other income 199 — 6,467
Total net income 1,958,060 1,883,961,072 19,762,333
Expenses
Expenses 1(), 4 (5,716) (5,334,448) (236,382)
Total expenses (5,716) (5,334,448) (236,382)
Operating profit 1,952,344 1,878,626,624 19,525,951
Finance costs
Distributions 8 — — —
Interest expense 1(h) — (72,595) —
Taxation
Withholding taxes (15,461) (7,360,015) (484,671)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 1,936,883 1,871,194,014 19,041,280
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 1,936,883 1,871,194,014 19,041,280

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI World Small

MSCI Emerging Cap
MSCI ACWI Markets Climate Socially
Climate Paris Paris Responsible
Aligned UCITS ETF Aligned UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usD usD usb
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 1,438,811 724,415 19,073,530
Dividend income 1(h) 195,340 1,153,123 9,583,640
Other income 1,887 5,624 10,680
Total net income 1,636,038 1,883,162 28,667,850
Expenses
Expenses 1(), 4 (20,873) (91,563) (1,023,666)
Total expenses (20,873) (91,563) (1,023,666)
Operating profit 1,615,165 1,791,599 27,644,184
Finance costs
Distributions 8 — — (404,040)
Interest expense 1(h) — (17,871) (31,406)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (27,618) (144,058) (1,084,989)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 1,587,547 1,629,670 26,123,749
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 1,587,547 1,629,670 26,123,749
Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI Pacific MSCI AC Asia
(ex Japan) MSCI Australia (ex Japan) ESG
IMI Socially ESG Universal Leaders Low
Responsible Low Carbon Select Carbon Select
uCITS ETF uCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usD AUD usbD
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 28,836 6,896,192 524,022
Dividend income 1(h) 254,692 3,680,597 181,707
Other income 117 80 340
Total net income 283,645 10,576,869 706,069
Expenses
Expenses 1(), 4 (14,237) (422,356) (21,976)
Total expenses (14,237) (422,356) (21,976)
Operating profit 269,408 10,154,513 684,093
Finance costs
Distributions 8 — — —
Interest expense 1(h) (840) (9,457) (251)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (4,119) (174,422) (21,272)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 264,449 9,970,634 662,570
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 264,449 9,970,634 662,570

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

S&P USA
Dividend
Aristocrats S&P 500 EUR Ultra-Short
ESG Elite Climate Transition Bond ESG
UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF ' UCITS ETF?
Notes usD usD EUR
Income
Net (loss)/gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(9) (143,251) 344,492 171,056
Dividend income 1(h) 74,060 28,853 —
Bond Income 13) — — 1,221,307
Other income 69 89 102,012
Total net (loss)/income (69,122) 373,434 1,494,375
Expenses
Expenses 1), 4 (2,551) (1,921) (31,299)
Total expenses (2,551) (1,921) (31,299)
Operating (loss)/profit (71,673) 371,513 1,463,076
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (41,841) (2,070) —
Interest expense 1(h) — — (52,163)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (10,107) (4,080) —
(Loss)/profit after finance costs and taxes (123,621) 365,363 1,410,913
(Decrease)/Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable
participating shareholders from operations (123,621) 365,363 1,410,913

" The Fund launched on 18 March 2024.
2 The Fund launched on 19 March 2024.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI Emerging Factor MSCI
MSCI Canada Markets ex China World Minimum
ESG Universal Low Socially Volatility ESG
Carbon Responsible UCITS Leaders
Select UCITS ETF? ETF3 UCITS ETF*
Notes CAD usD usb
Income
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(9) 357,365 389,729 (11,369,663)
Dividend income 1(h) 50,633 219,224 2,199,736
Other income 231 18 2,583
Total net income/(loss) 408,229 608,971 (9,167,344)
Expenses
Expenses 1G), 4 (5,692) (13,879) (259,500)
Total expenses (5,692) (13,879) (259,500)
Operating profit/(loss) 402,537 595,092 (9,426,844)
Finance costs
Distributions 8 — — —
Interest expense 1(h) — (721) (244)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (12,659) (33,462) (291,144)
Profit/(loss) after finance costs and taxes 389,878 560,909 (9,718,232)
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable
participating shareholders from operations 389,878 560,909 (9,718,232)

2 The Fund launched on 19 March 2024.
3 The Fund launched on 20 March 2024.
4 The Fund launched on 26 August 2024.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

FTSE EPRA MSCI USA
Nareit Developed ESG Leaders MSCI USA NSL
Green UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF* uCITS ETF*
Notes usbD usb usb

Income
Net (loss)/gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(9) (15,072,786) 98,720,746 133,624,896
Dividend income 1(h) 2,784,722 14,257,962 13,778,696
Other income 1,319 16,604 15,407
Total net (loss)/income (12,286,745) 112,995,312 147,418,999
Expenses
Expenses 1G), 4 (162,445) (1,120,952) (930,813)
Total expenses (162,445) (1,120,952) (930,813)
Operating (loss)/profit (12,449,190) 111,874,360 146,488,186
Finance costs
Distributions 8 — — —
Interest expense 1(h) (436) — (415)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (406,589) (1,986,972) (1,945,332)
(Loss)/profit after finance costs and taxes (12,856,215) 109,887,388 144,542,439
(Decrease)/Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable
participating shareholders from operations (12,856,215) 109,887,388 144,542,439

4 The Fund launched on 26 August 2024.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI USA Small MSCI USA Tech
Cap ESG Leaders 125 ESG Universal MSCI World ESG
UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF* Leaders UCITS ETF*
Notes usbD usb usb
Income
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(9) 316,608 3,774,483 (18,894,595)
Dividend income 1(h) 3,590,152 84,934 6,007,996
Other income 924 41 7,653
Total net income/(loss) 3,907,684 3,859,458 (12,878,946)
Expenses
Expenses 1G), 4 (428,080) (26,540) (664,927)
Total expenses (428,080) (26,540) (664,927)
Operating profit/(loss) 3,479,604 3,832,918 (13,543,873)
Finance costs
Distributions 8 — — —
Interest expense 1(h) (395) — (1,453)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (525,677) (9,368) (766,190)
Profit/(loss) after finance costs and taxes 2,953,532 3,823,550 (14,311,516)
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable
participating shareholders from operations 2,953,532 3,823,550 (14,311,516)

4 The Fund launched on 26 August 2024.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

UBS (Irl) ETF

plc Total

Notes usb
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(9) 3,847,945,429
Dividend income 1(h) 514,972,531
Bond Income 1) 1,318,337
Securities lending income 1(aq), 9 508,997
Other income 2,160,392
Total net income 4,366,905,686
Expenses
Expenses 1G), 4 (52,383,049)
Total expenses (52,383,049)
Operating profit 4,314,522,637
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (139,082,371)

Interest expense

(505,926)

Taxation

Withholding taxes

(60,618,806)

Profit after finance costs and taxes

4,114,315,534

Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders from operations

4,114,315,534

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI USA MSCI USA Value MSCI World
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usb usD usb
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 441,772,768 22,795,472 47,418,206
Dividend income 1(h) 31,803,346 17,974,293 5,027,617
Securities lending income 1), 9 90,870 28,119 80,510
Other income 290,254 40,433 30,141
Total net income 473,957,238 40,838,317 52,556,474
Expenses
Expenses 1(), 4 (2,717,017) (1,298,755) (712,602)
Total expenses (2,717,017) (1,298,755) (712,602)
Operating profit 471,240,221 39,539,562 51,843,872
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (11,539,741) (14,690,909) (3,034,407)
Interest expense 1(h) (11,184) (12,814) (379)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (4,474,682) (2,481,333) (618,364)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 455,214,614 22,354,506 48,190,722
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 455,214,614 22,354,506 48,190,722

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31

December 2023

Solactive Global

S&P 500 Pure Gold Miners MSCI Australia
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usb usD AUD
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(9) 162,490,532 4,521,602 62,177,602
Dividend income 1(h) 11,918,008 1,157,921 25,280,375
Securities lending income (@), 9 18,680 56,780 13,214
Other income 98,105 3,659 105,551
Total net income 174,525,325 5,739,962 87,576,742
Expenses
Expenses 10), 4 (980,528) (381,149) (2,411,879)
Total expenses (980,528) (381,149) (2,411,879)
Operating profit 173,544,797 5,358,813 85,164,863
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (7,829,124) (1,064,274) (13,739,308)
Interest expense 1(h) (251) (16,743) (2,017)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (1,680,395) (150,893) (183,912)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 164,035,027 4,126,903 71,239,626
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 164,035,027 4,126,903 71,239,626

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

S&P Dividend
MSCI USA MSCI USA Aristocrats
hedged to EUR hedged to CHF ESG Elite
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes EUR CHF usb
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 79,208,011 31,880,815 11,457,352
Dividend income 1(h) 6,744,538 3,262,515 9,073,168
Securities lending income 1(a), 9 15,248 8,309 —
Other income 14,073 7,099 6,168
Total net income 85,981,870 35,158,738 20,536,688
Expenses
Expenses 1(), 4 (765,785) (375,786) (559,356)
Total expenses (765,785) (375,786) (559,356)
Operating profit 85,216,085 34,782,952 19,977,332
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (1,436,407) — (7,047,059)
Interest expense 1(h) (21,714) (735) (44,204)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (934,463) (459,255) (1,355,806)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 82,823,501 34,322,962 11,530,263
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 82,823,501 34,322,962 11,530,263

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI United
Kingdom
IMI Socially Factor MSCI USA Factor MSCI USA
Responsible Low Volatility Prime Value
uCITS ETF uCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF
Notes GBP usD usb
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 33,826,387 1,947,171 48,957,438
Dividend income 1(h) 33,718,431 1,127,216 10,843,896
Securities lending income 1), 9 — 10,186 6,060
Other income 831 8,395 36,048
Total net income 67,545,649 3,092,968 59,843,442
Expenses
Expenses 10), 4 (2,131,010) (123,067) (1,257,680)
Total expenses (2,131,010) (123,067) (1,257,680)
Operating profit 65,414,639 2,969,901 58,585,762
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (29,599,189) (682,586) (8,534,544)
Interest expense 1(h) (155,802) (931) (15,409)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (150,141) (154,403) (1,517,914)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 35,509,507 2,131,981 48,517,895
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 35,509,507 2,131,981 48,517,895

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2024

94



Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI ACWI
Factor MSCI USA MSCI USA Select Socially
Quality ESG Factor Mix Responsible
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usb usD usb
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 386,992,396 22,676,120 588,478,162
Dividend income 1(h) 18,060,865 3,446,186 47,483,324
Securities lending income 1(a), 9 10,019 37,146 —
Other income 82,239 22,027 99,023
Total net income 405,145,519 26,181,479 636,060,509
Expenses
Expenses 1(), 4 (3,230,315) (463,663) (7,600,066)
Total expenses (3,230,315) (463,663) (7,600,066)
Operating profit 401,915,204 25,717,816 628,460,443
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (11,138,458) (472,206) (7,019,387)
Interest expense 1(h) (3,455) (4,405) (40,116)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (2,589,607) (483,014) (6,289,205)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 388,183,684 24,758,191 615,111,735
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 388,183,684 24,758,191 615,111,735

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI ACWI ESG
Universal Low

Global Gender

Carbon Select Equality S&P 500 ESG
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usb usD usb
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(9) 591,975,119 161,798,473 805,215,079
Dividend income 1(h) 59,963,509 28,883,887 54,517,300
Other income 147,119 468 152,966
Total net income 652,085,747 190,682,828 859,885,345
Expenses
Expenses 1), 4 (7,778,363) (2,356,763) (4,357,411)
Total expenses (7,778,363) (2,356,763) (4,357,411)
Operating profit 644,307,384 188,326,065 855,527,934
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (14,387,806) (2,238,867) (7,551,810)
Interest expense 1(h) (111,975) (188,836) —
Taxation
Withholding taxes (7,484,495) (1,789,354) (7,789,133)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 622,323,108 184,109,008 840,186,991
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 622,323,108 184,109,008 840,186,991

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI World
MSCI USA Socially Socially S&P 500
Responsible Responsible ESG ELITE
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usD usD usD
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(9) 399,329,526 254,745,356 53,281,274
Dividend income 1(h) 20,590,897 19,576,804 3,867,504
Other income 43,558 52,582 6,486
Total net income 419,963,981 274,374,742 57,155,264
Expenses
Expenses 1), 4 (2,845,410) (2,288,388) (369,459)
Total expenses (2,845,410) (2,288,388) (369,459)
Operating profit 417,118,571 272,086,354 56,785,805
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (7,790,003) (3,284,901) (268,184)
Interest expense 1(h) — (1,222) —
Taxation
Withholding taxes (2,959,883) (2,575,330) (556,091)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 406,368,685 266,224,901 55,961,530
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 406,368,685 266,224,901 55,961,530

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

UBS Climate MSCI Europe
Aware Global MSCI EMU Climate Climate Paris
Developed Equity Paris Aligned Aligned
CTB UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usb EUR EUR
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(9) 4,023,558 770,550 642,156
Dividend income 1(h) 502,243 127,115 126,896
Other income 2,114 384 287
Total net income 4,527,915 898,049 769,339
Expenses
Expenses 1(), 4 (41,418) (8,498) (7,818)
Total expenses (41,418) (8,498) (7,818)
Operating profit 4,486,497 889,551 761,521
Finance costs
Distributions 8 — — —
Interest expense 1(h) (58) (73) (135)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (63,526) (8,125) (15,311)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 4,422,913 881,353 746,075
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 4,422,913 881,353 746,075

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI USA MSCl Japan
Climate Paris Climate Paris MSCI World
Aligned Aligned Climate Paris
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF Aligned UCITS ETF
Notes usb JPY usD
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 21,875,764 8,459,776,853 1,527,675
Dividend income 1(h) 1,212,060 734,832,736 129,208
Other income 3,348 7,607 783
Total net income 23,091,172 9,194,617,196 1,657,666
Expenses
Expenses 1(), 4 (101,023) (72,764,160) (13,422)
Total expenses (101,023) (72,764,160) (13,422)
Operating profit 22,990,149 9,121,853,036 1,644,244
Finance costs
Distributions 8 — — —
Interest expense 1(h) (50) (694,547) —
Taxation
Withholding taxes (172,299) (109,863,930) (18,914)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 22,817,800 9,011,294,559 1,625,330
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 22,817,800 9,011,294,559 1,625,330
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI Europe ESG
Universal Low

MSCI USA
ESG Universal Low

MSCI Japan ESG
Universal Low

Carbon Carbon Select Carbon
Select UCITS ETF UCITS ETF Select UCITS ETF
Notes EUR usD JPY
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 1,093,772 2,088,668 736,142,134
Dividend income 1(h) 291,672 122,873 314,096,869
Other income 5,826 995 —
Total net income 1,391,270 2,212,536 1,050,239,003
Expenses
Expenses 1(), 4 (9,957) (9,204) (23,246,932)
Total expenses (9,957) (9,204) (23,246,932)
Operating profit 1,381,313 2,203,332 1,026,992,071
Finance costs
Distributions 8 — — —
Interest expense 1(h) — — (806,886)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (51,947) (17,530) (47,097,837)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 1,329,366 2,185,802 979,087,348
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 1,329,366 2,185,802 979,087,348

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2024

100



Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI EMU ESG MSCI Emerging
Universal Low MSCI ACWI Markets Climate
Carbon Climate Paris Paris
Select UCITS ETF Aligned UCITS ETF Aligned UCITS ETF
Notes EUR usb usD
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 6,408,640 1,526,504 1,361,611
Dividend income 1(h) 980,817 160,519 639,780
Other income 1,082 1,842 5,857
Total net income 7,390,539 1,688,865 2,007,248
Expenses
Expenses 1(), 4 (61,241) (17,202) (59,367)
Total expenses (61,241) (17,202) (59,367)
Operating profit 7,329,298 1,671,663 1,947,881
Finance costs
Distributions 8 — — —
Interest expense 1(h) — (38) (882)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (55,584) (22,793) (78,512)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 7,273,714 1,648,832 1,868,487
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 7,273,714 1,648,832 1,868,487
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI World Small MSCI Pacific
Cap (ex Japan) MSCI Australia
Socially IMI Socially ESG Universal
Responsible Responsible Low Carbon Select
uCITS ETF uCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usbD usD AUD
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 20,534,282 358,946 216,537
Dividend income 1(h) 3,316,155 298,125 211,588
Other income 1,225 42 —
Total net income 23,851,662 657,113 428,125
Expenses
Expenses 1(), 4 (350,501) (27,385) (20,753)
Total expenses (350,501) (27,385) (20,753)
Operating profit 23,501,161 629,728 407,372
Finance costs
Distributions 8 (200,534) — —
Interest expense 1(h) (9,679) (1,085) (855)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (359,957) (5,320) (8,478)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 22,930,991 623,323 398,039
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 22,930,991 623,323 398,039

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI AC Asia S&P USA
(ex Japan) ESG Dividend
Leaders Low Aristocrats
Carbon Select ESG Elite UBS (Irl) ETF
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF plc Total
Notes usD usD usb
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1(g) 10,242 85,141 4,338,830,845
Dividend income 1(h) 108,220 30,365 430,818,744
Securities lending income 1(q), 9 — — 372,914
Other income 261 238 1,238,857
Total net income 118,723 115,744 4,771,261,360
Expenses
Expenses 10), 4 (10,541) (965) (46,245,093)
Total expenses (10,541) (965) (46,245,093)
Operating profit 108,182 114,779 4,725,016,267
Finance costs
Distributions 8 — (1,589) (156,367,592)
Interest expense 1(h) (162) — (695,291)
Taxation
Withholding taxes (13,787) (4,141) (48,797,346)
Profit after finance costs and taxes 94,233 109,049 4,519,156,038
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 94,233 109,049 4,519,156,038

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI USA MSCI USA Value MSCI World
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usb usbD usb
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 2,263,466,580 600,270,789 266,764,350
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1,344,706,847 605,692,690 1,991,354,095
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (1,228,183,846) (500,847,976) (185,760,184)
Net increase from share transactions 116,523,001 104,844,714 1,805,593,911
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 582,551,982 44,443,347 134,401,947
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the financial
year 2,962,541,563 749,558,850 2,206,760,208
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 1,878,355 — —
Class (USD) A-acc 44,680,976 — 1,942,057
Class (USD) A-dis 8,406,665 6,021,750 2,661,203
Class (USD) A-UKdis 859,248 — —
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 665,814 — —
Class (USD) A-acc 33,707,420 — 45,023,561
Class (USD) A-dis 1,702,609 5,497,114 2,633,081
Class (USD) A-UKdis 1,430,176 — —
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc — — 79,022,763
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc — — 12,266,267
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — 2,798,084
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc (1,211,897) — —
Class (USD) A-acc (26,953,814) — (3,159,039)
Class (USD) A-dis (2,245,080) (4,776,722) (571,595)
Class (USD) A-UKdis (811,058) — —
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc — — (5,493,039)
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc — — (2,512,451)
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — (200,000)
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 1,332,272 — —
Class (USD) A-acc 51,434,582 — 43,806,579
Class (USD) A-dis 7,864,194 6,742,142 4,722,689
Class (USD) A-UKdis 1,478,366 — —
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc — — 73,529,724
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc — — 9,753,816
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — 2,598,084
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 104



Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Solactive Global

S&P 500 Pure Gold Miners MSCI Australia
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usD usD AUD
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 827,578,535 78,592,468 525,148,271
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 256,344,498 230,817,517 368,234,457
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (73,341,716) (197,061,661) (205,519,935)
Net increase from share transactions 183,002,782 33,755,856 162,714,522
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 189,468,926 42,044,606 73,364,522
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the financial
year 1,200,050,243 154,392,930 761,227,315
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (AUD) A-acc — — 7,666,253
Class (AUD) A-dis — — 2,430,317
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 2,869,447 — 1,055,827
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 1,594,026 — 953,344
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc — — 94,512
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 1,396,386 — —
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc — — 805,691
Class (USD) A-dis 8,631,574 5,050,281 —
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (AUD) A-acc — — 1,840,117
Class (AUD) A-dis — — 5,401,758
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 25,302,354 — 84,390
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 929,886 — 1,685,877
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc — — 97,667
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 180,348 — —
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc — — 695,222
Class (USD) A-dis 1,564,870 12,631,016 —
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (AUD) A-acc — — (2,943,414)
Class (AUD) A-dis — — (236,276)
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc (230,688) — (55,500)
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc (250,216) — (1,500,540)
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc — — (73,067)
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis (54,000) — —
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc — — (117,802)
Class (USD) A-dis (641,812) (9,794,247) —
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Solactive Global

S&P 500 Pure Gold Miners MSCI Australia
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usD usD AUD
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year

Class (AUD) A-acc — — 6,562,956
Class (AUD) A-dis — — 7,595,799
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 27,941,113 — 1,084,717
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 2,273,696 — 1,138,681
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc — — 119,112
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 1,522,734 — —
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc — — 1,383,111
Class (USD) A-dis 9,554,632 7,887,050 —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 106



Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

S&P Dividend
MSCI USA MSCI USA Aristocrats
hedged to EUR hedged to CHF ESG Elite
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
EUR CHF usb
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 426,890,051 209,546,541 156,125,626
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 113,359,247 63,873,748 109,567,096
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (230,147,309) (27,273,163) (140,101,398)
Net (decrease)/increase from share transactions (116,788,062) 36,600,585 (30,534,302)
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 81,988,883 44,021,635 (1,888,753)
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the financial
year 392,090,872 290,168,761 123,702,571
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (CHF) A-acc — 5,794,434 —
Class (EUR) A-acc 8,150,939 — —
Class (EUR) A-dis 3,828,456 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis — — 1,163,651
Class (USD) A-dis — — 14,381,349
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (CHF) A-acc — 1,553,869 —
Class (EUR) A-acc 1,628,144 — —
Class (EUR) A-dis 1,307,324 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis — — 425,443
Class (USD) A-dis — — 10,695,152
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (CHF) A-acc — (638,000) —
Class (EUR) A-acc (3,380,262) — —
Class (EUR) A-dis (2,579,448) — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis — — (50,000)
Class (USD) A-dis — — (14,151,757)
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (CHF) A-acc — 6,710,303 —
Class (EUR) A-acc 6,398,821 — —
Class (EUR) A-dis 2,556,332 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis — — 1,539,094
Class (USD) A-dis — — 10,924,744
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI United
Kingdom
IMI Socially Factor MSCI USA Factor MSCI USA
Responsible Low Volatility Prime Value
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF
GBP usD usb
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 887,491,734 41,794,084 276,253,737
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 166,874,399 6,515,773 212,872,375
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (324,419,115) (7,631,000) (333,002,837)
Net decrease from share transactions (157,544,716) (1,115,227) (120,130,462)
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 35,382,597 4,427,918 23,472,784
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the financial
year 765,329,615 45,106,775 179,596,059
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (GBP) A-dis 50,776,180 — —
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 8,637,610 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 1,566,400 191,107 921,888
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — 571,845
Class (USD) A-dis — 1,247,153 7,195,237
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (GBP) A-dis 6,203,866 — —
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 1,393,493 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 3,308,769 34,446 114,200
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — 51,000
Class (USD) A-dis — 168,506 6,111,956
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (GBP) A-dis (15,471,355) — —
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis (9,018,439) — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc (463,320) (74,500) (575,213)
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — (293,404)
Class (USD) A-dis — (167,500) (8,796,878)
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (GBP) A-dis 41,508,691 —_ —
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 1,012,664 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 4,411,849 151,053 460,875
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — 329,441
Class (USD) A-dis — 1,248,159 4,510,315
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI ACWI
Factor MSCI USA MSCI USA Select Socially
Quality ESG Factor Mix Responsible
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usb usb usbD
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 1,606,678,320 146,968,111 2,507,463,787
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 721,961,332 25,813,166 732,763,178
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (1,190,477,673) (42,658,393) (835,532,290)
Net decrease from share transactions (468,516,341) (16,845,227) (102,769,112)
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 291,088,678 21,231,943 382,924,711
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year 1,429,250,657 151,354,827 2,787,619,386
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 1,329,520 1,117,104 29,191,230
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis — — 1,804,088
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 2,640,120 317,360 47,691,781
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 621,688 — 21,655,044
Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc — — 2,525,450
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc — — 13,352,905
Class (USD) A-acc — 2,478,396 27,216,375
Class (USD) A-dis 32,802,410 1,100,988 5,616,708
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 556,848 92,890 7,209,023
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis — — 408,387
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 1,182,049 40,500 6,073,912
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 491,902 — 598,839
Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc — — 135,434
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc — — 12,688,346
Class (USD) A-acc — 442,734 10,700,071
Class (USD) A-dis 12,694,653 216,790 1,954,677
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc (593,675) (252,005) (5,096,554)
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis — — (323,893)
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc (2,818,954) (82,151) (9,191,245)
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis (293,117) — (7,065,365)
Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc — — (2,660,884)
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc — — (8,406,397)
Class (USD) A-acc — (662,079) (10,031,166)
Class (USD) A-dis (20,573,798) (338,818) (2,567,689)
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI ACWI
Factor MSCI USA MSCI USA Select Socially
Quality ESG Factor Mix Responsible
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usD usD usb
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year

Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 1,292,693 957,989 31,303,699
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis — — 1,888,582
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 1,003,215 275,709 44,574,448
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 820,473 — 15,188,518
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc — — 17,634,854
Class (USD) A-acc — 2,259,051 27,885,280
Class (USD) A-dis 24,923,265 978,960 5,003,696

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI ACWI ESG
Universal Low

Global Gender

Carbon Select Equality S&P 500 ESG
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usb usb usb
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 3,129,015,163 755,653,943 3,646,093,400
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1,493,893,304 440,933,833 2,928,926,476
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (976,504,602) (680,847,304) (2,233,950,876)
Net increase/(decrease) from share transactions 517,388,702 (239,913,471) 694,975,600
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 483,153,348 71,622,633 759,004,487
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year 4,129,557,213 587,363,105 5,100,073,487
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 39,046,702 8,426,647 4,081,481
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 3,335,406 569,904 —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 17,251,361 4,837,734 19,169,768
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 4,810,304 2,257,058 —
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — 265,940
Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc 5,207,226 — —
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc 30,252,449 11,154,458 —
Class (USD) A-acc — 5,360,062 67,111,950
Class (USD) A-dis 83,812,689 4,039,835 19,039,083
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 12,507,021 8,257,143 30,284,820
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 4,531,618 60,128 —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 5,099,353 216,640 5,015,562
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 2,952,686 65,045 —
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — 420,320
Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc 4,176,218 — —
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc 8,671,089 64,318 —
Class (USD) A-acc — 12,989,518 57,694,240
Class (USD) A-dis 44,963,172 7,469 8,381,446
Class (hedged to AUD) A-acc — 2,214,183 —
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc (5,211,260) (9,499,215) (2,569,085)
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis (4,576,842) (282,290) —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc (2,810,007) (3,984,234) (10,454,163)
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc (1,389,363) (2,163,819) —
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — (456,700)
Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc (2,437,053) — —
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc (3,833,856) (11,027,528) —
Class (USD) A-acc — (707,208) (38,029,668)
Class (USD) A-dis (34,617,805) (1,573,432) (8,814,422)
Class (hedged to AUD) A-acc — (391,003) —
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI ACWI ESG
Universal Low Global Gender

Carbon Select Equality S&P 500 ESG
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usb usD usb
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year

Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 46,342,463 7,184,575 31,797,216
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 3,290,182 347,742 —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 19,540,707 1,070,140 13,731,167
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 6,373,627 158,284 —
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — 229,560
Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc 6,946,391 — —
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc 35,089,682 191,248 —
Class (USD) A-acc — 17,642,372 86,776,522
Class (USD) A-dis 94,158,056 2,473,872 18,606,107
Class (hedged to AUD) A-acc — 1,823,180 —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI World
MSCI USA Socially Socially S&P 500
Responsible Responsible ESG ELITE
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usb usbD uUsbD
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 1,849,058,803 1,214,540,217 288,925,508
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1,277,814,327 642,334,774 502,022,825
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (1,432,081,773) (367,106,075) (95,496,816)
Net (decrease)/increase from share transactions (154,267,446) 275,228,699 406,526,009
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 247,841,817 188,830,548 40,879,557
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year 1,942,633,174 1,678,599,464 736,331,074
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 1,477,897 5,246,833 —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 3,285,995 12,970,472 2,342,220
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 11,791,697 143,417 1,585,600
Class (USD) A-acc 74,615,427 34,263,244 13,665,234
Class (USD) A-dis 15,778,259 15,781,698 —
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 7,518,569 28,153,058 —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 4,160,303 3,606,221 494,215
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 3,192,594 115,545 154,000
Class (USD) A-acc 34,014,041 18,989,052 24,868,851
Class (USD) A-dis 17,368,558 3,832,506 —
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc (1,056,879) (1,531,396) —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc (1,150,107) (8,270,583) (2,370,528)
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis (7,190,053) (166,093) (1,048,586)
Class (USD) A-acc (57,396,902) (3,940,256) (1,978,208)
Class (USD) A-dis (9,417,447) (6,172,104) —
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 7,939,587 31,868,495 —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 6,296,191 8,306,110 465,907
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 7,794,238 92,869 691,014
Class (USD) A-acc 51,232,566 49,312,040 36,555,877
Class (USD) A-dis 23,729,370 13,442,100 —
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

UBS Climate MSCI Europe
Aware Global MSCI EMU Climate Climate Paris
Developed Equity Paris Aligned Aligned
CTB UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usbD EUR EUR
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 18,905,911 4,180,994 4,603,225
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year — — —
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (7,113,577) — —
Net decrease from share transactions (7,113,577) — —
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 2,248,861 285,006 330,950
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year 14,041,195 4,466,000 4,934,175
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (EUR) A-acc — 302,374 327,000
Class (USD) A-acc 1,219,414 — —
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (USD) A-acc (432,594) — —
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (EUR) A-acc — 302,374 327,000
Class (USD) A-acc 786,820 — —
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI Japan
MSCI USA Climate Paris MSCI World
Climate Paris Aligned Aligned Climate Paris
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF Aligned UCITS ETF
usb JPY uUsbD
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of
the financial year 111,656,177 56,852,761,201 7,163,052
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 325,668,987 2,553,220,510 3,089,247
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (19,554,528) (25,528,626,302) (1,220,086)
Net increase/(decrease) from share transactions 306,114,459 (22,975,405,792) 1,869,161
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 38,268,077 5,439,238,230 1,327,941
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year 456,038,713 39,316,593,639 10,360,154
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (JPY) A-acc — 26,393,629 —
Class (ir-hedged to EUR) A-acc — 1,279,209 —
Class (USD) A-acc 6,532,272 — 425,186
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (JPY) A-acc — 1,152,864 —
Class (USD) A-acc 15,999,798 — 160,500
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (JPY) A-acc — (11,374,531) —
Class (ir-hedged to EUR) A-acc — (59,270) —
Class (USD) A-acc (1,062,670) — (65,000)
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (JPY) A-acc — 16,171,962 —
Class (ir-hedged to EUR) A-acc — 1,219,939 —
Class (USD) A-acc 21,469,400 — 520,686
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI USA MSCI Japan ESG MSCI EMU ESG
ESG Universal Low Universal Low Universal Low
Carbon Select Carbon Carbon
UCITS ETF Select UCITS ETF Select UCITS ETF
usb JPY EUR
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of
the financial year 7,184,289 26,288,639,589 228,618,452
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year — 1,202,280,087 92,127,721
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (6,092,492) (27,075,617,781) (234,615,485)
Net decrease from share transactions (6,092,492) (25,873,337,694) (142,487,764)
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 1,936,883 1,871,194,014 19,041,280
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year 3,028,680 2,286,495,909 105,171,968
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (EUR) A-acc — — 12,880,182
Class (JPY) A-acc — 21,832,661 —
Class (USD) A-acc 468,191 — —
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (EUR) A-acc — — 4,771,107
Class (JPY) A-acc — 952,300 —
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (EUR) A-acc — — (12,338,324)
Class (JPY) A-acc — (21,219,000) —
Class (USD) A-acc (310,000) — —
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (EUR) A-acc — — 5,312,965
Class (JPY) A-acc — 1,565,961 —
Class (USD) A-acc 158,191 — —
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI World Small

MSCI Emerging Cap
MSCI ACWI Markets Climate Socially
Climate Paris Paris Responsible
Aligned UCITS ETF Aligned UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usb usbD usb
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of
the financial year 10,335,682 27,232,230 201,026,911
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 6,864,478 60,352,591 558,170,359
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (2,145,417) (832,790) (306,422,490)
Net increase from share transactions 4,719,061 59,519,801 251,747,869
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 1,587,547 1,629,670 26,123,749
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year 16,642,290 88,381,701 478,898,529
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc — — 244,002
Class (USD) A-acc 663,538 2,525,001 18,669,647
Class (USD) A-dis — — 1,843,827
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc — — 2,882,708
Class (USD) A-acc 385,900 5,239,666 43,746,079
Class (USD) A-dis — — 10,805,180
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc — — (3,126,710)
Class (USD) A-acc (136,396) (70,000) (16,625,466)
Class (USD) A-dis — — (11,479,412)
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (USD) A-acc 913,042 7,694,667 45,790,260
Class (USD) A-dis — — 1,169,595
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI Pacific MSCI AC Asia
(ex Japan) MSCI Australia (ex Japan) ESG
IMI Socially ESG Universal Leaders Low
Responsible Low Carbon Select Carbon Select
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usb AUD usb
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 7,738,770 6,056,586 6,963,471
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1,039,161 160,723,958 —
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (2,698,704) (1,843,052) —
Net (decrease)/increase from share transactions (1,659,543) 158,880,906 —
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 264,449 9,970,634 662,570
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the financial
year 6,343,676 174,908,126 7,626,041
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 65,200 — —
Class (USD) A-acc 420,000 — 470,000
Class (AUD) A-acc — 282,663 —
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (USD) A-acc 66,000 — —
Class (AUD) A-acc — 6,926,133 —
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (USD) A-acc (170,000) — —
Class (AUD) A-acc — (85,000) —
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 65,200 — —
Class (USD) A-acc 316,000 — 470,000
Class (AUD) A-acc — 7,123,796 —
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

S&P USA
Dividend
Aristocrats S&P 500 EUR Ultra-Short
ESG Elite Climate Transition Bond ESG
UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF ! UCITS ETF?
usb usb EUR
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 2,122,815 — —
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 11,909,830 2,630,599 71,804,162
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (7,564,954) — (41,793,092)
Net increase from share transactions 4,344,876 2,630,599 30,011,070
(Decrease)/Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders from
operations (123,621) 365,363 1,410,913
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the financial
year 6,344,070 2,995,962 31,421,983
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (USD) A-dis 260,000 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis 290,000 — —
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (USD) A-dis 1,631,000 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis 1,405,234 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc — 100,000 —
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — 100,000 —
Class (USD) A-acc — 200,000 —
Class (EUR) A-acc — — 14,192,890
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (USD) A-dis (520,000) — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis (1,500,000) — —
Class (EUR) A-acc — — (8,135,000)
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (USD) A-dis 1,371,000 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis 195,234 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc — 100,000 —
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — 100,000 —
Class (USD) A-acc — 200,000 —
Class (EUR) A-acc — — 6,057,890
" The Fund launched on 18 March 2024.
2 The Fund launched on 19 March 2024.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI Emerging Factor MSCI
Markets ex China World Minimum
MSCI Canada Socially Volatility ESG
ESG Universal Low Carbon Responsible UCITS Leaders
Select UCITS ETF? ETF? UCITS ETF*
CAD usb usb
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at
beginning of the financial year — — —
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 2,036,916 8,189,978 298,358,816
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year — — (12,653,591)
Net increase from share transactions 2,036,916 8,189,978 285,705,225
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders
from operations 389,878 560,909 (9,718,232)
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of
the financial year 2,426,794 8,750,887 275,986,993
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (CAD) A-acc 250,000 — —
Class (USD) A-acc — 1,600,000 2,197,465
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (USD) A-acc — — (92,676)
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (CAD) A-acc 250,000 — —
Class (USD) A-acc — 1,600,000 2,104,789
2 The Fund launched on 19 March 2024.
3 The Fund launched on 20 March 2024.
4 The Fund launched on 26 August 2024.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

FTSE EPRA MSCI USA
Nareit Developed ESG Leaders MSCI USA NSL
Green UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF*
usb usD usb

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year — — —
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 197,705,295 3,277,023,619 2,940,737,402
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (7,685,507) (341,750,749) (225,497,362)
Net increase from share transactions 190,019,788 2,935,272,870 2,715,240,040
(Decrease)/Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders from
operations (12,856,215) 109,887,388 144,542,439
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year 177,163,573 3,045,160,258 2,859,782,479
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (USD) A-dis 1,656,205 — —
Class (USD) A-acc — 14,728,248 13,404,681
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (USD) A-dis (64,100) — —
Class (USD) A-acc — (1,488,703) (1,005,081)
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (USD) A-dis 1,592,105 — —
Class (USD) A-acc — 13,239,545 12,399,600
4 The Fund launched on 26 August 2024.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI USA Small MSCI USA Tech
Cap ESG Leaders 125 ESG Universal MSCI World ESG
UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF* Leaders UCITS ETF*
usD usD usb
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year — — —
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 731,103,406 52,392,429 1,286,165,585
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (128,239,787) (17,880,078) (51,302,462)
Net increase from share transactions 602,863,619 34,512,351 1,234,863,123
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 2,953,532 3,823,550 (14,311,516)
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year 605,817,151 38,335,901 1,220,551,607
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (USD) A-acc 4,113,453 3,483,541 3,566,957
Class (hedged to CHF) A — acc — — 1,091,804
Class (hedged to EUR) A — acc — — 1,385,963
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (USD) A-acc (687,428) (1,129,748) (154,712)
Class (hedged to CHF) A — acc — — (79,041)
Class (hedged to EUR) A — acc — — (4,601)
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (USD) A-acc 3,426,025 2,353,793 3,412,245
Class (hedged to CHF) A — acc — — 1,012,763
Class (hedged to EUR) A — acc — — 1,381,362
4 The Fund launched on 26 August 2024.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 122



Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

UBS (Irl) ETF
plc Total

Notes usb

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the financial year

23,121,950,862

Share transactions

Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year

24,244,863,264

Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year

(13,134,528,611)

Net increase from share transactions

11,110,334,653

Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations

4,114,315,534

Foreign currency translation 1(b) (178,015,092)
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the financial year 38,168,585,957
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI USA MSCI USA Value MSCI World
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usD usbD usb
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 1,718,641,377 962,377,434 222,960,781
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 637,312,671 346,407,324 22,864,036
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (547,702,082) (730,868,475) (27,251,189)
Net increase/(decrease) from share transactions 89,610,589 (384,461,151) (4,387,153)
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 455,214,614 22,354,506 48,190,722
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the financial
year 2,263,466,580 600,270,789 266,764,350
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 1,987,840 — —
Class (USD) A-acc 37,362,466 — 1,734,511
Class (USD) A-dis 9,171,460 10,271,748 2,806,275
Class (USD) A-UKdis 1,241,214 — —
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 4,879,297 — —
Class (USD) A-acc 19,057,709 — 315,925
Class (USD) A-dis 630,136 3,702,767 198,191
Class (USD) A-UKdis 196,154 — —
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc (4,988,782) — —
Class (USD) A-acc (11,739,199) — (108,379)
Class (USD) A-dis (1,394,931) (7,952,765) (343,263)
Class (USD) A-UKdis (578,120) — —
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 1,878,355 — —
Class (USD) A-acc 44,680,976 — 1,942,057
Class (USD) A-dis 8,406,665 6,021,750 2,661,203
Class (USD) A-UKdis 859,248 — —
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

Solactive Global

S&P 500 Pure Gold Miners MSCI Australia
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usD usD AUD
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 627,973,911 76,201,841 552,126,691
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 107,509,557 44,875,610 534,921,519
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (71,939,960) (46,611,886) (633,139,565)
Net increase/(decrease) from share transactions 35,569,597 (1,736,276) (98,218,046)
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 164,035,027 4,126,903 71,239,626
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the financial
year 827,578,535 78,592,468 525,148,271
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (AUD) A-acc — — 7,531,115
Class (AUD) A-dis — — 3,131,896
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 2,376,453 — 3,122,212
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 1,311,210 — 961,620
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc — — 65,769
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 1,615,212 — —
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc — — 811,492
Class (USD) A-dis 8,278,790 5,331,492 —
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (AUD) A-acc — — 579,496
Class (AUD) A-dis — — 12,893,463
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 734,751 — 151,615
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 668,416 — 2,714,724
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc — — 108,743
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 95,100 — —
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc — — 185,717
Class (USD) A-dis 1,087,791 2,895,620 —
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (AUD) A-acc — — (444,358)
Class (AUD) A-dis — — (13,595,042)
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc (241,757) — (2,218,000)
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc (385,600) — (2,723,000)
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc — — (80,000)
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis (313,926) — —
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc — — (191,518)
Class (USD) A-dis (735,007) (3,176,831) —
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

Solactive Global

S&P 500 Pure Gold Miners MSCI Australia
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usD usD AUD
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year

Class (AUD) A-acc — — 7,666,253
Class (AUD) A-dis — — 2,430,317
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 2,869,447 — 1,055,827
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 1,594,026 — 953,344
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc — — 94,512
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 1,396,386 — —
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc — — 805,691
Class (USD) A-dis 8,631,574 5,050,281 —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

S&P Dividend
MSCI USA MSCI USA Aristocrats
hedged to EUR hedged to CHF ESG Elite
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
EUR CHF usb
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 426,853,414 177,694,940 182,635,785
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 113,765,719 44,888,094 49,048,166
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (196,552,583) (47,359,455) (87,088,588)
Net decrease from share transactions (82,786,864) (2,471,361) (38,040,422)
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 82,823,501 34,322,962 11,530,263
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the financial
year 426,890,051 209,546,541 156,125,626
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (CHF) A-acc — 5,914,256 —
Class (EUR) A-acc 10,412,120 — —
Class (EUR) A-dis 4,243,551 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis — — 249,375
Class (USD) A-dis — — 19,546,555
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (CHF) A-acc — 1,321,944 —
Class (EUR) A-acc 3,281,156 — —
Class (EUR) A-dis 140,390 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis — — 945,868
Class (USD) A-dis — — 4,067,124
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (CHF) A-acc — (1,441,766) —
Class (EUR) A-acc (5,542,337) — —
Class (EUR) A-dis (555,485) — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis — — (31,592)
Class (USD) A-dis — — (9,232,330)
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (CHF) A-acc — 5,794,434 —
Class (EUR) A-acc 8,150,939 — —
Class (EUR) A-dis 3,828,456 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis — — 1,163,651
Class (USD) A-dis — — 14,381,349
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI United
Kingdom
IMI Socially Factor MSCI USA Factor MSCI USA
Responsible Low Volatility Prime Value
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF
GBP usbD usb
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 916,986,877 50,525,791 576,560,041
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 186,558,497 3,766,653 122,081,539
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (251,563,147) (14,630,341) (470,905,738)
Net decrease from share transactions (65,004,650) (10,863,688) (348,824,199)
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 35,509,507 2,131,981 48,517,895
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the financial
year 887,491,734 41,794,084 276,253,737
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (GBP) A-dis 60,222,981 — —
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 771,140 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 770,790 241,323 2,291,143
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — 639,609
Class (USD) A-dis — 1,595,795 17,508,209
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (GBP) A-dis 6,862,137 — —
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 8,047,344 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 1,035,726 139,784 —
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — 192,393
Class (USD) A-dis — — 4,034,482
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (GBP) A-dis (16,308,938) — —
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis (180,874) — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc (240,116) (190,000) (1,369,255)
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — (260,157)
Class (USD) A-dis — (348,642) (14,347,454)
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (GBP) A-dis 50,776,180 —_ —
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 8,637,610 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 1,566,400 191,107 921,888
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — 571,845
Class (USD) A-dis — 1,247,153 7,195,237
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI ACWI
Factor MSCI USA MSCI USA Select Socially
Quality ESG Factor Mix Responsible
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usb usb usbD
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 998,295,466 186,366,893 2,716,481,618
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1,087,070,034 25,076,735 1,495,295,398
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (866,870,864) (89,233,708) (2,319,424,964)
Net increase/(decrease) from share transactions 220,199,170 (64,156,973) (824,129,566)
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 388,183,684 24,758,191 615,111,735
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year 1,606,678,320 146,968,111 2,507,463,787
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc — 1,285,965 42,590,084
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis — — 1,604,767
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 3,037,140 410,574 77,034,981
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 1,997,033 — 25,882,614
Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc — — 1,773,139
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc — — 46,884,918
Class (USD) A-acc — 4,367,343 13,872,943
Class (USD) A-dis 26,273,932 1,227,449 1,880,672
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 1,569,151 46,449 15,600,741
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis — — 918,037
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 2,286,208 90,008 21,952,174
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 56,797 — 5,246,694
Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc — — 1,375,334
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc — — 7,082,823
Class (USD) A-acc — 777,706 30,892,317
Class (USD) A-dis 25,311,130 — 16,494,343
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc (239,631) (215,310) (28,999,595)
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis — — (718,716)
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc (2,683,228) (183,222) (51,295,374)
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis (1,432,142) — (9,474,264)
Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc — — (623,023)
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc — — (40,614,836)
Class (USD) A-acc — (2,666,653) (17,548,885)
Class (USD) A-dis (18,782,652) (126,461) (12,758,307)
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI ACWI
Factor MSCI USA MSCI USA Select Socially
Quality ESG Factor Mix Responsible
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usD usD usb

Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 1,329,520 1,117,104 29,191,230
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis — — 1,804,088
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 2,640,120 317,360 47,691,781
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 621,688 — 21,655,044
Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc — — 2,525,450
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc — — 13,352,905
Class (USD) A-acc — 2,478,396 27,216,375
Class (USD) A-dis 32,802,410 1,100,988 5,616,708

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI ACWI ESG

Universal Low

Global Gender

Carbon Select Equality S&P 500 ESG
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usb usb usb
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 2,682,438,714 1,604,842,409 2,967,265,787
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 640,395,581 126,623,147 2,039,770,644
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (816,142,240) (1,159,920,621) (2,201,130,022)
Net decrease from share transactions (175,746,659) (1,033,297,474) (161,359,378)
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 622,323,108 184,109,008 840,186,991
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year 3,129,015,163 755,653,943 3,646,093,400
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 48,722,893 17,055,132 8,889,018
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 1,502,550 1,071,259 —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 25,811,430 13,334,464 29,562,883
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 6,916,533 4,208,435 —
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — 220,737
Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc 4,625,119 — —
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc 39,057,639 25,243,821 —
Class (USD) A-acc — 27,640,255 54,508,923
Class (USD) A-dis 65,433,463 4,377,292 22,770,893
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 385,905 647,877 2,519,112
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 8,810,264 — —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 3,624,005 270,610 30,676,385
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc — 67,369 —
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — 806,499
Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc 1,785,010 — —
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc 836,055 145,192 —
Class (USD) A-acc — 4,620,524 34,132,197
Class (USD) A-dis 28,752,078 1,686,971 3,745,896
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc (10,062,096) (9,276,362) (7,326,649)
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis (6,977,408) (501,355) —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc (12,184,074) (8,767,340) (41,069,500)
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc (2,106,229) (2,018,746) —
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — (761,296)
Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc (1,202,903) — —
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc (9,641,245) (14,234,555) —
(
(

Class (USD) A-acc — (26,900,717) (21,529,170)
Class (USD) A-dis (10,372,852) (2,024,428) (7,477,706)
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI ACWI ESG
Universal Low Global Gender

Carbon Select Equality S&P 500 ESG
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usb usb usb
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year

Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 39,046,702 8,426,647 4,081,481
Class (hedged to CHF) A-dis 3,335,406 569,904 —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 17,251,361 4,837,734 19,169,768
Class (hedged to GBP) A-acc 4,810,304 2,257,058 —
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis — — 265,940
Class (hedged to JPY) A-acc 5,207,226 — —
Class (hedged to USD) A-acc 30,252,449 11,154,458 —
Class (USD) A-acc — 5,360,062 67,111,950
Class (USD) A-dis 83,812,689 4,039,835 19,039,083

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI World
MSCI USA Socially Socially S&P 500
Responsible Responsible ESG ELITE
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usb usb uUsbD
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 1,208,535,166 854,756,598 57,217,112
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1,102,275,768 319,947,184 212,110,607
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (868,120,816) (226,388,466) (36,363,741)
Net increase from share transactions 234,154,952 93,558,718 175,746,866
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 406,368,685 266,224,901 55,961,530
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year 1,849,058,803 1,214,540,217 288,925,508
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 1,255,080 4,901,184 59,931
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 3,729,408 12,211,390 1,669,575
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis 288,177 — —
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 18,556,258 143,417 49,996
Class (USD) A-acc 31,298,999 31,316,052 2,889,010
Class (USD) A-dis 35,518,313 13,791,372 —
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 806,528 817,339 —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 1,289,725 8,945,342 859,418
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis 507,415 — —
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 3,129,355 — 1,677,900
Class (USD) A-acc 53,088,021 8,975,557 12,913,174
Class (USD) A-dis 15,055,666 2,894,342 —
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc (583,711) (471,690) (59,931)
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc (1,733,138) (8,186,260) (186,773)
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis (795,592) — —
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis (9,893,916) — (142,296)
Class (USD) A-acc (9,771,593) (6,028,365) (2,136,950)
Class (USD) A-dis (34,795,720) (904,016) —
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (hedged to CHF) A-acc 1,477,897 5,246,833 —
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 3,285,995 12,970,472 2,342,220
Class (hedged to GBP) A-dis 11,791,697 143,417 1,585,600
Class (USD) A-acc 74,615,427 34,263,244 13,665,234
Class (USD) A-dis 15,778,259 15,781,698 —
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

UBS Climate MSCI Europe
Aware Global MSCI EMU Climate Climate Paris
Developed Equity Paris Aligned Aligned
CTB UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usbD EUR EUR
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of the
financial year 24,559,358 5,475,585 4,871,854
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year — 3,280,837 —
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (10,076,360) (5,456,781) (1,014,704)
Net decrease from share transactions (10,076,360) (2,175,944) (1,014,704)
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 4,422,913 881,353 746,075
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year 18,905,911 4,180,994 4,603,225
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (EUR) A-acc — 466,000 407,000
Class (USD) A-acc 1,942,024 — —
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (EUR) A-acc — 255,000 —
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (EUR) A-acc — (418,626) (80,000)
Class (USD) A-acc (722,610) — —
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (EUR) A-acc — 302,374 327,000
Class (USD) A-acc 1,219,414 — —
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI Japan
MSCI USA Climate Paris MSCI World
Climate Paris Aligned Aligned Climate Paris
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF Aligned UCITS ETF
usb JPY uUsbD
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of
the financial year 79,049,231 17,732,372,316 6,589,396
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 18,909,635 41,118,015,028 —
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (9,120,489) (11,008,920,702) (1,051,674)
Net increase/(decrease) from share transactions 9,789,146 30,109,094,326 (1,051,674)
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 22,817,800 9,011,294,559 1,625,330
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year 111,656,177 56,852,761,201 7,163,052
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (JPY) A-acc — 9,530,000 —
Class (ir-hedged to EUR) A-acc — 1,210,000 —
Class (USD) A-acc 5,965,394 — 491,000
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (JPY) A-acc — 22,351,547 —
Class (ir-hedged to EUR) A-acc — 161,551 —
Class (USD) A-acc 1,182,878 — —
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (JPY) A-acc — (5,487,918) —
Class (ir-hedged to EUR) A-acc — (92,342) —
Class (USD) A-acc (616,000) — (65,814)
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (JPY) A-acc — 26,393,629 —
Class (ir-hedged to EUR) A-acc — 1,279,209 —
Class (USD) A-acc 6,532,272 — 425,186
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI USA

MSCI Europe ESG ESG Universal Low

MSCI Japan ESG
Universal Low

Universal Low Carbon Carbon Select Carbon
Select UCITS ETF UCITS ETF Select UCITS ETF
EUR usb JPY
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of
the financial year 9,382,482 14,145,208 1,793,817,110
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year — — 24,807,516,032
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (10,711,848) (9,146,721) (1,291,780,901)
Net (decrease)/increase from share transactions (10,711,848) (9,146,721) 23,515,735,131
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 1,329,366 2,185,802 979,087,348
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year — 7,184,289 26,288,639,589
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (EUR) A-acc 610,000 — —
Class (JPY) A-acc — — 1,900,000
Class (USD) A-acc — 1,177,777 —
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (JPY) A-acc — — 21,188,661
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (EUR) A-acc (610,000) — —
Class (JPY) A-acc — — (1,256,000)
Class (USD) A-acc — (709,586) —
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (JPY) A-acc — — 21,832,661
Class (USD) A-acc — 468,191 —
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI Emerging

MSCI EMU ESG MSCI ACWI Markets Climate
Universal Low Carbon Climate Paris Paris
Select UCITS ETF Aligned UCITS ETF Aligned UCITS ETF
EUR usb usb
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning of
the financial year 23,236,794 6,283,185 24,882,075
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 200,697,653 2,403,665 1,528,929
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (2,589,709) — (1,047,261)
Net increase from share transactions 198,107,944 2,403,665 481,668
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 7,273,714 1,648,832 1,868,487
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year 228,618,452 10,335,682 27,232,230
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (EUR) A-acc 1,557,749 — —
Class (USD) A-acc — 494,312 2,477,000
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (EUR) A-acc 11,472,433 — —
Class (USD) A-acc — 169,226 148,000
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (EUR) A-acc (150,000) — —
Class (USD) A-acc — — (99,999)
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (EUR) A-acc 12,880,182 — —
Class (USD) A-acc — 663,538 2,525,001
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI Pacific
(ex Japan) MSCI Australia
MSCI World Small Cap IMI Socially ESG Universal
Socially Responsible Responsible Low Carbon Select
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
usbD usbD AUD
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at beginning
of the financial year 122,418,378 7,115,447 —
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 81,491,242 — 7,007,422
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year (25,813,700) — (1,348,875)
Net increase from share transactions 55,677,542 — 5,658,547
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 22,930,991 623,323 398,039
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end of the
financial year 201,026,911 7,738,770 6,056,586
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 288,210 65,200 —
Class (USD) A-acc 12,710,328 420,000 —
Class (USD) A-dis 1,614,560 — —
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 394,992 — —
Class (USD) A-acc 7,598,330 — —
Class (USD) A-dis 1,058,301 — —
Class (AUD) A-acc — — 347,000
Number of shares redeemed during the financial year
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc (439,200) — —
Class (USD) A-acc (1,639,011) — —
Class (USD) A-dis (829,034) — —
Class (AUD) A-acc — — (64,337)
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (hedged to EUR) A-acc 244,002 65,200 —
Class (USD) A-acc 18,669,647 420,000 —
Class (USD) A-dis 1,843,827 — —
Class (AUD) A-acc — — 282,663
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI AC Asia S&P USA
(ex Japan) ESG Dividend
Leaders Low Aristocrats
Carbon Select ESG Elite UBS (Irl) ETF
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF plc Total
Notes usb usD usb
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at
beginning of the financial year — — 20,298,076,817
Share transactions
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 6,869,238 2,013,766 9,948,154,085
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year — — (11,745,609,065)
Net increase/(decrease) from share transactions 6,869,238 2,013,766 (1,797,454,980)
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 94,233 109,049 4,519,156,038
Foreign currency translation 1(b) — — 102,172,987
Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders at end
of the financial year 6,963,471 2,122,815 23,121,950,862
Number of shares in issue at the beginning of the financial year
Number of shares issued during the financial year
Class (USD) A-acc 470,000 —
Class (USD) A-dis — 260,000
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis — 290,000
Number of shares in issue at the end of the financial year
Class (USD) A-acc 470,000 —
Class (USD) A-dis — 260,000
Class (hedged to EUR) A-dis — 290,000
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI USA Value

MSCI World UCITS

MSCI USA UCITS ETF UCITS ETF ETF

Notes usb usD usb
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 582,551,982 44,443,347 134,401,947
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 11,559,604 9,811,868 4,148,975
Withholding tax 5,207,580 1,714,784 2,382,772
Total 599,319,166 55,969,999 140,933,694
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (562,016,701) (44,330,773) (121,581,706)
Payments for purchase of investments (1,140,876,307) (641,707,702) (1,941,796,773)
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,009,550,660 538,892,984 141,593,955
Movement in margin cash (473,267) (156,651) (987,658)
Movement in payables 590,044 51,420 389,527
Cash (used in) operations (93,906,405) (91,280,723) (1,781,448,961)
Movement in other receivables (468,527) (40,906) (276,020)
Movement in dividend receivable 178,989 53,636 (1,096,157)
Withholding Tax paid (5,207,580) (1,714,784) (2,382,772)
Net cash (used in) operations (99,403,523) (92,982,777) (1,785,203,910)
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (11,559,604) (9,811,868) (4,148,975)
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 1,344,706,847 605,692,690 1,991,354,095
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (1,228,183,846) (500,847,976) (185,760,184)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 104,963,397 95,032,846 1,801,444,936
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,559,874 2,050,069 16,241,026
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 5,481,137 83,579 1,144,761
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 11,041,011 2,133,648 17,385,787
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 11,041,011 2,133,648 17,385,787
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid — (3,921) (1,781)
Dividend income received 37,170,344 12,363,331 18,232,329
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“*Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Solactive Global Pure
Gold Miners UCITS

MSCI Australia UCITS

S&P 500 UCITS ETF ETF ETF
Notes usb usD AUD
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 189,468,926 42,044,606 73,364,522
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 9,165,554 977,677 8,486,295
Withholding tax 2,013,480 333,244 419,265
Total 200,647,960 43,355,527 82,270,082
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (194,814,549) (41,248,992) (56,585,154)
Payments for purchase of investments (229,505,719) (257,930,633) (369,396,377)
Proceeds from sale of investments 56,838,382 223,553,403 193,740,391
Movement in margin cash (458,099) — (180,432)
Movement in payables 285,831 61,122 81,852
Cash (used in) operations (167,006,194) (32,209,573) (150,069,638)
Movement in other receivables (245,091) (31,371) —
Movement in dividend receivable 17,826 6,958 (85,445)
Withholding Tax paid (2,013,480) (333,244) (419,265)
Net cash (used in) operations (169,246,939) (32,567,230) (150,574,348)
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (9,165,554) (977,677) (8,486,295)
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 256,344,498 230,817,517 366,610,709
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (73,341,716) (197,061,661) (205,519,935)
Repayment of Loans — (2,000,000) —
Proceeds of Loans — 2,000,000 —
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 173,837,228 32,778,179 152,604,479
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,590,289 210,949 2,030,131
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 4,631,934 (192,120) 3,382,566
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 9,222,223 18,829 5,412,697
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 9,363,950 31,517 5,930,899
Bank overdraft (141,727) (12,688) (518,202)
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid — (9,234) —
Dividend income received 14,279,654 2,422,825 27,409,211
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
““Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

S&P Dividend
MSCI USA hedged to MSCI USA hedged to Aristocrats ESG Elite
EUR UCITS ETF CHF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes EUR CHF usbD
Cash flows from operating activities
Increased/(decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 81,988,883 44,021,635 (1,888,753)
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 949,218 — 4,071,433
Withholding tax 766,608 474,441 1,424,929
Total 83,704,709 44,496,076 3,607,609
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (98,830,624) (55,645,117) 4,629,681
Payments for purchase of investments (125,175,373) (88,483,698) (201,731,897)
Proceeds from sale of investments 258,054,107 62,798,984 229,111,604
Movement in margin cash 59,962 39,476 (2,072)
Movement in payables (12,140) 1,519 (9,398)
Cash provided by/(used in) operations 117,800,641 (36,792,760) 35,605,527
Movement in dividend receivable 112,066 1,378 264,738
Withholding Tax paid (766,608) (474,447) (1,424,929)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operations 117,146,099 (37,265,823) 34,445,336
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (949,218) — (4,071,433)
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 113,359,247 63,873,748 109,567,096
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (230,147,309) (27,273,163) (140,101,398)
Net cash flows (used in)/provided by financing activities (117,737,280) 36,600,585 (34,605,735)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (591,181) (665,238) (160,399)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 1,155,822 870,474 375,477
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 564,641 205,236 215,078
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 564,641 205,236 256,355
Bank overdraft — — (41,277)
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (6,197) (1,218) (3,900)
Dividend income received 5,581,368 3,374,140 8,980,436
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“"Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI United
Kingdom IMI Socially
Responsible UCITS

Factor MSCI USA Low

Factor MSCI USA
Prime Value ESG

ETF Volatility UCITS ETF ucITS ETF

Notes GBP usb usb
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 35,382,597 4,427,918 23,472,784
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 22,863,279 641,394 1,280,886
Withholding tax 162,920 147,021 726,891
Total 58,408,796 5,216,333 25,480,561
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (38,630,702) (4,396,010) (21,545,604)
Payments for purchase of investments (385,120,335) (14,144,338) (314,627,534)
Proceeds from sale of investments 545,483,965 16,125,892 433,217,191
Movement in margin cash (2) (3,948) 22,936
Movement in payables (29,532) 8,724 3,696
Cash provided by operations 180,112,190 2,806,653 122,551,246
Movement in other receivables — (6,643) (16,166)
Movement in dividend receivable 1,803,733 14,950 7,450
Withholding Tax paid (162,920) (147,021) (726,891)
Net cash provided by operations 181,753,003 2,667,939 121,815,639
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (22,863,279) (641,394) (1,280,886)
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 166,874,399 6,515,773 212,872,375
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (324,419,115) (8,656,542) (333,002,837)
Repayment of Loans (38,200,000) — —
Proceeds of Loans 39,700,000 — —
Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (178,907,995) (2,782,163) (121,411,348)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,845,008 (114,224) 404,291
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year (2,657,563) 164,962 (300,879)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 187,445 50,738 103,412
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 187,445 50,738 103,412
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (153,803) (169) (1,192)
Dividend income received 27,894,084 1,075,253 5,337,422
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“*Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Factor MSCI USA

Quality ESG UCITS

MSCI USA Select

MSCI ACWI Socially
Responsible UCITS

ETF  Factor Mix UCITS ETF ETF

Notes usb usbD usD
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 291,088,678 21,231,943 382,924,711
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 11,600,156 433,648 5,879,834
Withholding tax 2,494,399 367,895 6,527,572
Total 305,183,233 22,033,486 395,332,117
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (297,207,477) (21,485,355) (388,539,646)
Payments for purchase of investments (1,079,155,698) (66,813,052) (1,055,254,864)
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,554,240,531 83,814,272 1,159,647,440
Movement in margin cash 90,386 (4,372) (154,397)
Movement in payables 133,668 17,046 50,219
Cash provided by operations 483,284,643 17,562,025 111,080,869
Movement in other receivables (115,140) (11,399) —
Movement in dividend receivable 64,257 27,802 236,149
Withholding Tax paid (2,494,399) (367,895) (6,527,572)
Net cash provided by operations 480,739,361 17,210,533 104,789,446
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (11,600,156) (433,648) (5,879,834)
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 721,961,332 25,813,166 732,762,819
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (1,191,496,457) (42,658,393) (835,532,290)
Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (481,135,281) (17,278,875) (108,649,305)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (395,920) (68,342) (3,859,859)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 2,213,541 223,898 9,544,308
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 1,817,621 155,556 5,684,449
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,817,621 162,854 6,212,971
Bank overdraft — (7,298) (528,522)
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (237) (173) (29,088)
Dividend income received 17,825,788 2,687,112 50,766,308
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
““Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI ACWI ESG
Universal Low
Carbon Select UCITS

Global Gender

S&P 500 ESG UCITS

ETF Equality UCITS ETF ETF
Notes usb usb usb

Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 483,153,348 71,622,633 759,004,487
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 26,343,791 1,609,413 7,252,536
Withholding tax 8,750,589 1,687,901 8,429,547
Total 518,247,728 74,919,947 774,686,570
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (490,202,262) (60,359,915) (755,819,451)
Payments for purchase of investments (1,288,417,464) (526,696,589) (2,954,364,330)
Proceeds from sale of investments 831,043,247 756,408,685 2,279,869,395
Movement in margin cash (145,893) — (209,939)
Movement in payables 186,711 (41,247) 102,651
Cash (used in)/provided by operations (429,287,933) 244,230,881 (655,735,104)
Movement in dividend receivable 32,805 383,795 (557,461)
Withholding Tax paid (8,750,589) (1,687,901) (8,429,547)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operations (438,005,717) 242,926,775 (664,722,112)
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (26,343,791) (1,609,413) (7,252,536)
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 1,439,122,880 440,933,833 2,928,926,476
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (975,516,020) (682,177,142) (2,258,845,997)
Repayment of Loans — (35,100,000) —
Proceeds of Loans — 38,200,000 —
Net cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities 437,263,069 (239,752,722) 662,827,943
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (742,648) 3,174,053 (1,894,169)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 9,832,208 (2,902,558) 5,085,058
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 9,089,560 271,495 3,190,889
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 9,089,560 369,323 3,435,360
Bank overdraft — (97,828) (244,471)
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (26,036) (99,682) —
Dividend income received 72,413,135 23,671,088 58,723,652
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“*Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI USA Socially
Responsible UCITS

MSCI World Socially
Responsible UCITS

S&P 500 ESG ELITE

ETF ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usbD usD usbD
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 247,841,817 188,830,548 40,879,557
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 4,224,103 3,583,640 225,776
Withholding tax 3,402,472 3,178,249 717,076
Total 255,468,392 195,592,437 41,822,409
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (245,114,528) (182,619,267) (37,745,687)
Payments for purchase of investments (1,546,471,401) (828,472,811) (523,325,298)
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,700,270,613 546,303,048 114,959,290
Movement in margin cash 150,428 (266,468) (61,192)
Movement in payables 33,172 76,269 27,933
Cash provided by/(used in) operations 164,336,676 (269,386,792) (404,322,545)
Movement in dividend receivable 50,045 (275,895) (121,589)
Withholding Tax paid (3,402,472) (3,178,249) (717,076)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operations 160,984,249 (272,840,936) (405,161,210)
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (4,224,103) (3,583,640) (225,776)
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 1,277,814,327 642,334,774 502,022,825
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (1,434,016,236) (367,106,075) (95,496,816)
Net cash flows (used in)/provided by financing activities (160,426,012) 271,645,059 406,300,233
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 558,237 (1,195,877) 1,139,023
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 2,152,265 7,799,763 320,330
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 2,710,502 6,603,886 1,459,353
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,710,502 6,604,106 1,459,353
Bank overdraft — (220) —
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (3,295) (2,490) —
Dividend income received 23,775,361 24,272,846 4,941,217
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“"Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

UBS Climate Aware
Global Developed

MSCI EMU Climate
Paris Aligned UCITS

MSCI Europe Climate
Paris Aligned UCITS

Equity CTB UCITS ETF ETF ETF

Notes usb EUR EUR
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 2,248,861 285,006 330,950
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Withholding tax 42,349 11,851 17,573
Total 2,291,210 296,857 348,523
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (1,983,845) (187,921) (216,282)
Payments for purchase of investments (5,267,447) (635,013) (719,777)
Proceeds from sale of investments 12,120,523 553,831 589,525
Movement in margin cash (21,173) (6,259) (3,477)
Movement in payables (908) (91) 13
Cash provided by/(used in) operations 7,138,360 21,404 (1,475)
Movement in dividend receivable 21,032 4,955 (459)
Withholding Tax paid (42,349) (11,851) (17,573)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operations 7,117,043 14,508 (19,507)
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) — — —
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (7,113,577) — —
Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (7,113,577) — —
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,466 14,508 (19,507)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 73,179 (2,263) 20,124
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 76,645 12,245 617
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 76,645 12,245 617
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid — — —
Dividend income received 336,993 121,139 137,271

“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“*Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI USA Climate
Paris Aligned UCITS

MSCI Japan Climate
Paris Aligned UCITS

MSCI World Climate
Paris Aligned UCITS

ETF ETF ETF
Notes usbD JPY usbD
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 38,268,077 5,439,238,230 1,327,941
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Withholding tax 350,825 128,461,645 19,547
Total 38,618,902 5,567,699,875 1,347,488
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (36,232,025) (4,673,866,092) (1,221,596)
Payments for purchase of investments (355,648,283) (20,153,137,461) (4,069,088)
Proceeds from sale of investments 47,006,348 46,158,154,612 2,155,199
Movement in margin cash (29,109) 11,832,946 (12,399)
Movement in payables 24,971 (3,039,963) 338
Cash (used in)/provided by operations (306,259,196) 26,907,643,917 (1,800,058)
Movement in other receivables — (287) —
Movement in dividend receivable (109,942) 20,908,959 (862)
Withholding Tax paid (350,825) (128,461,645) (19,547)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operations (306,719,963) 26,800,090,944 (1,820,467)
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 326,694,567 2,553,220,510 3,089,247
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (19,554,528) (29,595,964,006) (1,220,086)
Net cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities 307,140,039 (27,042,743,496) 1,869,161
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 420,076 (242,652,552) 48,694
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 318,334 342,899,522 15,471
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 738,410 100,246,970 64,165
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 738,410 100,246,970 64,165
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid — (465,549) —
Dividend income received 2,371,244 880,594,332 134,931

“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“"Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI USA ESG
Universal Low
Carbon Select UCITS

MSCI Japan ESG
Universal Low
Carbon Select UCITS

MSCI EMU ESG
Universal Low
Carbon Select UCITS

ETF ETF ETF
Notes usb JPY EUR
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 1,936,883 1,871,194,014 19,041,280
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Withholding tax 15,461 7,360,015 484,671
Total 1,952,344 1,878,554,029 19,525,951
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (1,848,961) (1,824,515,817) (12,231,102)
Payments for purchase of investments (1,130,350) (1,529,678,717) (118,407,441)
Proceeds from sale of investments 7,132,232 27,304,441,966 254,218,646
Movement in margin cash — 3,004,151 (42,434)
Movement in payables (32) (3,208,730) (3,197)
Cash provided by operations 6,105,233 25,828,596,882 143,060,423
Movement in dividend receivable 1,786 23,208,778 (390,009)
Withholding Tax paid (15,461) (7,360,015) (484,671)
Net cash provided by operations 6,091,558 25,844,445,645 142,185,743
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) — 1,202,280,087 92,127,721
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (6,092,492) (27,075,617,781) (234,615,485)
Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (6,092,492) (25,873,337,694) (142,487,764)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (934) (28,892,049) (302,021)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 3,003 48,874,748 386,081
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 2,069 19,982,699 84,060
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,069 19,982,699 84,060
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid — (72,595) —
Dividend income received 110,381 72,370,491 7,033,310
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
““Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI World Small

MSCI ACWI Climate MSCI Emerging Cap Socially
Paris Aligned UCITS ~ Markets Climate Paris Responsible UCITS
ETF Aligned UCITS ETF ETF
Notes usb usb usb
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 1,587,547 1,629,670 26,123,749
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares — — 404,040
Withholding tax 27,618 144,058 1,084,989
Total 1,615,165 1,773,728 27,612,778
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (1,426,772) (712,792) (19,228,576)
Payments for purchase of investments (8,467,564) (69,186,042) (704,951,807)
Proceeds from sale of investments 3,606,444 9,005,995 446,917,114
Movement in margin cash (12,924) (24,655) —
Movement in payables 928 8,103 58,861
Cash (used in) operations (4,684,723) (59,135,663) (249,591,630)
Movement in dividend receivable (1,780) (43,687) (416,470)
Withholding Tax paid (27,618) (144,058) (1,084,989)
Net cash (used in) operations (4,714,121) (59,323,408) (251,093,089)
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares — — (404,040)
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 6,864,478 60,352,591 558,170,056
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (2,145,417) (832,790) (307,479,204)
Repayment of Loans — — (3,000,000)
Proceeds of Loans — — 3,850,000
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 4,719,061 59,519,801 251,136,812
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,940 196,393 43,723
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 49,862 76,358 788,618
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 54,802 272,751 832,341
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 54,802 272,751 832,341
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid — (17,871) (31,406)
Dividend income received 193,560 1,109,436 9,167,170
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
““Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI Pacific (ex
Japan) IMI Socially
Responsible UCITS

MSCI Australia ESG
Universal Low
Carbon Select UCITS

MSCI AC Asia (ex
Japan) ESG Leaders
Low Carbon Select

ETF ETF ucITS ETF
Notes usD AUD usD
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 264,449 9,970,634 662,570
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Withholding tax 4,119 174,422 21,272
Total 268,568 10,145,056 683,842
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (58,082) (6,887,744) (529,479)
Payments for purchase of investments (2,615,343) (178,473,963) (1,624,426)
Proceeds from sale of investments 4,049,053 18,263,045 1,485,378
Movement in margin cash — — (5,732)
Movement in payables (583) 61,473 250
Cash provided by/(used in) operations 1,643,613 (156,892,133) 9,833
Movement in dividend receivable 881 (155,198) 4,922
Withholding Tax paid (4,119) (174,422) (21,272)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operations 1,640,375 (157,221,753) (6,517)
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 1,039,161 159,109,110 —
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (2,698,704) (1,843,052) —
Repayment of Loans (249,000) — —
Proceeds of Loans 249,000 — —
Net cash flows (used in)/provided by financing activities (1,659,543) 157,266,058 —
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (19,168) 44,305 (6,517)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 20,156 9,737 13,023
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 988 54,042 6,506
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 10,752 54,042 6,506
Bank overdraft (9,764) — —
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (840) (9,457) (251)
Dividend income received 255,573 3,525,399 186,629
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“*Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

S&P USA Dividend
Aristocrats ESG Elite

S&P 500 Climate
Transition ESG UCITS

EUR Ultra-Short Bond

UCITS ETF ETF’ ESG UCITS ETF?

Notes usb usD EUR
Cash flows from operating activities
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations (123,621) 365,363 1,410,913
Adjustment for:
Bond Income 13) — — (1,221,307)
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 41,841 2,070 —
Withholding tax 10,107 4,080 —
Total (71,673) 371,513 189,606
Net (loss)/gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** 142,111 (375,947) (148,337)
Payments for purchase of investments (12,887,746) (3,503,355) (192,009,654)
Proceeds from sale of investments 8,532,351 886,741 162,578,452
Movement in margin cash — — —
Movement in payables 506 289 2,127
Cash (used in) operations (4,284,451) (2,620,759) (29,387,806)
Movement in other receivables — — (22,027)
Movement in dividend receivable (6,224) (1,591) —
Withholding Tax paid (10,107) (4,080) —
Net cash (used in) operations (4,300,782) (2,626,430) (29,409,833)
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (41,841) (2,070) —
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 11,909,830 2,630,599 71,804,162
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (7,564,954) — (41,793,092)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 4,303,035 2,628,529 30,011,070
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,253 2,099 601,237
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 149 — —
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 2,402 2,099 601,237
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,415 2,099 601,237
Bank overdraft (13) — —
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid — — (52,163)
Dividend income received 67,836 27,262 —

“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
““Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).

"The Fund launched on 18 March 2024.

2The Fund launched on 19 March 2024.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI Canada ESG
Universal Low
Carbon Select UCITS

MSCI Emerging
Markets ex China
Socially Responsible

Factor MSCI World
Minimum Volatility
ESG Leaders UCITS

ETF? ucITs ETF ETF*

Notes CAD usb usb
Cash flows from operating activities
Increased/(decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 389,878 560,909 (9,718,232)
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Withholding tax 12,659 33,462 291,144
Total 402,537 594,371 (9,427,088)
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (357,139) (385,525) 11,346,328
Payments for purchase of investments (2,294,417) (9,631,348) (30,766,620) "
Proceeds from sale of investments 229,250 1,271,972 42,143,145
Movement in margin cash — — (114,238)
Movement in payables 690 1,517 108,835
Cash (used in)/provided by operations (2,019,079) (8,149,013) 13,290,362
Movement in dividend receivable (2,709) (4,688) (317,847)
Withholding Tax paid (12,659) (33,462) (291,144)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operations (2,034,447) (8,187,163) 12,681,371
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 2,036,916 8,189,978 539,028"""
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) — — (12,653,591)
Net cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities 2,036,916 8,189,978 (12,114,563)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,469 2,815 566,808
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year — — —
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 2,469 2,815 566,808
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,469 4,567 566,308
Bank overdraft — (1,752) —
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid — (721) (244)
Dividend income received 47,924 214,536 1,881,889

“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“*Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).

“""Excludes non-cash transfer of USD 297,819,788 arising from the transfer of assets and liabilities of the Fund from Credit Suisse Index Fund (IE) ETF ICAV as a result of

merger between UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG.
?The Fund launched on 19 March 2024.
3The Fund launched on 20 March 2024.
“The Fund launched on 26 August 2024.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

FTSE EPRA Nareit
Developed Green

MSCI USA ESG

MSCI USA NSL UCITS

UCITS ETF* Leaders UCITS ETF* ETF*

Notes usb usD usD
Cash flows from operating activities
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations (12,856,215) 109,887,388 144,542,439
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Withholding tax 406,589 1,986,972 1,945,332
Total (12,449,626) 111,874,360 146,487,771
Net (loss)/gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** 15,049,826 (98,684,010) (133,367,185)
Payments for purchase of investments (75,387,476)"" (224,763,450)""" (84,655,433)"""""
Proceeds from sale of investments 66,046,322 376,147,252 258,583,686
Movement in margin cash — (286,564) (217,225)
Movement in payables 67,156 472,257 396,670
Cash (used in)/provided by operations (6,673,798) 164,759,845 187,228,284
Movement in dividend receivable (778,142) (1,633,800) (1,530,565)
Withholding Tax paid (406,589) (1,986,972) (1,945,332)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operations (7,858,529) 161,139,073 183,752,387
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 16,085,211""" 184,860,059 """ 43,372,101
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (7,685,507) (341,750,749) (225,497,362)
Net cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities 8,399,704 (156,890,690) (182,125,261)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 541,175 4,248,383 1,627,126
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year — — —
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 541,175 4,248,383 1,627,126
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 541,349 4,248,383 1,627,126
Bank overdraft (174) — —
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (436) — (415)
Dividend income received 2,006,580 12,624,162 12,248,131

“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“"Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).

ok

merger between UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG.

ek

of merger between UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG.

ek

of merger between UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG.
4The Fund launched on 26 August 2024.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Excludes non-cash transfer of USD 181,620,084 arising from the transfer of assets and liabilities of the Fund from Credit Suisse Index Fund (IE) ETF ICAV as a result of
Excludes non-cash transfer of USD 3,092,163,560 arising from the transfer of assets and liabilities of the Fund from Credit Suisse Index Fund (IE) ETF ICAV as a result

Excludes non-cash transfer of USD 2,897,365,301 arising from the transfer of assets and liabilities of the Fund from Credit Suisse Index Fund (IE) ETF ICAV as a result
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MSCI USA Small Cap
ESG Leaders UCITS

MSCI USA Tech
125 ESG Universal

MSCI World ESG

ETF* UCITS ETF Leaders UCITS ETF*

Notes usb usD usD
Cash flows from operating activities
Increased/(decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders from operations 2,953,532 3,823,550 (14,311,516)
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Withholding tax 525,677 9,368 766,190
Total 3,479,209 3,832,918 (13,545,326)
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (304,977) (3,773,336) 8,922,116
Payments for purchase of investments (223,285,628)""" (7,981,723)""" (262,132,089)" """
Proceeds from sale of investments 158,333,046 22,142,380 68,228,381
Movement in margin cash — — (230,365)
Movement in payables 175,223 11,491 287,017
Cash (used in)/provided by operations (61,603,127) 14,231,730 (198,470,266)
Movement in dividend receivable (617,014) (5,908) (1,152,869)
Withholding Tax paid (525,677) (9,368) (766,190)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operations (62,745,818) 14,216,454 (200,389,325)
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 191,254,707""" 3,667,698 254,138,239
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (128,239,787) (17,880,078) (51,302,462)
Net cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities 63,014,920 (14,212,380) 202,835,777
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 269,102 4,074 2,446,452
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year — — —
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 269,102 4,074 2,446,452
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 269,102 4,074 2,446,452
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (395) — (1,453)
Dividend income received 2,973,138 79,026 4,855,127

“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“*Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).

-

merger between UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG.

kR

merger between UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG.

P

of merger between UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG.
4The Fund launched on 26 August 2024.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Excludes non-cash transfer of USD 539,848,699 arising from the transfer of assets and liabilities of the Fund from Credit Suisse Index Fund (IE) ETF ICAV as a result of
Excludes non-cash transfer of USD 48,724,731 arising from the transfer of assets and liabilities of the Fund from Credit Suisse Index Fund (IE) ETF ICAV as a result of

Excludes non-cash transfer of USD 1,032,027,346 arising from the transfer of assets and liabilities of the Fund from Credit Suisse Index Fund (IE) ETF ICAV as a result
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 31

December 2024

UBS (Irl) ETF plc
plc Total
Notes usD

Cash flows from operating activities

Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders from operations

4,114,315,534

Adjustment for:

Bond Income 1) (1,318,337)
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 139,082,371
Withholding tax 60,618,806
Total 4,312,698,374

Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, **

(4,046,845,142)

Payments for purchase of investments

(18,268,273,796)* **

Proceeds from sale of investments

15,332,866,554

Movement in margin cash (3,582,325)
Movement in payables 3,583,510
Cash (used in) operations (2,669,552,825)
Movement in other receivables (1,235,042)
Movement in dividend receivable (5,162,556)
Withholding Tax paid (60,618,806)
Net cash (used in) operations (2,736,569,229)

Financing activities

Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares

(139,082,371)

Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 16,099,418,295***
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (13,191,598,449)
Repayment of Loans (89,166,891)
Proceeds of Loans 95,033,824
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 2,774,604,408
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 38,035,179
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 51,478,618
Foreign currency translation (680,294)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 88,833,503
Cash represented by:

Cash and cash equivalents 90,240,085
Bank overdraft (1,406,582)
Supplementary information

Interest expense paid (498,901)
Dividend income received 507,018,465

“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“*Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).

woxk

merger between UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Excludes non-cash transfer of USD 8,089,569,509 arising from the transfer of assets and liabilities of the Funds from Credit Suisse Index Fund (IE) ETF ICAV as a result of
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI USA Value

MSCI World UCITS

MSCI USA UCITS ETF UCITS ETF ETF

Notes usbD usbD usb
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 455,214,614 22,354,506 48,190,722
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 11,539,741 14,690,909 3,034,407
Withholding tax 4,474,682 2,481,333 618,364
Total 471,229,037 39,526,748 51,843,493
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (440,554,535) (22,708,433) (47,224,166)
Payments for purchase of investments (564,981,286) (414,753,482) (26,694,826)
Proceeds from sale of investments 464,973,235 797,066,913 30,714,080
Movement in margin cash 11,389 146,598 12,935
Movement in payables 78,356 (44,723) (12,227)
Cash (used in)/provided by operations (69,243,804) 399,233,621 8,639,289
Movement in other receivables (266,870) (34,200) (19,223)
Movement in dividend receivable (471,917) 503,827 (52,174)
Withholding Tax paid (4,474,682) (2,481,333) (618,364)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operations (74,457,273) 397,221,915 7,949,528
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (11,539,741) (14,690,909) (3,034,407)
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 637,312,671 346,407,324 22,864,036
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (547,702,082) (730,868,475) (30,508,109)
Net cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities 78,070,848 (399,152,060) (10,678,480)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,613,575 (1,930,145) (2,728,952)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 1,867,562 2,013,724 3,873,713
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 5,481,137 83,579 1,144,761
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 5,484,755 83,579 1,144,761
Bank overdraft (3,618) — —
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (11,184) (12,814) (379)
Dividend income received 31,331,429 18,478,120 4,975,267
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
““Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

Solactive Global Pure
Gold Miners UCITS

MSCI Australia UCITS

S&P 500 UCITS ETF ETF ETF

Notes usbD usD AUD
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 164,035,027 4,126,903 71,239,626
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 7,829,124 1,064,274 13,739,308
Withholding tax 1,680,395 150,893 183,912
Total 173,544,546 5,342,070 85,162,846
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (156,735,882) (4,487,123) (54,627,809)
Payments for purchase of investments (125,330,609) (78,570,313) (590,508,352)
Proceeds from sale of investments 86,728,207 80,619,293 671,878,776
Movement in margin cash (91,521) — (29,315)
Movement in payables 45,992 67 (24,753)
Cash (used in)/provided by operations (21,839,267) 2,903,994 111,851,393
Movement in other receivables (87,897) (2,293) —
Movement in dividend receivable (184,180) (8,524) 47,507
Withholding Tax paid (1,680,395) (150,893) (183,912)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operations (23,791,739) 2,742,284 111,714,988
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (7,829,124) (1,064,274) (13,739,308)
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 107,509,557 44,875,610 537,121,315
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (71,939,960) (46,611,886) (633,139,565)
Net cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities 27,740,473 (2,800,550) (109,757,558)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,948,734 (58,266) 1,957,430
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 683,200 (133,854) 1,425,136
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 4,631,934 (192,120) 3,382,566
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 4,631,934 35,757 3,382,566
Bank overdraft — (227,877) —
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (251) (16,743) (2,017)
Dividend income received 11,733,828 1,149,397 25,327,882
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
““Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

S&P Dividend
MSCI USA hedged to MSCI USA hedged to Aristocrats ESG Elite
EUR UCITS ETF CHF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Notes EUR CHF usbD
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 82,823,501 34,322,962 11,530,263
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 1,436,407 — 7,047,059
Withholding tax 934,463 459,255 1,355,806
Total 85,194,371 34,782,217 19,933,128
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (66,985,297) (25,794,621) (11,028,077)
Payments for purchase of investments (171,678,961) (76,947,632) (149,720,083)
Proceeds from sale of investments 239,326,571 71,639,562 188,425,536
Movement in margin cash (37,077) (36,007) (156,857)
Movement in payables (23,311) (6,149) (4,777)
Cash provided by operations 85,796,296 3,637,370 47,448,870
Movement in dividend receivable (15,980) (26,955) (85,867)
Withholding Tax paid (934,463) (459,255) (1,355,806)
Net cash provided by operations 84,845,853 3,151,160 46,007,197
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (1,436,407) — (7,047,059)
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 113,765,719 44,888,094 49,048,166
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (196,552,583) (47,359,455) (87,088,588)
Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (84,223,271) (2,471,361) (45,087,481)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 622,582 679,799 919,716
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 533,240 190,675 (544,239)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 1,155,822 870,474 375,477
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,218,169 870,474 394,130
Bank overdraft (62,347) — (18,653)
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (21,714) (735) (44,204)
Dividend income received 6,729,098 3,235,718 8,986,807
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“"Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI United
Kingdom IMI Socially
Responsible UCITS

Factor MSCI USA Low

Factor MSCI USA
Prime Value ESG

ETF Volatility UCITS ETF ucITS ETF

Notes GBP usb usb
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 35,509,507 2,131,981 48,517,895
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 29,599,189 682,586 8,534,544
Withholding tax 150,141 154,403 1,517,914
Total 65,258,837 2,968,970 58,570,353
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (33,673,062) (1,639,347) (46,260,902)
Payments for purchase of investments (317,016,246) (22,182,864) (600,866,958)
Proceeds from sale of investments 377,980,953 31,639,996 940,384,764
Movement in margin cash (40) 5,707 5,594
Movement in payables (3,177) (171) (47,068)
Cash provided by operations 92,547,265 10,792,291 351,785,783
Movement in other receivables — (6,482) (26,776)
Movement in dividend receivable 37,343 (18,990) 578,760
Withholding Tax paid (150,141) (154,403) (1,517,914)
Net cash provided by operations 92,434,467 10,612,416 350,819,853
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (29,599,189) (682,586) (8,534,544)
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 186,558,497 3,766,653 122,081,539
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (251,563,147) (13,604,799) (470,905,738)
Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (94,603,839) (10,520,732) (357,358,743)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,169,372) 91,684 (6,538,890)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year (488,191) 73,278 6,238,011
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) (2,657,563) 164,962 (300,879)
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents — 176,272 —
Bank overdraft (2,657,563) (11,310) (300,879)
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (155,802) (931) (15,409)
Dividend income received 33,755,774 1,108,226 11,422,656
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
““Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

Factor MSCI USA

Quality ESG UCITS

MSCI USA Select

MSCI ACWI Socially
Responsible UCITS

ETF  Factor Mix UCITS ETF ETF

Notes usbD usD usb
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 388,183,684 24,758,191 615,111,735
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 11,138,458 472,206 7,019,387
Withholding tax 2,589,607 483,014 6,289,205
Total 401,911,749 25,713,411 628,420,327
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (383,702,585) (21,126,333) (529,105,461)
Payments for purchase of investments (1,989,297,790) (76,366,768) (1,429,759,312)
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,763,338,994 136,890,688 2,171,080,951
Movement in margin cash (35,541) 30,231 891,862
Movement in payables 148,346 2,442 (448,079)
Cash (used in)/provided by operations (207,636,827) 65,143,671 841,080,288
Movement in other receivables (66,153) (16,640) —
Movement in dividend receivable (458,639) 28,189 (21,334)
Withholding Tax paid (2,589,607) (483,014) (6,289,205)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operations (210,751,226) 64,672,206 834,769,749
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (11,138,458) (472,206) (7,019,387)
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 1,087,070,034 25,076,735 1,495,295,398
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (865,852,080) (89,233,708) (2,319,424,964)
Net cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities 210,079,496 (64,629,179) (831,148,953)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (671,730) 43,027 3,620,796
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 2,885,271 180,871 5,923,512
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 2,213,541 223,898 9,544,308
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,213,541 223,898 9,544,308
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (3,455) (4,405) (40,116)
Dividend income received 17,602,226 3,474,375 47,461,518
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“"Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI ACWI ESG
Universal Low
Carbon Select UCITS

Global Gender

S&P 500 ESG UCITS

ETF Equality UCITS ETF ETF

Notes usb usb usb
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 622,323,108 184,109,008 840,186,991
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 14,387,806 2,238,867 7,551,810
Withholding tax 7,484,495 1,789,354 7,789,133
Total 644,195,409 188,137,229 855,527,934
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (548,014,465) (147,051,718) (756,233,871)
Payments for purchase of investments (747,849,078) (350,248,501) (2,052,421,588)
Proceeds from sale of investments 857,423,802 1,343,712,707 2,109,543,936
Movement in margin cash 309,158 — 349,533
Movement in payables (208,786) (222,668) 18,058
Cash provided by operations 205,856,040 1,034,327,049 156,784,002
Movement in other receivables — (4) —
Movement in dividend receivable (1,097,167) 1,809,691 (173,179)
Withholding Tax paid (7,484,495) (1,789,354) (7,789,133)
Net cash provided by operations 197,274,378 1,034,347,382 148,821,690
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (14,387,806) (2,238,867) (7,551,810)
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 640,395,581 126,623,147 2,039,770,644
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (818,173,619) (1,160,100,171) (2,177,771,635)
Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (192,165,844) (1,035,715,891) (145,552,801)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,108,534 (1,368,509) 3,268,889
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 4,723,674 (1,534,049) 1,816,169
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 9,832,208 (2,902,558) 5,085,058
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 10,274,711 130,690 5,150,493
Bank overdraft (442,503) (3,033,248) (65,435)
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (111,975) (188,836) —
Dividend income received 58,868,848 30,688,496 54,344,121
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
““Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI USA Socially
Responsible UCITS

MSCI World Socially
Responsible UCITS

S&P 500 ESG ELITE

ETF ETF UCITS ETF
Notes usb usD usbD
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 406,368,685 266,224,901 55,961,530
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 7,790,003 3,284,901 268,184
Withholding tax 2,959,883 2,575,330 556,091
Total 417,118,571 272,085,132 56,785,805
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (385,855,022) (244,517,431) (51,937,198)
Payments for purchase of investments (1,351,384,237) (562,417,489) (254,727,060)
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,095,553,018 451,651,530 75,395,186
Movement in margin cash 192,507 281,952 (63,808)
Movement in payables 62,721 34,350 29,594
Cash (used in) operations (224,312,442) (82,881,956) (174,517,481)
Movement in dividend receivable (416,781) (413,691) (113,731)
Withholding Tax paid (2,959,883) (2,575,330) (556,091)
Net cash (used in) operations (227,689,106) (85,870,977) (175,187,303)
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (7,790,003) (3,284,901) (268,184)
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 1,102,275,768 319,947,184 212,110,607
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (866,186,353) (226,388,466) (36,363,741)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 228,299,412 90,273,817 175,478,682
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 610,306 4,402,840 291,379
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 1,541,959 3,396,923 28,951
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 2,152,265 7,799,763 320,330
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,498,544 7,804,699 838,791
Bank overdraft (346,279) (4,936) (518,461)
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid — (1,222) —
Dividend income received 20,174,116 19,162,441 3,753,773
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
““Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

UBS Climate Aware
Global Developed

MSCI EMU Climate
Paris Aligned UCITS

MSCI Europe Climate
Paris Aligned UCITS

Equity CTB UCITS ETF ETF ETF

Notes usb EUR EUR
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 4,422,913 881,353 746,075
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Withholding tax 63,526 8,125 15,311
Total 4,486,439 889,478 761,386
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (4,012,132) (764,439) (641,362)
Payments for purchase of investments (5,436,990) (4,384,913) (892,856)
Proceeds from sale of investments 15,176,663 6,447,462 1,830,406
Movement in margin cash (12,758) — (4,002)
Movement in payables (855) (149) (38)
Cash provided by operations 10,200,367 2,187,439 1,053,534
Movement in dividend receivable (3,083) (2,157) (528)
Withholding Tax paid (63,526) (8,125) (15,311)
Net cash provided by operations 10,133,758 2,177,157 1,037,695
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) — 3,280,837 —
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (10,076,360) (5,456,781) (1,014,704)
Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (10,076,360) (2,175,944) (1,014,704)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 57,398 1,213 22,991
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 15,781 (3,476) (2,867)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 73,179 (2,263) 20,124
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 73,179 120 20,124
Bank overdraft — (2,383) —
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (58) (73) (135)
Dividend income received 499,152 124,958 126,368

“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“"Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI USA Climate
Paris Aligned UCITS

MSCI Japan Climate
Paris Aligned UCITS

MSCI World Climate
Paris Aligned UCITS

ETF ETF ETF
Notes usb JPY usbD
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 22,817,800 9,011,294,559 1,625,330
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Withholding tax 172,299 109,863,930 18,914
Total 22,990,099 9,121,158,489 1,644,244
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (21,856,752) (8,033,715,799) (1,527,020)
Payments for purchase of investments (29,676,199) (49,377,591,835) (944,695)
Proceeds from sale of investments 20,390,009 14,635,684,300 1,918,479
Movement in margin cash (32,742) (20,374,010) (2,571)
Movement in payables 2,065 4,504,439 (147)
Cash (used in)/provided by operations (8,183,520) (33,670,334,416) 1,088,290
Movement in dividend receivable (20,066) (53,294,038) 1,323
Withholding Tax paid (172,299) (109,863,930) (18,914)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operations (8,375,885) (33,833,492,384) 1,070,699
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 17,884,055 41,118,015,028 —
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (9,120,489) (6,941,582,998) (1,051,674)
Net cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities 8,763,566 34,176,432,030 (1,051,674)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 387,681 342,939,646 19,025
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year (69,347) (40,124) (3,554)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 318,334 342,899,522 15,471
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 318,334 342,899,522 15,471
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (50) (694,547) —
Dividend income received 1,191,994 681,538,698 130,529

“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“*Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI Europe ESG
Universal Low
Carbon Select UCITS

MSCI USA ESG
Universal Low
Carbon Select UCITS

MSCI Japan ESG
Universal Low
Carbon Select UCITS

ETF ETF ETF

Notes EUR usb JPY
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 1,329,366 2,185,802 979,087,348
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Withholding tax 51,947 17,530 47,097,837
Total 1,381,313 2,203,332 1,026,185,185
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (1,062,103) (2,088,059) (730,082,343)
Payments for purchase of investments (4,308,236) (836,416) (26,090,556,848)
Proceeds from sale of investments*** 8,252,650 9,895,641 2,381,139,764
Movement in margin cash 17,046 — (3,349,677)
Movement in payables (910) (943) 3,227,983
Cash provided by/(used in) operations 4,279,760 9,173,555 (23,413,435,936)
Movement in other receivables (306) — —
Movement in dividend receivable 19,669 4,632 (23,282,400)
Withholding Tax paid (51,947) (17,530) (47,097,837)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operations 4,247,176 9,160,657 (23,483,816,173)
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) — — 24,807,516,032
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year*** 1(0) (4,261,792) (9,146,721) (1,291,780,901)
Net cash flows (used in)/provided by financing activities (4,261,792) (9,146,721) 23,515,735,131
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (14,616) 13,936 31,918,958
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 14,616 (10,933) 16,955,790
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) — 3,003 48,874,748
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents — 3,003 48,874,748
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid — — (806,886)
Dividend income received 311,347 127,505 290,814,469

“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“*Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).

“""Excludes non-cash transfer of EUR6,450,056 arising from the merger of MSCI Europe ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF to MSCI EMU ESG Universal Low

Carbon Select UCITS ETF.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI EMU ESG
Universal Low
Carbon Select UCITS

MSCI ACWI Climate
Paris Aligned UCITS

MSCI Emerging
Markets Climate Paris

ETF ETF Aligned UCITS ETF

Notes EUR usb usb
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 7,273,714 1,648,832 1,868,487
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Withholding tax 55,584 22,793 78,512
Total 7,329,298 1,671,625 1,946,999
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (6,132,576) (1,520,633) (1,363,348)
Payments for purchase of investments”™” (200,420,306) (3,593,151) (6,783,067)
Proceeds from sale of investments 8,047,209 1,125,988 5,896,978
Movement in margin cash 4,582 (9,828) (11,053)
Movement in payables 11,968 (515) (323)
Cash (used in) operations (191,159,825) (2,326,514) (313,814)
Movement in dividend receivable (86,089) (3,287) (20,578)
Withholding Tax paid (55,584) (22,793) (78,512)
Net cash (used in) operations (191,301,498) (2,352,594) (412,904)
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares — — —
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year ™" 1(0) 194,247,597 2,403,665 1,528,929
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (2,589,709) — (1,047,261)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 191,657,888 2,403,665 481,668
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 356,390 51,071 68,764
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 29,691 (1,209) 7,594
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 386,081 49,862 76,358
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 386,081 49,862 76,358
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid — (38) (882)
Dividend income received 894,728 157,234 619,264

“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
““Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).

Carbon Select UCITS ETF.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Excludes non-cash transfer of EUR6,450,056 arising from the merger of MSCI Europe ESG Universal Low Carbon Select UCITS ETF to MSCI EMU ESG Universal Low

167



Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI World Small

MSCI Pacific (ex

MSCI Australia ESG

Cap Socially Japan) IMI Socially Universal Low
Responsible UCITS Responsible UCITS Carbon Select UCITS
ETF ETF ETF
Notes usb usb AUD
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 22,930,991 623,323 398,039
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 200,534 — —
Withholding tax 359,957 5,320 8,478
Total 23,491,482 628,643 406,517
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (20,404,469) (302,988) (215,701)
Payments for purchase of investments (138,696,193) (2,165,780) (7,823,855)
Proceeds from sale of investments 80,337,504 1,857,863 1,997,623
Movement in margin cash — — —
Movement in payables 12,007 (688) 2,414
Cash (used in)/provided by operations (55,259,669) 17,050 (5,633,002)
Movement in dividend receivable (97,056) 2,531 (7,330)
Withholding Tax paid (359,957) (5,320) (8,478)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operations (55,716,682) 14,261 (5,648,810)
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (200,534) — —
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 81,491,242 — 7,007,422
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) (24,756,986) — (1,348,875)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 56,533,722 — 5,658,547
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 817,040 14,261 9,737
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year (28,422) 5,895 —
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 788,618 20,156 9,737
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 788,618 20,156 9,737
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (9,679) (1,085) (855)
Dividend income received 3,218,863 300,632 204,258

“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
““Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

MSCI AC Asia (ex
Japan) ESG Leaders
Low Carbon Select

S&P USA Dividend
Aristocrats ESG Elite

UBS (Irl) ETF plc

uCITS ETF uUCITS ETF plc Total
Notes usb usb usb

Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
from operations 94,233 109,049 4,519,156,038
Adjustment for:
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares — 1,589 156,367,592
Withholding tax 13,787 4,141 48,797,346
Total 108,020 114,779 4,724,320,976
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss*, ** (9,018) (95,769) (4,102,329,766)
Payments for purchase of investments (7,196,366) (2,126,718) (12,820,153,838)
Proceeds from sale of investments 262,199 104,016 14,166,634,005
Movement in margin cash (2,289) — 1,570,000
Movement in payables 1,716 442 (540,245)
Cash (used in)/provided by operations (6,835,738) (2,003,250) 1,969,501,132
Movement in other receivables — — (526,869)
Movement in dividend receivable (6,690) (4,637) (1,333,084)
Withholding Tax paid (13,787) (4,141) (48,797,347)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operations (6,856,215) (2,012,028) 1,918,843,832
Financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares — (1,589) (156,367,592)
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) 6,869,238 2,013,766 9,941,605,939
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 1(0) — — (11,686,938,120)
Net cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities 6,869,238 2,012,177 (1,901,699,773)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 13,023 149 17,144,059
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year — — 34,273,577
Foreign currency translation — — 60,982
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 1(e) 13,023 149 51,478,618
Cash represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 13,023 149 59,911,338
Bank overdraft — — (8,432,720)
Supplementary information
Interest expense paid (162) — (700,202)
Dividend income received 101,530 25,728 431,328,312
“Does not include realised gain/(loss) on financial derivative instruments.
“*Includes non-cash movement relating to unrealised gain/(loss).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Schedule of Investments as at 31 December 2024

MSCI USA UCITS ETF

Fair Value % of

Quantity usD Net Assets
Common Stocks
Advertising (0.16%) (31 December 2023: 0.15%)
Interpublic Group of Cos Inc 22,254 623,557 0.02
Omnicom Group Inc 11,778 1,013,379 0.03
Trade Desk Inc 26,421 3,105,260 0.1
Total Advertising 4,742,196 0.16
Aerospace & Defense (1.69%) (31 December 2023: 1.50%)
Boeing Co 41,916 7,419,132 0.25
General Dynamics Corp 13,442 3,541,833 0.12
General Electric Co 62,355 10,400,190 0.35
HEICO Corp (Restricted voting rights) 4,031 750,088 0.03
HEICO Corp (Voting rights) 2,493 592,686 0.02
Howmet Aerospace Inc 22,205 2,428,561 0.08
L3Harris Technologies Inc 10,988 2,310,557 0.08
Lockheed Martin Corp 12,649 6,146,655 0.21
Northrop Grumman Corp 7,886 3,700,821 0.12
RTX Corp 76,148 8,811,847 0.30
TransDigm Group Inc 3,040 3,852,531 0.13
Total Aerospace & Defense 49,954,901 1.69
Agriculture (0.61%) (31 December 2023: 0.67 %)
Altria Group Inc 97,114 5,078,091 0.17
Archer-Daniels-Midland Co 29,729 1,501,909 0.05
Bunge Global SA 7,755 603,029 0.02
Philip Morris International Inc 90,089 10,842,211 0.37
Total Agriculture 18,025,240 0.61
Airlines (0.02%) (31 December 2023: 0.02%)
Delta Air Lines Inc 8,288 501,424 0.01
Southwest Airlines Co 7,053 237,122 0.01
Total Airlines 738,546 0.02
Auto Manufacturers (2.65%) (31 December 2023: 2.15%)
Cummins Inc 7,700 2,684,220 0.09
Ford Motor Co 217,031 2,148,607 0.07
General Motors Co 63,310 3,372,523 0.12
PACCAR Inc 31,137 3,238,871 0.11
Rivian Automotive Inc 46,506 618,530 0.02
Tesla Inc 164,224 66,320,220 2.24
Total Auto manufacturers 78,382,971 2.65
Auto Parts & Equipment (0.03%) (31 December 2023: 0.10%)
Aptiv PLC 14,726 890,628 0.03
Banks (4.21%) (31 December 2023: 3.91%)
Bank of America Corp 397,780 17,482,431 0.59
Bank of New York Mellon Corp 43,418 3,335,805 0.11
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Fair Value % of

Quantity usD Net Assets
Common Stocks
Citigroup Inc 107,336 7,555,381 0.26
Citizens Financial Group Inc 29,364 1,284,969 0.04
Fifth Third Bancorp 40,268 1,702,531 0.06
First Citizens BancShares Inc 572 1,208,647 0.04
Goldman Sachs Group Inc 18,319 10,489,826 0.36
Huntington Bancshares Inc 87,594 1,425,154 0.05
JPMorgan Chase & Co 162,729 39,007,769 1.32
KeyCorp 57,989 993,931 0.03
M&T Bank Corp 9,295 1,747,553 0.06
Morgan Stanley 69,161 8,694,921 0.29
Northern Trust Corp 12,147 1,245,067 0.04
PNC Financial Services Group Inc 21,745 4,193,523 0.14
Regions Financial Corp 50,606 1,190,253 0.04
State Street Corp 18,406 1,806,549 0.06
Truist Financial Corp 77,583 3,365,551 0.11
US Bancorp 91,884 4,394,812 0.15
Wells Fargo & Co 194,053 13,630,283 0.46
Total Banks 124,754,956 4.21
Beverages (1.14%) (31 December 2023: 1.50%)
Brown-Forman Corp - Class B 12,636 479,915 0.02
Coca-Cola Co 231,303 14,400,925 0.49
Constellation Brands Inc 8,838 1,953,198 0.06
Keurig Dr Pepper Inc 66,044 2,121,333 0.07
Molson Coors Beverage Co 11,310 648,289 0.02
Monster Beverage Corp 44141 2,320,051 0.08
PepsiCo Inc 77,766 11,825,098 0.40
Total Beverages 33,748,809 1.14
Biotechnology (1.19%) (31 December 2023: 1.56%)
Alnylam Pharmaceuticals Inc 7,313 1,720,822 0.06
Amgen Inc 30,731 8,009,728 0.27
Biogen Inc 8,279 1,266,025 0.04
BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc 10,232 672,549 0.02
Bio-Rad Laboratories Inc 1,153 378,772 0.01
Contra Abiomed Inc 2,288 4,004 0.00
Corteva Inc 39,972 2,276,805 0.08
Gilead Sciences Inc 70,418 6,504,511 0.22
lllumina Inc 9,584 1,280,710 0.04
Incyte Corp 8,588 593,173 0.02
Moderna Inc 17,628 732,972 0.03
Regeneron Pharmaceuticals Inc 6,250 4,452,063 0.15
Royalty Pharma PLC 20,347 519,052 0.02
United Therapeutics Corp 2,154 760,017 0.03
Vertex Pharmaceuticals Inc 14,755 5,941,838 0.20
Total Biotechnology 35,113,041 1.19
Building & Construction Materials (0.76%) (31 December 2023: 0.66 %)
Builders FirstSource Inc 6,768 967,350 0.03
Carrier Global Corp 46,802 3,194,705 0.11
CRH PLC 37,992 3,515,020 0.12
Fortune Brands Innovations Inc 8,682 593,241 0.02
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Fair Value % of

Quantity usD Net Assets
Common Stocks
Johnson Controls International PLC 38,483 3,037,463 0.10
Lennox International Inc 1,671 1,018,140 0.03
Martin Marietta Materials Inc 3,423 1,767,980 0.06
Masco Corp 11,565 839,272 0.03
Owens Corning 4,488 764,396 0.03
Trane Technologies PLC 13,285 4,906,815 0.16
Vulcan Materials Co 7,849 2,018,998 0.07
Total Building & Construction Materials 22,623,380 0.76
Chemicals (1.16%) (31 December 2023: 1.52%)
Air Products and Chemicals Inc 12,867 3,731,945 0.13
Albemarle Corp 5,939 511,229 0.02
Celanese Corp 6,191 428,479 0.02
CF Industries Holdings Inc 10,462 892,618 0.03
Dow Inc 37,387 1,500,340 0.05
DuPont de Nemours Inc 23,895 1,821,994 0.06
Eastman Chemical Co 7,334 669,741 0.02
Ecolab Inc 14,289 3,348,198 0.11
International Flavors & Fragrances Inc 14,073 1,189,872 0.04
Linde PLC 27,004 11,305,765 0.38
LyondellBasell Industries NV 14,726 1,093,700 0.04
Mosaic Co 17,333 426,045 0.01
PPG Industries Inc 13,219 1,579,009 0.05
RPM International Inc 7,276 895,385 0.03
Sherwin-Williams Co 13,939 4,738,284 0.16
Westlake Corp 2,106 241,453 0.01
Total Chemicals 34,374,057 1.16
Commercial Services (1.64%) (31 December 2023: 1.91%)
Automatic Data Processing Inc 23,622 6,914,868 0.23
Block Inc 32,888 2,795,151 0.09
Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corp 7,218 928,957 0.03
Cintas Corp 21,021 3,840,537 0.13
Corpay Inc 3,746 1,267,721 0.04
Equifax Inc 7,127 1,816,316 0.06
Global Payments Inc 15,392 1,724,828 0.06
MarketAxess Holdings Inc 1,900 429,476 0.01
Moody's Corp 9,069 4,292,993 0.15
PayPal Holdings Inc 56,298 4,805,034 0.16
Quanta Services Inc 8,241 2,604,568 0.09
Rollins Inc 16,317 756,293 0.03
S&P Global Inc 18,346 9,136,858 0.31
Toast Inc 20,818 758,816 0.03
TransUnion 11,950 1,107,884 0.04
U-Haul Holding Co 5,752 368,416 0.01
United Rentals Inc 3,842 2,706,458 0.09
Verisk Analytics Inc 8,304 2,287,171 0.08
Total Commercial Services 48,542,345 1.64
Computers (9.03%) (31 December 2023: 8.76%)
Accenture PLC 36,139 12,713,339 0.43
Apple Inc 868,523 217,495,530 7.34
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Fair Value % of

Quantity usD Net Assets
Common Stocks
Cognizant Technology Solutions Corp 28,925 2,224,332 0.08
Crowdstrike Holdings Inc 13,397 4,583,917 0.16
Dell Technologies Inc 16,163 1,862,624 0.06
EPAM Systems Inc 3,237 756,875 0.03
Fortinet Inc 38,494 3,636,913 0.12
Gartner Inc 4,131 2,001,346 0.07
Hewlett Packard Enterprise Co 75,270 1,607,014 0.05
HP Inc 57,713 1,883,175 0.06
International Business Machines Corp 52,014 11,434,238 0.39
Leidos Holdings Inc 6,950 1,001,217 0.03
NetApp Inc 11,201 1,300,212 0.04
Pure Storage Inc 17,229 1,058,377 0.04
Seagate Technology Holdings PLC 11,918 1,028,643 0.03
Super Micro Computer Inc 29,572 901,355 0.03
Western Digital Corp 17,757 1,058,850 0.04
Zscaler Inc 4,755 857,850 0.03
Total Computers 267,405,807 9.03
Consumer Durables & Apparels (0.24%) (31 December 2023: 0.37%)
Deckers Outdoor Corp 8,666 1,759,978 0.06
NIKE Inc 69,394 5,251,044 0.18
Total Consumer Durables & Apparels 7,011,022 0.24
Cosmetics & Personal Care (1.01%) (31 December 2023: 1.14%)
Colgate-Palmolive Co 44,630 4,057,313 0.14
Estee Lauder Cos Inc 12,728 954,345 0.03
Kenvue Inc 110,440 2,357,894 0.08
Procter & Gamble Co 133,941 22,455,209 0.76
Total Cosmetics & Personal Care 29,824,761 1.01
Distribution & Wholesale (0.34%) (31 December 2023: 0.47%)
Copart Inc 50,226 2,882,470 0.10
Fastenal Co 32,778 2,357,066 0.08
LKQ Corp 18,465 678,589 0.02
Pool Corp 2,127 725,179 0.02
Watsco Inc 1,673 792,818 0.03
WW Grainger Inc 2,520 2,656,206 0.09
Total Distribution & Wholesale 10,092,328 0.34
Diversified Financial Services (3.99%) (31 December 2023: 3.85%)
Ally Financial Inc 14,000 504,140 0.02
American Express Co 32,439 9,627,571 0.33
Ameriprise Financial Inc 5,283 2,812,828 0.10
Apollo Global Management Inc 23,251 3,840,135 0.13
Ares Management Corp 10,397 1,840,581 0.06
Blackrock Inc 8,292 8,500,212 0.29
Capital One Financial Corp 22,204 3,959,417 0.13
Cboe Global Markets Inc 5,390 1,053,206 0.04
Charles Schwab Corp 89,515 6,625,005 0.22
CME Group Inc 20,294 4,712,876 0.16
Coinbase Global Inc 10,678 2,651,347 0.09
Discover Financial Services 14,164 2,453,630 0.08
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Fair Value % of

Quantity usD Net Assets
Common Stocks
Franklin Resources Inc 17,317 351,362 0.01
Intercontinental Exchange Inc 33,603 5,007,183 0.17
LPL Financial Holdings Inc 4,077 1,331,181 0.04
Mastercard Inc 47,400 24,959,418 0.84
Nasdaq Inc 24,819 1,918,757 0.06
Raymond James Financial Inc 11,243 1,746,375 0.06
SEl Investments Co 6,589 543,461 0.02
Synchrony Financial 23,077 1,500,005 0.05
T Rowe Price Group Inc 12,774 1,444,612 0.05
Tradeweb Markets Inc 6,707 878,080 0.03
Visa Inc 95,031 30,033,597 1.01
Total Diversified Financial Services 118,294,979 3.99
Electrical Components & Equipment (0.48%) (31 December 2023: 0.45%)
AMETEK Inc 14,084 2,538,782 0.08
Eaton Corp PLC 22,946 7,615,089 0.26
Emerson Electric Co 32,858 4,072,092 0.14
Total Electrical Components & Equipment 14,225,963 0.48
Electronics (0.87%) (31 December 2023: 0.96 %)
Allegion PLC 4,934 644,775 0.02
Amphenol Corp 68,839 4,784,341 0.16
Fortive Corp 20,492 1,536,900 0.05
Garmin Ltd 9,193 1,896,148 0.06
Honeywell International Inc 37,464 8,462,743 0.29
Hubbell Inc 2,798 1,172,054 0.04
Jabil Inc 6,855 986,435 0.03
Keysight Technologies Inc 9,687 1,556,023 0.05
Mettler-Toledo International Inc 1,122 1,372,969 0.05
TE Connectivity PLC 17,714 2,532,571 0.09
Trimble Inc 13,478 952,355 0.03
Total Electronics 25,897,314 0.87
Energy - Alternate Sources (0.05%) (31 December 2023: 0.08%)
Enphase Energy Inc 8,030 551,500 0.02
First Solar Inc 5,783 1,019,196 0.03
Total Energy - Alternate Sources 1,570,696 0.05
Engineering & Construction (0.10%) (31 December 2023: 0.07 %)
AECOM 7,866 840,246 0.03
EMCOR Group Inc 2,818 1,279,090 0.04
Jacobs Solutions Inc 6,258 836,194 0.03
Total Engineering & Construction 2,955,530 0.10
Entertainment (0.16%) (31 December 2023: 0.12%)
DraftKings Inc 24,004 892,949 0.03
Flutter Entertainment PLC 10,334 2,670,822 0.09
Live Nation Entertainment Inc 10,055 1,302,123 0.04
Total Entertainment 4,865,894 0.16
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Fair Value % of

Quantity usD Net Assets
Common Stocks
Environmental Control (0.41%) (31 December 2023: 0.43%)
Pentair PLC 9,547 960,810 0.03
Republic Services Inc 12,949 2,605,080 0.09
Veralto Corp 14,872 1,514,713 0.05
Waste Connections Inc 14,243 2,443,814 0.08
Waste Management Inc 22,826 4,606,059 0.16
Total Environmental Control 12,130,476 0.41
Food (0.70%) (31 December 2023: 0.90%)
Albertsons Cos Inc 19,215 377,383 0.01
Conagra Brands Inc 28,079 779,192 0.03
General Mills Inc 32,909 2,098,607 0.07
Hershey Co 8,332 1,411,024 0.05
Hormel Foods Corp 15,851 497,246 0.02
J M Smucker Co 6,049 666,116 0.02
Kellanova 15,387 1,245,885 0.04
Kraft Heinz Co 49,744 1,527,638 0.05
Kroger Co 37,952 2,320,765 0.08
Lamb Weston Holdings Inc 7,880 526,620 0.02
McCormick & Co Inc 13,694 1,044,030 0.04
Mondelez International Inc 77,331 4,618,981 0.16
Sysco Corp 28,697 2,194,173 0.07
The Campbell's Company 10,602 444,012 0.01
Tyson Foods Inc 15,421 885,782 0.03
Total Food 20,637,454 0.70
Forest Products & Paper (0.04%) (31 December 2023: 0.03%)
International Paper Co 21,523 1,158,368 0.04
Full Line Insurance (3.26%) (31 December 2023: 3.22%)
Aflac Inc 31,495 3,257,843 0.1
Allstate Corp 14,906 2,873,728 0.10
American Financial Group Inc 4,038 552,923 0.02
American International Group Inc 36,190 2,634,632 0.09
Aon PLC 11,038 3,964,408 0.13
Arch Capital Group Ltd 21,162 1,954,311 0.07
Arthur J Gallagher & Co 13,406 3,805,293 0.13
Assurant Inc 2,455 523,455 0.02
Berkshire Hathaway Inc 75,585 34,261,169 1.16
Brown & Brown Inc 14,312 1,460,110 0.05
Chubb Ltd 21,790 6,020,577 0.20
Cincinnati Financial Corp 7,843 1,127,039 0.04
Corebridge Financial Inc 13,993 418,811 0.01
Equitable Holdings Inc 19,835 935,617 0.03
Erie Indemnity Co 1,529 630,300 0.02
Everest Group Ltd 2,209 800,674 0.03
Fidelity National Financial Inc 14,174 795,728 0.03
Hartford Financial Services Group Inc 17,087 1,869,318 0.06
Loews Corp 8,980 760,516 0.02
Markel Group Inc 679 1,172,110 0.04
Marsh & McLennan Cos Inc 28,805 6,118,470 0.21
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Quantity usD Net Assets
Common Stocks
MetLife Inc 34,922 2,859,413 0.10
Principal Financial Group Inc 13,507 1,045,577 0.03
Progressive Corp 33,581 8,046,343 0.27
Prudential Financial Inc 20,160 2,389,565 0.08
Travelers Cos Inc 13,411 3,230,576 0.11
W R Berkley Corp 18,752 1,097,367 0.04
Willis Towers Watson PLC 6,186 1,937,703 0.06
Total Full Line Insurance 96,543,576 3.26
Hand & Machine Tools (0.05%) (31 December 2023: 0.07 %)
Snap-on Inc 2,861 971,252 0.03
Stanley Black & Decker Inc 8,129 652,678 0.02
Total Hand & Machine Tools 1,623,930 0.05
Health Care Products (2.92%) (31 December 2023: 3.36%)
Abbott Laboratories 99,023 11,200,492 0.38
Agilent Technologies Inc 17,500 2,350,950 0.08
Align Technology Inc 4,238 883,665 0.03
Avantor Inc 42,217 889,512 0.03
Baxter International Inc 29,319 854,942 0.03
Bio-Techne Corp 9,252 666,422 0.02
Boston Scientific Corp 84,655 7,561,385 0.25
Cooper Cos Inc 11,391 1,047,175 0.04
Danaher Corp 37,430 8,592,057 0.29
Edwards Lifesciences Corp 36,212 2,680,774 0.09
Exact Sciences Corp 11,580 650,680 0.02
GE Healthcare Inc 25,666 2,006,568 0.07
Hologic Inc 14,682 1,058,425 0.04
IDEXX Laboratories Inc 4,593 1,898,930 0.06
Insulet Corp 3,850 1,005,120 0.03
Intuitive Surgical Inc 20,218 10,552,987 0.36
Medtronic PLC 72,775 5,813,267 0.20
ResMed Inc 8,528 1,950,268 0.07
Rewvity Inc 6,299 703,031 0.02
Solventum Corp 9,588 633,383 0.02
STERIS PLC 5,317 1,092,963 0.04
Stryker Corp 19,109 6,880,195 0.23
Teleflex Inc 2,380 423,592 0.01
Thermo Fisher Scientific Inc 22,021 11,455,985 0.39
Waters Corp 3,194 1,184,910 0.04
West Pharmaceutical Services Inc 3,844 1,259,141 0.04
Zimmer Biomet Holdings Inc 11,641 1,229,639 0.04
Total Health Care Products 86,526,458 2.92
Health Care Services (1.68%) (31 December 2023: 2.10%)
Centene Corp 32,091 1,944,073 0.07
Charles River Laboratories International Inc 2,921 539,217 0.02
Cigna Group 16,482 4,551,340 0.15
DaVita Inc 2,714 405,879 0.01
Elevance Health Inc 13,456 4,963,918 0.17
HCA Healthcare Inc 11,017 3,306,753 0.11
Humana Inc 6,940 1,760,747 0.06
Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 176



Fair Value % of

Quantity usD Net Assets
Common Stocks
IQVIA Holdings Inc 10,659 2,094,600 0.07
Labcorp Holdings Inc 4,676 1,072,300 0.04
Molina Healthcare Inc 2,972 865,001 0.03
Quest Diagnostics Inc 5,706 860,807 0.03
UnitedHealth Group Inc 52,664 26,640,611 0.90
Universal Health Services Inc 3,682 660,624 0.02
Total Health Care Services 49,665,870 1.68
Home Builders (0.24%) (31 December 2023: 0.30%)
DR Horton Inc 17,326 2,422,521 0.08
Lennar Corp - Class A 13,907 1,896,498 0.06
NVR Inc 178 1,455,844 0.05
PulteGroup Inc 12,257 1,334,787 0.05
Total Home Builders 7,109,650 0.24
Household Products (0.20%) (31 December 2023: 0.24%)
Avery Dennison Corp 4,234 792,308 0.02
Church & Dwight Co Inc 13,888 1,454,213 0.05
Clorox Co 6,706 1,089,121 0.04
Kimberly-Clark Corp 19,638 2,573,364 0.09
Total Household Products 5,909,006 0.20
Internet (12.78%) (31 December 2023: 11.11%)
Airbnb Inc 25,839 3,395,503 0.1
Alphabet Inc - Class A 334,478 63,316,685 2.14
Alphabet Inc - Class C 286,846 54,626,952 1.84
Amazon.com Inc 539,742 118,413,997 4.00
Booking Holdings Inc 1,926 9,569,177 0.32
CDW Corp 7,602 1,323,052 0.04
DoorDash Inc 16,873 2,830,446 0.10
eBay Inc 28,128 1,742,530 0.06
Expedia Group Inc 7,259 1,352,570 0.05
F5 Inc 3,679 925,158 0.03
Gen Digital Inc (Germany listed) 36,238 992,196 0.03
GoDaddy Inc 7,752 1,530,012 0.05
Match Group Inc 13,850 453,034 0.01
MercadolLibre Inc 2,547 4,331,021 0.15
Meta Platforms Inc 124,893 73,126,100 2.47
Netflix Inc 24,623 21,946,972 0.74
Okta Inc 9,741 767,591 0.03
Palo Alto Networks Inc 36,512 6,643,724 0.22
Pinterest Inc 32,986 956,594 0.03
Robinhood Markets Inc 30,551 1,138,330 0.04
Roku Inc 7,100 527,814 0.02
Snap Inc 56,886 612,662 0.02
Uber Technologies Inc 107,349 6,475,292 0.22
VeriSign Inc 4,744 981,818 0.03
Zillow Group Inc 10,442 773,230 0.03
Total Internet 378,752,460 12.78
Iron & Steel (0.12%) (31 December 2023: 0.21%)
Nucor Corp 14,088 1,644,210 0.06
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Reliance Inc 3,208 863,786 0.03
Steel Dynamics Inc 8,069 920,431 0.03
Total Iron & Steel 3,428,427 0.12
Leisure Time (0.16%) (31 December 2023: 0.12%)
Carnival Corp 59,005 1,470,405 0.05
Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd 13,739 3,169,450 0.11
Total Leisure Time 4,639,855 0.16
Lodging (0.34%) (31 December 2023: 0.36%)
Hilton Worldwide Holdings Inc 14,336 3,543,286 0.12
Hyatt Hotels Corp 2,467 387,270 0.01
Las Vegas Sands Corp 20,167 1,035,777 0.04
Marriott International Inc 13,860 3,866,108 0.13
MGM Resorts International 15,277 529,348 0.02
Wynn Resorts Ltd 6,656 573,481 0.02
Total Lodging 9,935,270 0.34
Machinery - Diversified (0.69%) (31 December 2023: 0.83%)
CNH Industrial NV (US listed) 54,843 621,371 0.02
Deere & Co 14,646 6,205,510 0.21
Dover Corp 7,772 1,458,027 0.05
Graco Inc 9,540 804,127 0.03
IDEX Corp 3,812 797,814 0.03
Ingersoll Rand Inc 22,831 2,065,292 0.07
Nordson Corp 2,751 575,619 0.02
Otis Worldwide Corp 22,085 2,045,292 0.07
Rockwell Automation Inc 6,103 1,744,177 0.06
Toro Co 5,199 416,440 0.01
Westinghouse Air Brake Technologies Corp 10,287 1,950,312 0.06
Xylem Inc 15,112 1,753,294 0.06
Total Machinery - Diversified 20,437,275 0.69
Machinery, Construction & Mining (0.59%) (31 December 2023: 0.40%)
Caterpillar Inc 27,700 10,048,452 0.34
GE Vernova Inc 15,426 5,074,074 0.17
Vertiv Holdings Co 19,887 2,259,362 0.08
Total Machinery, Construction & Mining 17,381,888 0.59
Media (0.89%) (31 December 2023: 1.16%)
Charter Communications Inc 5,020 1,720,706 0.06
Comcast Corp 218,938 8,216,743 0.28
FactSet Research Systems Inc 1,968 945,191 0.03
Fox Corp - Class A 14,831 720,490 0.03
Fox Corp - Class B 8,480 387,875 0.01
Liberty Media Corp - Liberty Formula One 10,808 1,001,469 0.03
News Corp - Class A 22,314 614,528 0.02
Walt Disney Co 102,932 11,461,478 0.39
Warner Bros Discovery Inc 120,510 1,273,791 0.04
Total Media 26,342,271 0.89
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Mining (0.19%) (31 December 2023: 0.26%)
Freeport-McMoRan Inc 85,391 3,251,689 0.1
Newmont Corp (Peru listed) 64,549 2,402,514 0.08
Total Mining 5,654,203 0.19
Miscellaneous Manufacturers (0.65%) (31 December 2023: 1.00%)
3M Co 31,851 4,111,646 0.14
A O Smith Corp 7,756 529,037 0.02
Axon Enterprise Inc 4,032 2,396,298 0.08
Carlisle Cos Inc 2,573 949,025 0.03
lllinois Tool Works Inc 17,495 4,436,032 0.15
Parker-Hannifin Corp 7,371 4,688,177 0.16
Teledyne Technologies Inc 2,532 1,175,177 0.04
Textron Inc 11,267 861,813 0.03
Total Miscellaneous Manufacturers 19,147,205 0.65
Office & Business Equipment (0.04%) (31 December 2023: 0.03%)
Zebra Technologies Corp 2,971 1,147,460 0.04
Oil & Gas (2.49%) (31 December 2023: 3.15%)
APA Corp 20,404 471,128 0.02